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ZHANG JIANHONG Chairman
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Despite the complex domestic and international environment in 2021,
and the resurgence of the COVID-19 pandemic, the global economy
has begun to recover. However, substantial uncertainties still exist in
the market, while domestic policies and the market are constantly
changing, resulting in greater volatility in the fluorosilicon industry.
Under this operating environment, the Group capitalised on the
strengths developed in the industry over the years and quickly seized
the opportunities from the changes in the industry. As the results,
the Group reported significant business growth and also achieved
remarkable results in the Group’s history. The growth in the Group's
results and the development of high-end products in the fluorosilicon
industry have further strengthened the Group’s leading position in the
fluorosilicon industry in the PRC.
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Business Review

1.

Focused products driving significant increase in
results

The changes in the market in 2021 have brought some unique
opportunities to the Group. The Group’s management made
prompt judgments based on the market circumstances and
formulated strategies that were inline with the market trend. Such
strategies have successfully improved the Group’s profitability,
bringing significant improvement to the Group’s business
performance, and creating remarkable results in the Group's
history. During the year, the Group’s revenue increased by
57.74%, gross profit margin increased by 10 percentage points
and net profit increased by 197.01%. During the year, with the
growing demand from the domestic new energy industry, power
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battery grade PVDF became a rapidly emerging product in the
fluorosilicon industry. With advanced technology, comprehensive
industrial chain and large production scale, the Group has become
a key supplier to the downstream clients in the new energy sector,
and this product has become an important growth component for
the Group during the year. With the significant growth of the PVDF
market, the price of its raw material, R142b, has also increased
rapidly. With a well-established industrial chain, the Group’s
internally generated and sold R142b, which is an important
growth driver for the Group's profit. The market for organic silicon
products also improved significantly during the year, making it
an important profit generator and growth contributor for the
Group's results. In addition, the Group's other key product markets
also recorded various degrees of rebound during the year, which
helped the Group achieve an excellent overall performance.

Further increasing research and development
(“R&D") efforts

The Group has always believed that innovation is an important
factor for the Group to maintain its leading position in the
industry, so the management of the Group highly values
technological R&D. The Group has achieved different levels of
growth in research and development expenses for six consecutive
years, and the R&D expenses have increased significantly in
recent years. During the year, the R&D expenses amounted to
approximately RMB838,893,000, representing a year-on-year
increase of 42.07% and reaching 5.29% of revenue. At present,
six subsidiaries of the Company have been assessed as high-tech
enterprises and are entitled to the preferential taxation policies.
During the year, the Group had a total of 92 new products,
including high-end products such as environmentally friendly
dispersion resins for high-end seals and high-performance
polyvinylidene fluoride resins for power lithium-ion batteries.
During the year, the Group submitted 93 patent applications
and was granted approval of 70 patents, and currently has over
460 valid patents. The Group participated in the formulation of
21 standards, including 1 national standard, 3 industry standards
and 9 group standards. During the year, the Group signed 18 new
collaborative projects with universities and research institutes
and currently has 43 projects under research. During the year, the
Group had a total of 573 R&D staff.
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Project construction progressing well

Based on the market situation, the management of the Group has
determined that there is significant market potential for a number
of important products of the Group in the future. In order to seize
the market opportunities, the Group has decided to increase the
construction of projects to expand the production capacity of
products with favourable market prospects. The management of
the Group has designated this year as the “Year of Construction
for Dongyue” for the construction of a number of important
projects with the Group completing a total of 104 projects of
various types during the year. The first phase of the 20,000-ton
PTFE project was completed, increasing the production capacity
of PTFE products by 10,000 tons/year, with the total production
capacity now reaching 55,000 tons/year. The construction of
5,000 tons/year FEP project was also completed, doubling the
total FEP production capacity from the original capacity. The
trial production of Dongyue Organosilicon’s 300,000 tons/year
organic silicon monomer and 200,000 tons/year organic silicon
downstream deep-processing projects have begun at the end of
the year. The construction of auxiliary raw materials 100,000-tons/
year chloromethane project and 100,000-tons/year other methane
chloride project was completed in the second half of the year
and is currently undergoing trial production. The 30,000-tons/year
anhydrous fluoride project, the waste acid recycling project and
the wastewater recycling project are also underway as planned.
With high market attention, the new 10,000-tons/year PVDF project
received full approval at the end of the year and construction has
begun. During the year, the Group’s capital expenditure reached
approximately RMB4,803,248,000, representing an increase of
152.74% from approximately RMB1,900,497,000 in 2020.

Safe and environmentally friendly production
ensuring stable operation

Stable production and operation are the basis for good
performance. During the year, domestic polices had substantially
impacted the industry, resulting in unstable production in
the industry. The Group has always insisted on strict and high
standards of safe and environmentally friendly production to
ensure the stable production and operation of the Group’s overall
industrial chain, which enabled the Group to occupy the market
with adequate product supply in an unstable market environment
and underpinned the Group's leading position in the industry.
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Prospect

In 2021, the Group successfully seized the opportunity in the market
to create remarkable performance in its history by making the right
decisions and striving diligently. However, the market in 2022 is still
full of uncertainties and the Group will not let down its guard. In this
regard, the Group will have the following development plans:

1. Accelerating project construction to put the
project into operation as soon as possible

To seize the opportunities brought by the market, the Group has
deployed a large number of projects in advance for construction.
The funds raised by the Group through the placing in 2021 will
effectively facilitate the construction of the Group’s planned
projects and assist the Group’s healthy development. In 2022,
the Group’s new 10,000 tons/year PVDF project is expected to be
completed and put into operation in October. Upon completion of
this project, together with the expansion project to be completed
in 2022 through technical transformation, the Group's total PVDF
production capacity will reach 25,000 tons/year. According to the
Group’s plan, the total production capacity of PVDF will reach
55,000 tons/year by 2025, and the total production capacity of its
raw material R142b will reach 100,000 tons/year, and the remaining
production capacity of the plan is currently under preparation.
The newly expanded capacity will not only be used to produce
coating grade PVDF, water treatment membrane grade PVDF, and
solar backsheet membrane grade PVDF, but will also focus more
on new power cell grade PVDF. Dongyue Organosilicon’s 300,000
tons/year organic silicon monomer and 200,000 tons/year organic
silicon downstream deep-processing projects have started trial
production at the end of 2021. After it is put into operation, the
production capacity of Dongyue Organosilicon’s will be more than
doubled. The remaining raw materials, energy, energy saving and
environmental protection projects will be completed and put
into operation as soon as possible. The Group will do its best to
accelerate the construction of the project in order to respond to
the fleeting market opportunities.
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Further increase R&D efforts, allowing market to
lead the R&D direction

As an innovative high-tech enterprise, R&D has always been a
top priority in the Group’s development. The development and
progress of technology cannot be separated from the support and
protection of high-performance materials, especially the excellent
performance of fluorosilicon materials. Currently, the Group has
formulated a new sales strategy for downstream applications
of high-end materials, and has fully commenced in-depth
cooperation with important downstream customers and leading
enterprises, focusing on the material requirements of downstream
enterprises and exploring a large number of downstream high-
end application markets. In order to solve the current and future
problems of material development and import substitution,
the Group forms a more solid strategic supply relationship and
secures market share in advance, which can form a series of more
comprehensive and high-end product portfolio and a more solid
technical and market protection for the Group.

Clarifying the direction of future development

The Group will continue to develop its business related to the
fluorosilicon industry industrial chain, further expand its business
upstream and downstream in the industrial chain, and refine and
penetrate into the fluorosilicon industry, providing a foundation
for the sustainable development of the Group in the future.
The Group will strengthen the high degree of integration of the
industrial chain and value chain, plan an integrated, green and
intelligent industrial cluster, and achieve energy and resources
support.
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4. Comprehensive risk prevention and control

The internal and external risks are the main factors affecting
the development of a business, and the Group is exposed to a
large number of internal and external risks. To maintain stable
development is an important measure to prevent and control
internal and external risks. In the future, the Group will take
further steps to control policy risks, safety and environmental
risks, compliance risks, financial risks and investment risks, while
strengthening the independence and authority of the internal
control department, forming risk control reports, formulating
countermeasure strategies and complementing procedures and
systems to minimise risks as much as possible.

We have delivered a good performance and established a good
foundation in 2021. In the uncertain yet highly anticipated 2022, we will
make every effort to develop in accordance with the strategies set by
the management. We are already in the fierce front line of this era of
development, and we believe we will be able to seize the opportunities
brought by the times to achieve further rapid development. We will
continue to strive for favourable results in 2022 to reward our investors
for their long-standing trust and support.
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Financial Review
Results Highlights

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded revenue of
approximately RMB15,843,947,000, representing an increase of 57.74%
over RMB10,044,313,000 in the previous year. Gross profit margin
increased to 32.93% (2020: 22.35%) and the operating results margin
was 23.01% (2020: 11.04%). During the year under review, the Group
recorded equity-settled share based payments in connection with
62,570,000 options granted to employees and directors of the Group
recognized as an expense in the amount of approximately RMB293,774,000
during the year and such expense was charged to profit for the year
of the Group. As a result, the Group recorded profit before taxation of
approximately RMB3,244,209,000 (2020: RMB1,016,621,000), and net
profit of approximately RMB2,681,545,000 (2020: RMB902,856,000),
while consolidated profit attributable to the Company’s owners was
approximately RMB2,074,843,000 (2020: RMB772,167,000). Basic earnings
per share was RMB0.98 (2020: RMB0.37).

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HKS$0.34

(2020: HKS0.14) per share to the shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on 20 June 2022.
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DEb S R REEE Segment Revenue and Operating Results
RNEBEZE20219F K20205F12 B31 B IEFEIRE  Set out below is the comparison, by reportable and operating segments,
WRRES MBS RELENLLEES| N of the Group's revenue and results for the year ended 31 December 2021
T and 2020:
BZ2021F12831ALEE HZ200F 128318 1L5E
For the year ended 31 December 2021 For the year ended 31 December 2020
e ES R = Yegs EL e
Operating Operating
Reportable and Results Results
ERREE DT Operating Segments Revenue Results Margin Revenue Results Margin
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB'000
"o FHE Fluoropolymers 4,825,266 1,449,771 27.88% 3,191,941 436,461 13.67%
A Organic Silicon 4,184,131 1,267,885 30.30% 2,453,749 281,494 11.47%
SURH Refrigerants 3,337,155 637,632 17.41% 2,066,120 189,464 9.17%
— gk BH2 % Dichloromethane, Polyvinyl
( Tpvcl) Chloride ("PVC") and Liquid
K Alkali 1,537,795 136,612 8.17% 1,224,183 42,294 3.45%
FEMR Property development 1,454,359 25,125 1.73% 725118 102,066 14.08%
Hih Others 505,241 129,010 25.34% 383,202 57463 15.00%
oae) Consolidated 15,843,947 3,646,035 23.01% 10,044,313 1,109,242 11.04%
REZEEDN Analysis of Revenue and Operating Results
CIEEEEN » XBEIRIMNSER S RBRTE - K& During the period under review, impacted by the domestic and
ZEELTHSERER  EREBREZELEER - international economic circumstances and policies, the Group experienced
BAREFREREENANRER - $&2DIIERLK strong market demand on a number of products and significant increase
E 0 BREBRWMESMUAIN - EMETE DI SNE  in product prices, which contributed to substantial growth in the Group's

EWAREEHETREEEE results. Looking at the situation of each segment, apart from the property
development segment, all other segments recorded various degrees of
growth in external sales revenue and results.
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Fluoropolymers

During the period under review, the external sales of fluoropolymers
segment was RMB4,825,266,000, representing a year-on-year increase of
51.17% (2020: RMB3,191,941,000), accounting for 30.45% (2020: 31.78%)
of the Group’s total external sales. The segment results recorded a profit
of RMB1,449,771,000, representing an increase of 232.17% as compared
with RMB436,461,000 in the same period of the previous year.

During the year, due to the emergence of the lithium battery industry
in the PRC, the demand for PVDF surged and product prices increased
significantly, leading to a 176.04% increase in product sales revenue, which
was an important growth driver for the Group's results. The market for
other fluoropolymers has rebounded and the application of fluoropolymers
in high-end fields has increased, resulting in strong demand for the
corresponding products with various product price increases.

The Group relies on the internal supply of R22 for the production of
TFE (a fluorocarbon), which is used by the Group for the production of
polymers products such as PTFE (a synthetic fluoropolymer with high level
of resistance to temperature changes, electrical insulation, and aging and
chemical resistant that is used as a coating material and can also be further
processed into high-end fine chemicals which can be widely applied in
the chemicals, construction, electrical and electronics and automotive
industries) and HFP (an important organic fluorochemical monomer,
which can be used to produce various fine chemicals). Furthermore, the
refrigerants segment of the Group supplied R22 and R142b as the raw
materials for the production of a variety of downstream fluoropolymer
fine chemicals including FEP (modified materials of PTFE, produced with
HFP added in TFE, mainly used in the lining for wire insulation layer,
thin-walled tube, heat shrinkable tubes, pumps, valves and pipes), FKM
(Fluorine Rubber, a specialised fluorinated material, which is mainly used
in the fields of aerospace, automotives, machinery and petro-chemistry
because of its superior mechanical property, and excellent oil, chemical
and heat resistance), PVDF (fluorocarbon made with R142b to produce
VDF, mainly used as a fluorine coating resin, fluorinated powder coating
resin and lithium battery electrode binding material and VDF), in which
Huaxia Shenzhou has been engaging. Other fluorinated fine chemicals
formed another major production category of Huaxia Shenzhou.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2021 11
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Refrigerants

During the period under review, the refrigerants segment’s external sales
increased by 61.52% to RMB3,337,155,000 from RMB2,066,120,000 in the
previous year, accounting for 21.06% (2020: 20.57%) of the Group's total
external sales. The segment results recorded a profit of RMB637,632,000,
representing an increase of 236.55% from a profit of RMB189,464,000 in
the same period of the previous year.

During the period under review, the growth in sales revenue and results
of the Refrigerants segment was mainly attributable to the price increase
on a number of refrigerant products. Among these products, R142b,
which is used as a raw material for PVDF products, a PVDF fluoropolymer,
recorded a 447.02% increase in sales revenue due to demand surge on
PVDF, which also led to strong demand on R142b, resulting in a significant
product price increase.

The Group has the largest production capacity of R22 in the world.
Being the Group’s backbone refrigerant products, R22 is an important
refrigerant. Apart from that, R22 has been one of the key raw materials for
the production of the fluoropolymers (i.e. PTFE, HFP and other downstream
fluorinated chemicals) and R125. R125 and R32 are the key refrigerant
mixture for other types of green refrigerants (such as R410a) to replace
R22. Currently, R410a has been the principal replacing refrigerant which
has been widely applied in inverter air conditioners and other green
home appliances. R134a is broadly used in the refrigeration and air-
conditioning systems in automobile air conditioners, while R152a is
another key refrigerant product of the Group which can also be used as
blowing agents, aerosols and cleaning agents. Apart from the fact that
R142b can be used as refrigerant, temperature controller medium, and
intermediates of aviation propellant, it can also be one of the main raw
materials for the production of VDF.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Organic Silicon

During the year, the organic silicon segment’s external sales increased by
70.52% to RMB4,184,131,000 from RMB2,453,749,000 in the previous year,
accounting for 26.41% (2020: 24.43%) of the Group's total external sales.
The segment results recorded a profit of RMB1,267,885,000, representing
an increase of 350.41% from a profit of RMB281,494,000 in the previous
year. During the period under review, benefiting from the rebounding
growth of the downstream demand side of the industry and the positive
impact of industry policies, the market demand for organic silicon segment
products was strong and prices significantly increased year-on-year, which
also became an important factor for the growth of the Group's results.

This segment mainly included the revenue from the production and
sales of DMC (upstream organic silicon intermediates that are used as
raw materials to produce deep processed mid-stream and downstream
silicon products, such as silicon oils, silicon rubber and silicon resins), 107
Silicon Rubber, Raw Vulcanizate and Gross Rubber (collectively referred
to as “Silicon Rubbers”, deep processed organic silicon rubber products,
where Raw Vulcanizate is a key material for producing Gross Rubber),
and other by-products and other high-end downstream products, such
as Gaseous Silica and Silicon Oils. Named as “Industrial MSG", organic
silicon is widely applied in aviation, automotive, electronic, construction
and other industries, mainly in the form of additives, treatment chemicals
stabilisers, lubricants and sealants and is a key ingredient in industrial
processes. The Group initially produces silicon monomers with silicon
powder and internally generated chloromethane and further processes
them to become silicon intermediates (mainly DMC), with certain portion
of which the Group produces for Silicon Rubbers and other organic silicon
products. The Group can also produce and generate other byproducts
and high-end downstream products, such as Gaseous Silica and Silicon
QOils through its production processes.
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Dichloromethane, PVC and Liquid Alkali

During the year under review, the segment’s external sales increased by
25.62% to RMB1,537,795,000 from RMB1,224,183,000 in the previous year,
accounting for 9.71% (2020: 12.19%) of the Group's total external sales.
The segment results recorded a profit of RMB136,612,000, representing
a year-on-year decrease of 223.01% (2020: profit of RMB42,294,000). The
products of this segment are chemical commodities and as impacted by
the economic recovery, the market demand for these products rebounded
during the year and the prices of these products increased, resulting in
higher sales revenue and results.

This segment included the revenue from production and sales of two
major auxiliary products (dichloromethane and liquid alkali) of Refrigerants
Segment of the Group and PVC products. Liquid alkali is a basic chemical
product from the production of methane chloride (essential chemical for
the production of refrigerants and organic silicon products), and used in
the textile, power and materials industries. Methane chloride includes
dichloromethane, which is mainly used to produce antibiotics and as a
foaming mode for polyurethane. The Group is engaged in the production
of PVC (a widely used thermoplastic polymer applied in the construction
industry to replace traditional building materials). The production of
refrigerants products generates a chemical, hydrogen chloride, which is
one of the basic raw materials for PVC production. Therefore, the Group's
PVC production can ensure production synergies, increasing economic
value generated from a self-sufficient business chain.

Property Development

As at the date hereof, this segment includes four property projects, which
are located in Huantai County, Zibo City, Shandong Province, Zhangdian
District, Zibo City, Shandong Province, Yucheng City, Shandong Province,
and Zhangjiajie City, Hunan Province, respectively. The segment’s external
sales during the year was RMB1,454,359,000, representing an increase of
100.57% as compared to thatin 2020 (2020: RMB725,1
for 9.18% of the Group's total external sales. The segment results were
RMB25,125,000, representing a decrease of 75.38% as compared with that
in 2020 (2020: RMB102,066,000).

18,000), accounting
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Others

During the period under review, the external sales of the segment was
RMB505,241,000, representing an increase of 31.85% as compared with
RMB383,202,000 in the previous year. The segment results recorded a profit
of RMB129,010,000 (2020: RMB57,463,000), representing a year-on-year
increase of 124.51%. Since the performance of the segment was highly
correlated to the market environment, the segment results increased as
the market rebounded during the year.

This segment included the revenue from the production and sales of other
by-products of the operating segments of the Group, such as Ammonium
Bifluoride, Hydrofluoric Acid and Bromine.

Distribution and Selling Expenses

During the year under review, the distribution and selling expenses
decreased slightly by 4.87% to RMB336,451,000 from RMB353,683,000 of
the previous year.

Administrative Expenses

During the year under review, the administrative expenses increased by
155.93% to RMB913,264,000 from RMB356,845,000 of the previous year.
The increase is mainly attributable to the equity-settled share based
payments of RMB293,774,000 incurred during the year. During the year
ended 31 December 2021, 62,570,000 options were granted to employees
and directors of the Group. As there was no vesting conditions attached
to the options granted, the fair value of the options at the date of grant
was recognized as one-off expense in the amount of approximately
RMB293,774,000 during the year and such expense was charged to profit
for the year of the Group.

Finance Costs

During the year under review, the finance costs decreased by 21.95% to
RMB81,606,000 from RMB104,560,000 of last year. The decrease in finance
costs is attributable to the decrease in the borrowings of the Group.
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Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's aggregate
capital expenditure was approximately RMB4,803,248,000 (2020:
RMB1,900,497,000). The Group’s capital expenditure is mainly allocated
for the construction of the new production lines.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group's financial position is sound with healthy working capital
management and strong operational cash flow. As at 31 December 2021,
the Group's total equity amounted to RMB15,638,623,000, representing
an increase of 48.51% as compared with that as at 31 December 2020.
As at 31 December 2021, the Group's bank balances and cash totalled
RMB5,102,552,000 (2020: RMB4,275,728,000). The increase in the Group's
bank balance and cash is attributable to (1) the fund raised from the
placing of shares; and (2) the increase in cash flow from operating activities.
During the year, the Group generated a total of RMB3,914,053,000 (2020:
RMB2,260,565,000) net cash inflow from its operating activities. The current
ratio” of the Group as at 31 December 2021 was 2.11 (31 December
2020: 1.73).

Taking the above figures into account, together with the available bank
balances and cash, the unutilised banking credit facilities, bank’s support
and the Group's sufficient operational cash flows, the management is
confident that the Group has adequate resources to settle any debts and
to finance its daily operational and capital expenditures.

Capital Structure

During the year under review, the Company (1) placed 145,000,000
new shares under the general mandate (the "Placing Shares”) and (2)
repurchased and cancelled a total of 1,499,000 ordinary shares of the
Company (the "Buyback Shares”). After the issue of the Placing Shares
and cancellation of the Buyback Shares, the number of issued shares of
the Company is 2,255,190,455 as at 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, the borrowings of the Group totalled
RMB624,100,000 (2020: RMB1,904,550,000). The gearing ratio” of the
Group was -28.54% (2020: -22.52%). The negative gearing ratio as at 31
December 2021 represents the Group is “net cash” positive (i.e. has more
cash & equivalents than its debt) which is usually a good sign.
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The Group had no particular seasonal pattern of borrowing. As at 31
December 2021, the Group's borrowings comprised non-current portion
(over 1 year) and current portion (within 1 year). The non-current portion
of borrowings amounted to approximately RMB355,500,000 which are
repayable in full after one year but not exceeding five years. The current
portion of borrowings amounted to approximately RMB268,600,000. The
Group's borrowings were made at fixed interest rates and floating rates.
The weighted average effective interest rates on floating rate borrowings
and fixed rate borrowings for the year ended 31 December 2021 were
4.30% (2020: 4.87%) and 1.17% (2020: 3.72%) per annum, respectively.
The lower weighted average effective interest rate for the year on fixed
rate borrowings is due to the discount on the special loan for technical
improvement loans during the period. As at 31 December 2021, 85.74%
(31 December 2020: 89.55%) of the Group's borrowings bear variable

interest rate.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group's borrowings were
denominated in RMB only.

Notes:
(1) Current Ratio = Current Assets + Current Liabilities
(2)  Gearing Ratio = Net Debt + Total Equity

Net Debt = Total Borrowings — Bank Balances and Cash

Group Structure

During the year under review, there has been no material change in the
structure of the Group.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s bank deposits of RMB129,611,000
(2020: RMB290,788,000) were used for bills payable, undrawn borrowing
facilities, deposits of letters of credit and supervision deposit from presale
of properties. In accordance with the requirements of the PRC property
industry, the property companies are required to deposit supervision
deposits in their escrow accounts, which cannot be used until the
completion of construction and the provision of residential mortgage
loans for the customers. As at 31 December 2021, the relevant bank
deposits were RMB124,145,000 (2020: RMB211,800,000).
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As at 31 December 2020, the Group has certain property, plant and
equipment and right-of use assets/lease prepayments with an aggregate
book value of approximately RMB61,037,000 pledged to the Group's
borrowing, which was fully repaid and the respective pledged assets
were released during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates and Related
Hedges

The Group’s functional currency is RMB with most of the transactions
settled in RMB. However, foreign currencies (mainly United States dollars)
were received/paid when the Group earned revenue from overseas
customers and when settling purchases of machinery and equipment
from the overseas suppliers.

In order to reduce the risk of holding foreign currencies, the Group normally
converts the foreign currencies into RMB upon receipt while taking into
account its foreign currencies payment schedule in the near future.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

The Group had 6,824 employees in total as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
5,576). The Group implemented its remuneration policy and bonus based
on the performance of the Group and its employees. The Group provided
benefits such as social insurance, employee option scheme and pensions
to ensure remuneration competitiveness.
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Directors

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is responsible for
the management and operation of the Company’s businesses and has
the general authority in this regard. Certain information of the members
of the Board is as follows:

Executive directors

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong, aged 62, was appointed as the chairman, chief
executive officer and executive director of the Company in July 2006.
He has been with the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) and its predecessors since October 1986 and has over 34
years of experience in the chemical industry. He is also the chairman
of Dongyue Chemicals and Dongyue Polymers etc., and a director
of Dongyue F&S and Dongying Dongyue Salt, all of which are the
Company's subsidiaries. Mr. Zhang is a professor-level senior officer of
political affairs. He had served the People’s Liberation Army Navy from
1978 to 1982. Mr. Zhang is the vice chairman of the 11th All-China
Federation of Industry and Commerce (58— &2 Bl L), currently
serves as vice chairman of China Civil Chamber of Commerce (FBIR
I 2), the president of the Hong Kong China Chamber of Commerce,
the standing chairman of China Association of Organic Fluorine and
Silicon Material Industry and a standing committee member of Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference of Shandong Province (LLE
L EH). He has obtained the honorary titles of National Outstanding
Builder of Socialism in the Non-Public Economy (Fourth Session), “100
outstanding private entrepreneurs during the 40 years of reform and
opening up”, Powerful Figure of China Petroleum and Chemical Industry
(First Session), Top 10 Outstanding Figures of Chinese Brands in the
International Market, National Outstanding Demobilized Soldier, and
Most Outstanding CEO of the Year chosen by a Hong Kong magazine
“Capital CEO" ("BEAAE").

Mr. FU Kwan, aged 64, was appointed as the executive director of
the Company in July 2006. Mr. Fu is currently the chairman of the
board of directors and the president of Macro-Link Group. Mr. Fu
served as a police commissioner of Liling City, deputy secretary of the
Party Committee of the Commune, secretary of the township party
committee, deputy director of the Liling City Economic Commission,
director of the Municipal Foreign Trade Bureau and the Party secretary,
deputy general manager of Hunan Arts and Crafts Import and Export
Group (& T2 M #E L O£ B), and associate leader of social
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working team of province station at Liuyang City. Mr. Fu served as the
member of executive committee, standard committee of All-China
Federation of Industry and Commerce, the director of participation and
deliberation of politics committee of All-China Federation of Industry
and Commerce, the deputy chairman of the tenth All-China Federation
of Industry and Commerce, and the deputy chairman of the eleventh
of China Chamber of Commerce. He also served as the eleventh, the
twelfth and the thirteenth CPPCC member, the member of the social
and legal committee of CPPCC, and the chairman of Hong Kong China
Chamber of Commerce. He was appointed as deputy chairman of the
board of Central South University and Beijing Foreign Studies University.
He was selected for several times as “Outstanding builders of socialism

noor

with Chinese characteristics”, “Top ten Entrepreneur in China”, “China
Economic Person of the Year”, “100 outstanding private entrepreneurs
at the 40th anniversary of China’s reform and opening-up”, “Persons of
China Private Sector for the 40 Years” and other honors. In addition,
Mr. Fu is the director of Macrolink Culturaltainment Development Co.,
Ld. GrEER: bR ZERRH AR 2 A]), a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Fu is also the chairman and executive
director of Macrolink Capital Holdings Limited GHFEEEEREGR A7),
a company listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr Fu
owns a direct 4.25% and an indirect 90% interest in Macrolink Holding,
which wholly owns Macrolink International. Macrolink International is a
substantial shareholder of Macrolink Capital Holdings Limited.

Mr. WANG Weidong, aged 58, was appointed as the executive director
of the Company in March 2021. Mr. Wang has worked for the Group
since September 1996 and is responsible for technology R&D and
corporate management matters. During the period, he chaired the overall
preparation works for incorporation of fluorosilicon companies as well
as organic silicon companies. He then acted as the general manager
of fluorosilicon companies, silicon companies and chemical companies
of Dongyue. Mr. Wang is also the chairman of Shandong Dongyue
Organosilicon Materials Co. Ltd (a company listed on the ChiNext of
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange). He has over 30 years' experience for
manufacture and management in the chemical industry. He is currently
the president of the Group, a director of Shandong Dongyue Future
Hydrogen Energy Materials Co, Ltd. (LR EERRIEM LD BRA
7)) and the director of the subsidiaries of Dongyue Group. Mr. Wang also
received various awards such as the nationwide outstanding chemical
engineerer (2Bt TEFEHET T 1E#) from Petroleum and Chemical
Industry Federation (F R F1{t T T2 1<), Outstanding Contribution
Entrepreneurs (£ B & BA 7 2 R ) and Shandong Outstanding
Entrepreneurs (LA EFEFER). Mr. Wang holds a master degree in
business administration from Shanghai Jiao Tong University.
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Mr. ZHANG Zhefeng, aged 47, was appointed as the executive director,
vice president and chief financial officer of the Company in May 2017.
Mr. Zhang was the financial controller of the Group from 2006 to
2007. He has served as the financial controller and general manager of
MacroLink Mineral Co., Ltd. GETEEBTE S G R 2 7)) from February 2008
to February 2016. Mr. Zhang is also the director of Shandong Dongyue
Organosilicon Materials Co. Ltd (a company listed on the ChiNext of
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange). Mr. Zhang graduated in the Hunan
University in 2003. He is also a member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a registered tax agent in the PRC. Mr.
Zhang has more than 20 years of experience in accounting and finance.

Mr. ZHANG Bishu, aged 52, was appointed as the executive director of
the Company in May 2017. Mr. Zhang is a master postgraduate. He is also
a certified accountant, registered tax agent in the PRC, senior economist
and EMBA of Tsinghua University. In his earlier years, Mr. Zhang worked
for state-owned enterprises and government authorities. He joined the
Macro-Link Group in October 2004. He has since served as the deputy
financial officer of the Macro-Link Group, the chairman of Macro-Link
Weihung Food Company Ltd. (FTEEEERR A R /AR]), the director
and the general manager of Jiayuan Cobalt Holdings (Fi& & 3 H
B2 2 F]), general manager of Macrolink Holding (Group) Co., Ltd. (Top
500 Enterprises of China), the chairman of Macrolink Holding (Group)
Co,, Ltd. and the financial officer and the chief officer of the investment
department of the MacroLink Group. Mr. Zhang has been acting as the
senior vice president, chief accountant and the president of the chemical
and tyre business department of the Macro-Link Group since 2014. In
addition, Mr. Zhang also served as the executive director of Liaoning
Chengda Company Limited, a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange, and Asia-Pacific Property & Casualty Insurance Co., Ltd. Mr.
Zhang currently also acts as an executive director of Sichuan Hongda
Co., Ltd. ()| RZERMHEFRAR]) (@ company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange), Macrolink Capital Holdings Limited (a company listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited), Sailun Group Co., Ltd.
(a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange), Daxinganling
Rural Commercial Bank, and an independent director of China Railway
Engineering Design and Consulting Group Co,, Ltd..
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Mr. ZHANG lJian, aged 49, was appointed as the executive director
of the Company in July 2006 and has been with the Group since
February 2006. Mr. Zhang has more than 20 years of experience in the
investment banking and corporate finance. Mr. Zhang holds a bachelor
degree in Economics and Law from Jiangxi University of Finance and
Economics and a Master degree in Business Administration from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Zhang is currently an executive
director of New Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited (a company listed on
the HKSE) and Macrolink Capital Holdings Limited (a company listed
on the HKSE), the vice-chairman of Keda Industrial Group Co. Ltd. (a
company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange), and a director of
Macrolink Culturaltainment Development Co., Ltd. (FTZEEE Sk i 3%
EHBR AT (@ company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange).

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen MH, FCCA, FCPA (PRACTISING), ACA, CTA
(HK), FHKIoD, aged 68, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company in November 2007. Mr. Ting is a certified public
accountant and is the partner of Messrs Ting Ho Kwan & Chan, Certified
Public Accountants (Practising). Mr. Ting is currently a non-executive
director of Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited and an
independent non-executive director of six companies listed on the HKSE,
namely Tong Ren Tang Technologies Company Limited, Tongda Group
Holdings Limited, New Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited, Computer and
Technologies Holdings Limited, Texhong Textile Group Limited and China
SCE Group Holdings Limited.

Mr. MA Zhizhong, aged 59, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in March 2021. Mr. Ma has over 36
years of teaching experience. Since July 1998, Mr. Ma has been working
at Zibo University and Shandong University of Technology as the head
of the legal office and he was appointed as a professor of the law
school of Shandong University of Technology in January 2018. Mr. Ma
is also a qualified PRC lawyer since September 1992. Mr. Ma holds a
bachelor's degree in politics from Qufu Normal University and a master
of laws from Shandong University.
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Mr. YANG Xiaoyong, aged 66, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in August 2014. Mr. Yang has over
30 years of experience in fluoropolymer and organic silicon industries.
Mr. Yang served at China Bluestar Chengrand Research Institute of
Chemical Industry as chief engineer and director of National Organic
Silicon Engineering and Technological Research Centre and National
Synthetic Resin Quality Supervision and Inspection Centre, and the
chief secretary of the Organic Silicon Professional Committee of China
Association of Fluorine and Silicon Industry and so forth. Mr. Yang is
currently the honorary president and the chief engineer of the Expert
Committee of China Association of Fluorine and Silicon Industry. In
addition, Mr Yang is currently an independent director of Ningbo Runbe
High-Tech Materials Co., Ltd (BB ERSFMMBRHEERHBER AR,
a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, Henan Hengxing
Science & Technology Co. Ltd., a company listed on Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, an independent director of New Asia Man Silicon Chemistry
Co., Ltd. iz @ b BR% D ABR A 7)) and an independent director of
Hubei Jianghan New Materials Co., Ltd. GR3b T M B (D B R A R)).

Senior management

Mr. LI Yuwen, aged 54, obtained a bachelor's degree in English from
Beijing Foreign Studies University and the title of senior political
scientist of professor level. He has worked for the Group since March
2002 until now, currently serves as the deputy president of the
Group. He excels in management, innovation and corporate culture
development, and has promoted the management reform of the
Company under the support and guidance of the Group’s management.
He is the author of Management Revolution (‘&) E15)), etc.
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Company secretary

Ms. CHUNG Tak Lai, aged 40, is a full time company secretary of
the Company. She joined the Group on 20 March 2015. Ms. Chung is
primarily responsible for company secretarial matters of the Company.
Ms. Chung has 18 years of work experience in accounting, corporate
finance and strategic investment. Prior to joining the Company,
Ms. Chung had worked in the audit and financial advisory divisions
of a leading international accounting firm; merger and acquisition
team of a Hong Kong listed company; finance and accounting; and
strategic investment divisions of two listed companies in Hong
Kong respectively. Ms. Chung holds a bachelor degree of business
administration, majoring in professional accountancy from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong and a bachelor degree of laws from the
University of London. Ms. Chung is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements of Dongyue Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the
financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of
the Group's principal activities during the year.

Results and appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 133.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of an interim dividend
for the six months ended 30 June 2021 (six months ended 30 June
2020: Nil).

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HKS$0.34
(the “Final Dividend”) (2020: HK$0.14) per share in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2021, to the shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company (the “Register”) on 20 June
2022, subject to the approval of the members of the Company at the
Company's annual general meeting (the "AGM"). The Final Dividend is
after excluding the applicable PRC income tax.

The AGM of the Company will be held on 9 June 2022. A notice of
the AGM will be published and dispatched to the shareholders of the
Company in due course.

Closure of the Register

The Register will be closed to ascertain the qualification for attending
and voting at the AGM and for the entitlement to the Final Dividend.

The Register will be closed from 6 June 2022 to 9 June 2022, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In
order to qualify for attending and voting at the AGM, all share transfers,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with
the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on 2 June 2022.
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The Register will be closed from 16 June 2022 to 20 June 2022, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for the entitlement to the Final Dividend,
all share transfers, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must
be lodged with Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on
15 June 2022.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in
the consolidated statement of change in equity on page 136.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

Share capital

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set
out in note 33 to the financial statements.

Distributable reserves

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders as computed in accordance with the
Companies Law (2003 Revision) of the Cayman Islands amounted to
RMB4,567,139,000 of which HK$766,254,000 (approximately equivalent
to RMB628,747,000) has been proposed as Final Dividend.

Pre-emptive right

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the
existing shareholders.
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Purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s
listed securities

During the year, the Company repurchased, on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “HKSE"), a total of 1,499,000 ordinary shares
of the Company (the “Buyback Shares”) at a price range of HK$11 to
HKS$11.6 per share. The aggregate consideration for the Buyback Shares
is approximately HK$16,889,180, which was funded from internal
resources of the Company. The Company had repurchased the shares

RATENEEIEZFTERIRG - SFBEWT : on the HKSE during the year ended 31 December 2021 with details as
follows:
BRRE
Price per Share
BEROHE BREXNE BREXNE TR E
Number of Total
Shares Highest Lowest Consideration
Month of Purchase B E A 7 Bought Back Price Paid Price Paid Paid
BT BT BIT
HKS HKS HKS
December 2021 20214F 12 A 1,499,000 11.60 11.00 16,889,180

B B 2021F12A30B B UG - 25
BERFERRFEFAE LR FRRG B EERE
BWITRMHEE - EFAAR I RERENERS
EFE o ROBEITHEERTRRMBELBHEE
17 BEHEROMBEBREEALARRRER
RHEE o

R2022F 1A RARTTREBBIMNUE
1058 B T E 10BN ERGEEED S X
1,501,000 AN AR E B - BR(ER16403,120%8
T BARBAEESHE - RHON2022562A4
25SH B ©

The Buyback Shares were validly cancelled on 30 December 2021. The
Directors performed the share repurchase in accordance with the share
repurchase mandate granted by its shareholders at the annual general
meetings and in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole. The share repurchases were carried out having considered
the market conditions and financial arrangements, the Directors believe
that the share repurchase would enhance the value of the Company
and it shareholders in the long term.

In January 2022, the Company also repurchased, on the HKSE, a total
of 1,501,000 ordinary shares of Company at price range of HK$10.58 to
HK$11.10 per shares with aggregate consideration of HK$16,403,120,
which was funded from internal resources of the Company and shares
were validly cancelled on 25 February 2022.
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Other than as disclosed above and under the sections “Employee
Option Scheme” and "Placing of New Share under the General
Mandate”, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Employee Option Scheme

On 27 December 2018, the Company adopted an employee option
scheme (the “Employee Option Scheme”) which shall be valid and
effective for a term of five (5) years. The purposes of the Employee
Option Scheme are (i) to recognize the contributions by certain
employees or consultants of the Group and to provide them with
incentives in order to retain them for the continual operation and
development of the Group; and (ii) to attract suitable personnel for
further development of the Group.

Pursuant to the Employee Option Scheme, Dongyue Fluorosilicone
Science and Technology Group Co., Ltd. (formerly known as” Shandong
Dongyue Future Enterprise Management Consulting Services Co., Ltd."),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as the trustee will purchase
existing Shares from the market out of cash contributed by the Group
of not more than HK$800,000,000 in total at all material times and hold
such Shares on trust for the relevant employees or consultants of the
Group selected by the Board (the “Selected Employees”). The Board
may, from time to time, at its absolute discretion grant to any Selected
Employee the right to purchase the relevant Shares (the “Option”). The
Selected Employee may, when exercising the Option, elect the number
of Shares which he wishes to (i) be transferred and/or (ii) sell and
receive the difference, if any, between the sale price of the Shares and
the exercise price of the Option.

The cash dividends derived from the Shares under the Employee Option
Scheme will form part of the residual cash of the trust fund which can
be used to purchase Shares subject to instructions given to the Trustee.
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On 9 July 2021, the Board has resolved to grant Options to a total of 1,372
selected employees to purchase a total of 62,570,000 Option Shares at
an exercise price of HK$4.27 per Option Share, with an exercise period
of 5 calendar years commencing from 9 July 2021 and expiring on 8
July 2026, both dates inclusive.

Among the 62,570,000 Options granted, an aggregate of 22,450,000

Options were granted to the Directors as follows:

RARQ B FEEZBAL

Position(s) held with the Company

FRHEREZHE
Number of Options granted

REREE TEFRWITES 7,000,000
Mr. Zhang Jianhong Chairman and executive Director

BERE HITES 1,000,000
Mr. Fu Kwan Executive Director

THRSELE WITES 7,000,000
Mr. Wang Weidong Executive Director

REESEAE HITES 6,000,000
Mr. Zhang Zhefeng Executive Director

RLERE WITESR 300,000
Mr. Zhang Bishu Executive Director

SRESEL HITES 300,000
Mr. Zhang Jian Executive Director

TRERE BUIFHITES 500,000
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen Independent non-executive Director

BERBEEL BIYFFRITES 300,000
Mr. Yang Xiaoyong Independent non-executive Director

BEBEE BIFHITES 50,000
Mr. Ma Zhizhong Independent non-executive Director

st

Total 22,450,000
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On 15 September 2021, Hong Kong Ju Yue International Trading
Company Limited, an independent third party, was newly appointed as
the trustee of the Employee Option Scheme while Shandong Dongyue
Future Enterprise Management Consulting Services Co., Ltd had
resigned as the trustee.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, 18,460,000 Shares have been
purchased by the Trustee under the Employee Option Scheme. After
the grant of the Option Shares to the selected employees during the
year, as at 31 December 2021, 16,810,000 Shares are held by the Trustee
under the Employee Option Scheme.

The Employee Option Scheme is not a share option scheme and is not
subject to the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

Further details of the Employee Option Scheme and the grant of
the Options are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 27
December 2018 and 9 July 2021, respectively.

Placing of New Shares under the General Mandate

On 31 August 2021, the Company and the placing agents entered
into the placing agreement, pursuant to which the Company has
conditionally agreed to place through the placing agents 145,000,000
new ordinary shares (“Placing Shares”) to not less than six placees, who
and whose respective ultimate beneficial owner(s), as applicable, are
independent third parties to the Group, at the placing price of HK$23.00
("Placing Price”) per Placing Share. The Placing Price represented a
discount of approximately 14.18% to the closing price of HK$26.80 per
Share as quoted on the HKSE on 31 August 2021, being the date of the
placing agreement.

On 8 September 2021, the completion of placing took place and an
aggregate of 145,000,000 Placing Shares have been placed to not less
than six placees at the Placing Price per Placing Share pursuant to the
terms and conditions of the placing agreement. The gross proceeds
and the net proceeds (after deduction of the relevant expenses and
fees) from the placing amounted to HK$3.335 billion and approximately
HKS$3.31 billion, respectively. The net price per Placing Share was
approximately HK$22.82. The Company intends to allocate the net
proceeds as follows:
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Balance of net Intended timetable
Amount of net proceeds unutilized for use of the
proceeds utilized as  as of 31 December unutilized net
Usage Amount  of 31 December 2021 2021 proceeds
(@ RETEEPVOF(—REMIFE - NI - #HILE  £92,000,000000/8 7T #97,4000007C  #91,992600000%7C  2025F12A318
@i‘% AARTREZE  BEREED - KK
W;%E’J AR FHE) RERHH(BIR1420
<A ERE
Enhancmg the Group's production capacity of PVDF Approximately Approximately Approximately 31 December 2025
(a type of fluoropoloymer that is climate resistant HK$2.0 billion HKS$7.4 million HKS$1.99 billion
and highly machinable with excellent mechanical
properties, which can be used as weather-resistant
coating materials, adhesives for lithium batteries
and photovoltaic backplanes) and its raw material
(being R142b collant)
b REAEEPTI(—EREENLEEE - B4 - #7800,000,0007 7T #1206,000000%7C  #1594000000%7T 20225 12A31R
MECRMCERNEKEATRS FIRAR
PR (BIR22/2 AN ) B0 EERE
Enhancing the Group's production capacity of PTFE (a Approximately Approximately Approximately 31 December 2022
synthetic fluoropolymer with high level of resistance HK$800 million HK$206 million HK$594 million
to temperature changes, electrical insulation, and
aging and chemical resistant) and its raw material
(being R22 coolant)
 MRTEEN-REEESD #)510,000,0007 7 0 4151000000087  2022%F12H31H
Replenishing the general working capital of the Group Approximately 0 Approximately 31 December 2022
HKS$510 million HK$510 million

REROHEEN B %fﬂﬁ%/&ﬁe%’éﬁﬂﬂﬁ
ZH#7687% (o)A EIE KRB AR R B %
TTIEAR 2 #76.43% ©

EXEeAR  KREFEARBABAERRER -
I RN BT &) By PR B R S SR 15 M EE RE IR
HES  ENAARAREBRAEEFN S -

ERREFRGH 2E—FHEBRINARG A
A2021F9 A1 H M2021F9A8H Z A -

The Placing Shares represent: (a) approximately 6.87% of the issued
share capital of the Company immediately before completion; and (b)
approximately 6.43% of the issued share capital of the Company as
enlarged upon completion.

The Board is of the view that the Placing would enable the Company

to broaden its shareholder base and to finance the planned rapid
development and expansion of the business and production capacity
of the Group, which is in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole.

Further details of the placing of new shares are set out in the

Company's announcements dated 1 September 2021 and 8 September

2021.
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Directors

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Jianhong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Fu Kwan

Mr. Zhang Zhefeng

Mr. Liu Chuangqi (resigned on 11 March 2021)

Mr. Wang Weidong (President) (appointed on 11 March 2021)
Mr. Zhang Bishu

Mr. Zhang Jian

Independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs")

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. Yue Rundong (resigned on 11 March 2021)
Mr. Ma Zhizhong (appointed on 11 March 2021)

Mr. Yang Xiaoyong

Mr. Liu Chuangi resigned as an executive Director with effect from 11
March 2021 as he has reached the retirement age. Mr. Yue Rundong
resigned as an independent non-executive Director with effect from 11
March 2021 as he as reached the retirement age.

Pursuant to Article 87(1) of the Company’s articles of association, at
each of the annual general meeting, one third of the Directors for the
time being, or, if their number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every 3 years. Mr. Zhang Zhefeng, Mr. Zhang
Bishu and Mr. Yang Xiaoyong will retire by rotation at the forthcoming
AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Directors’ service contracts

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has entered or has proposed to enter into any service contracts with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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Directors’ interests in contracts

Save as disclosed in this report, no contract of significance, to which the
Company, its fellow subsidiaries, its subsidiaries or its holding company
was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

Director’s rights to acquire shares

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “Employee Option
Scheme” in this report, at no time during the year was the Company,
its holding company or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries,
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors, their respective
spouse or minor children to acquire benefit by means of the acquisition
of Shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

Biographical details of Directors and senior
management

Brief biographical details of Directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 19 to 24.

Remuneration of the Directors

The remuneration of each Director is determined with reference to the
duties, responsibilities, performance of the Directors and the results of
the Group.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 11 to
the financial statements.

Corporate governance practice

Details of the corporate governance practice of the Company are set
out on pages 44 to 64.

Environmental, Social and Governance practice

Details of the environmental, social and governance practice of the
Company are set out on pages 65 to 124.
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Disclosure of interests

RO REEIFNEZR AR

#2021F12831H » ARABEZERFEFETH
ABRIEES BB ARAR B A5
FZE(ERRELF ARG ESRAE
1B 1) EXVER) KRR - ARG REEE
HHEERBEZSFRIAEGOIEXVBETRE
SAMANEG AR R MR TR RAR
(BERBEEFLAEGKROIIGHARTEREE
SEBEBNERRAR)  RBEFEFR
HAE 5P 535215 B e 8RR sz Ik P & 50
WERIORE - IRBR ETEITAZEEH#IT
BHERZ SEZESTRI(ZEFR DA R

DR LB PR SOR BT

EEHA

Name of Director

EENE

Nature of interest

(a) Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short

positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures

As at 31 December 2021, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company and their
respective associates in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the HKSE pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have taken
under such provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") to be notified to the Company and the HKSE were as follows:

RO NABBERDEE
Number of Shares
or underlying Shares

HERITREAADL
% of issued
share capital

RERTE
Mr. Zhang Jianhong

BELLE

Mr. Fu Kwan

SRIESTE
Mr. Zhang Jian

RS LE
Mr. Zhang Zhefeng

il
Corporate interest!”
Eatkan

Beneficial interest

L
Corporate interest®

ey 2ol
Beneficial interest

25 i 2
B mEm

Beneficial interest

258,948,451 (L) 11.48 (L)
7,147,636 (L) 032 (L)
520,977,818 (L) 23.10 (L)
91 (L) 0.00 (L)

750,000 (L) 0.03 (L)
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) REBEIFFLBEED  ARKREBRTER
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% A W18 A Dongyue Team Limited ¥ B &)
258,948,451 (A0 (L) h HE B HE2s ©

) ZERD A A 150,000,000A% A% 17 (L) B Macrolink
Overseas CHTEHBERMN 2 EH B AR HERH
B - 370,977,818/ A% (L) Bl A ¥ E R BIFR &
BERA  MAERERAANEREE2EE
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ERIERAERARBEELEDBIEF34%K
283% ° WA REDAIABELEREXE
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(b) TERRREMALRED - HHEE
RO REEZNESZR AR

2021 12H318 » A RARESREELT
BABFA » THAL(LIERRFIHES
HEZBITHAB)RARQ B KRR H AR K
HHREBRENIREESRBEKHIE336
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Notes:

(1) Pursuant to the SFO, as Mr. Zhang Jianhong holds 100% interest in
Dongyue Team Limited, Mr. Zhang is deemed to be interested in the
258,948,451 Shares(L) held by Dongyue Team Limited.

(2)  These Shares in which 150,000,000 Shares (L) are directly held by
Macrolink Overseas (a wholly owned subsidiary of Macrolink International)
and 370,977,818 Shares (L) directly held by Macrolink International which
in turn is wholly owned by Macrolink Industrial. Macrolink Holding, a
company owned by Cheung Shek as to 93.4% and by Mr. Fu Kwan as to
2.83%, respectively, wholly owns Macrolink Industrial. In addition, Mr. Fu
Kwan and Ms. Xiao Wenhui directly own Cheung Shek as to 59.76% and
33.46%, respectively.

(3)  L:Long Position

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the then
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the HKSE pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have taken under such
provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein or which
were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the
Company and the HKSE.

(b) Substantial shareholders’ and other person’s
interests and short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures

As at 31 December 2021, so far as is known to the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company, the following persons (not
being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had an
interest or a short position in the Shares or underlying Shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO or which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO:
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BRREM 1EE

Name of Shareholder

EEMtE

Nature of interest

I3 RAHRA R 0 & B
Number of shares
or underlying Shares

EEBRITREAED L
% of issued
share capital

Macrolink Overseas

FrEE BT
Macrolink International

FTERE
Macrolink Industrial

FTEER AT
Macrolink Holding

A
Cheung Shek

HXEZ+t
Ms. Xiao Wenhui

Dongyue Team Limited

it

B

Beneficial interest!

gt 2o
Beneficial interest!
PR

Corporate interest!

DR
Corporate interest!

e L E
Corporate interest!

g
Corporate interest!

ERER
Corporate interest!

gyt

Beneficial interest?

2% Z B 47 7 150,000,000 A% B 13 (L)  Macrolink
Overseas CGITEB B2 ENB AR HiEE
£ M370,977,8188 A7 (L) A R T EE Bt B PR &
BEE  MPTEBERARTEREE2EH
o EBEERNEBRIEREZEHE -
ERIERABERARBELEDRIEE3.4% K
283% ° AN RADAHBELEREXE
7+ B 59.76% K 33.46% % ©

BREZFAFRBERD  ARRBEREERAE
Dongyue Team Limited#)100% % * SRt A4
1R B Dongyue Team Limited$ A H)258,948,451
BERZD (B s -

Notes:

150,000,000 (L)

370,977,818 (L)

150,000,000 (L)

520,977,818 (L)

520,977,818 (L)

520,977,818 (L)

520,977,818 (L)

258,948,451 (L)

6.65 (L)

1645 (L)

6.65 (L)

23.10 (L)

23.10 (L)

23.10 (L)

23.10 (L)

These Shares in which 150,000,000 Shares (L) are directly held by
Macrolink Overseas (a wholly owned subsidiary of Macrolink International)
and 370,977,818 Shares (L) directly held by Macrolink International which
in turn is wholly owned by Macrolink Industrial. Macrolink Holding, a
company owned by Cheung Shek as to 93.4% and by Mr. Fu Kwan as to
2.83%, respectively, wholly owns Macrolink Industrial. In addition, Mr. Fu
Kwan and Ms. Xiao Wenhui directly own Cheung Shek as to 59.76% and
33.46%, respectively.

Pursuant to the SFO, as Mr. Zhang Jianhong holds 100% interest in

Dongyue Team Limited, Mr. Zhang is deemed to be interested in the
258,948,451 Shares (L) held by Dongyue Team Limited.

L: Long Position
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(c) Interests in other members of the Group as at
31 December 2021

HEBERE AR
BRITRE
ZMEXRB DL
% of issued share
capital/registered
capital of

such subsidiary

HEME

Nature of interest

IWRRERENHBRAF HBREEARAR A 16.78
(IRERED
Shandong Dongyue Fluo-Silicon Zibo Juyue Commercial Limited Corporate
Materials Co., Ltd. (‘Dongyue F&S")
AELARESBERCTIERDA TRE RIS SRR BR AT NGl 49
Inner Mongolia Dongyue Peak Fluorine  Chifeng Zhongxing Information Corporate

Chemicals Co., Ltd.

FEEABERR AT

Technology Co., Ltd.
TRE RIS SRR B R A A NGl 20

Chifeng HuaSheng Mining Co., Ltd. Chifeng Zhongxing Information Corporate
Technology Co., Ltd.
WERFRECTAM AR AF W BRI EHE R 2 A R A 49
Shandong Dongyue Wenhe Fluorine Shandong Wenhe New Materials Corporate
Chemicals Co,, Ltd. Co,, Ltd.
BREEHEMELHREBRAR  KEFHKREFRAA NGl 30
Ycheng Boyu Real Estate Marketing Dalian Zhongyu Investment Co., Ltd. Corporate

Planning Co., Ltd.

BEXFTHBEEN  MARRZEZEREBITERA
BFTEN - 2021128318 - ETAEMAL
(WIEARRNETHEZBITHAB)RAREIK
1 S FRRARR (0 P B RIEE FH R ERE & HI B XVED
FoREIDEIEARMA R R EN T MRS
KE - EESIEEEEN AN ETMAER
TRAEBEIREMKERFBREAE FRER
R FERIAS AN E B 10%E A RS -

BRABESHABEEN  RFAREEARER
HY - AR RISk ] H B A ) B R AR AR R S A ]
HIMBARFEMELMEREGH -

Saved as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company, as at 31 December 2021, no other
person (other than the Directors or the chief executive of the Company)
had any interest or a short position in the Shares or underlying Shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
who were, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the Group.

Saved as disclose in this report, there was no other contract of
significance between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during the year and up
to the date of this report.
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Directors’ interests in competing business

During the year ended 31 December 2021, none of the Directors of the
Company was interested in any business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Management contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered
into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Major suppliers and customers

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to the
Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases
- the largest supplier 3.39%
— five largest suppliers combined 13.89%
Sales
- the largest customer 1.85%
— five largest customers combined 7.93%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted
above.

Connected transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had entered into
connected transactions that are subject to be reported under Chapter
14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the HKSE (the
“Listing Rules”) as below:
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On 12 January 2021, (i) Dongyue Fluorosilicon Science and
Technology Group Co., Ltd (R ERERFEEE B R A A)
("Dongyue Fluorosilicon Technology”) and (ii) Shandong Dongyue
Organosilicon Materials Co., Ltd. (LI 3 3 & B # & K A% (5
AR 7)) ("Dongyue Organosilicon”), both subsidiaries of the
Company, entered into the partnership agreement with (i) Huantai
Province Jinhai Kongyou Capital Operation Co., Ltd. ({E & % &
BABEERKLLSHRAT) (“Huantai Jinhai”), (i) Zibo Jugiang
Trading Co., Ltd. (BB R E S HRAF]) ('Zibo Jugiang”) and
(i) China Capital Management Co., Ltd. (REZIREANEIEHR
R 2 A]) (“China Capital”) in relation to the establishment of an
investment fund, which is expected to primarily invest in fluoro-
chemical, organic silicon, membrane materials and hydrogen-
related industries.

Pursuant to the partnership agreement, the initial capital
contribution to the Fund is in total RMB500,000,000, comprising
RMB125000000 RMB75000000, RMB125000000and
RMB75,000,000 to be contributed to the investment fund by
Dongyue Fluorosilicon Technology, Dongyue Organosilicon,
Huantai Jinhai and Zibo Jugiang, respectively, as Limited Partners,
and RMB100,000,000 by China Capital as the General Partner.
The percentage of capital contribution of Dongyue Fluorosilicon
Technology and Dongyue Organosilicon based on the total initial
capital contribution amount is 25% and 15%, respectively. The
investment fund will not be accounted for as a subsidiary of the
Company and its financial results will not be consolidated into the
accounts of the Company. Dongyue Organosilicon is a connected
subsidiary of the Company and therefore the entering into of
the partnership agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder constitute a connected transaction of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Further details of the transaction are set out in the announcement
dated 12 January 2021.

On 9 July 2021, the Board has resolved to grant options (“Options”)
to a total of 1,372 selected employees to purchase a total of
62,570,000 Shares (“Option Shares”), which have been acquired
by the trustee from the open market by utilizing the contributed
amount made available to the trustee by the Company, pursuant
to the Scheme. Among the 62,570,000 Options granted, an
aggregate of 22,450,000 Options were granted to the Directors (the
“Company Director Grantees”).
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The grant of Options to the Company Director Grantees has been
approved by the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Yang Xiaoyong is
the chairman of and Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen and Mr. Zhang
Jianhong are members of the Remuneration Committee, and each
of them has abstained from voting so far as the grant of Options
to himself was concerned. In addition, Options were granted to
certain directors of subsidiaries of the Company (the “Subsidiary
Director Grantees”, together with the Company Director Grantees,
the "Connected Grantees”). The Options granted to the Connected
Grantees constitute a connected transaction of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing rules.

Further details of the transaction are set out in the section
“Employee Option Scheme” of this report and the announcement

dated 9 July 2021.

REBMPEE2021F12A31BILEFEEETRER  Details of the continuing connected transactions conducted by the
FHEAEI4ABIGE THFEMEL SEESE Group during the year ended 31 December 2021 not falling under Rule

AR 14A.33 of the Listing Rules are set out below:
N FHHEBERS FEELR BEREH
Continuing connected transactions for the year 2021 Annual Cap Actual
(AR%BET) (AR¥BET)
(RMB million) (RMB million)
BEMLURREEREMRERAF Renewal of raw material master supply agreement 105 70

(o211 A1RE
2021F3A318)
(from 1 January 2021 to
31 March 2021)

370 268
(202148182
20214E12A318)
(from 1 April 2021 to
31 December 2021)

PR ALY R RHEL FE = i for the supply of raw materials to Shandong
(BgsE1) Dongyue Organosilicon Materials Co,, Ltd (Note 1)

MERTREERHER AR

Financial services master agreement for provision of 330 321

RUFFRELETIREN SRS deposit services and loan services by Marco-link (BEAHEA
Th((EEeRREHE] Holding Group Finance Company Limited (the 202047 A228
(Pe7E2) “Renewed FS Agreement”) (Note 2) EESRREGR)

(under the Renewed FS
Agreement dated
22 July 2020)

320 310
(BEBHE
202147 A9H K
EERRBRE)
(under the Renewed FS
Agreement dated
9 July 2021)
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The Company had, on 4 January 2021, entered into the renewed raw
materials master supply agreement with Dongyue Organosilicon (a connected
subsidiary of the Company), pursuant to which the Company has agreed
to supply raw materials to Dongyue Organosilicon for its production and
operations up to 31 March 2021. Details of the transaction are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 4 January 2021.

As the renewed raw materials master supply agreement expired on 31 March
2021, on 6 April 2021, the Company had entered into another renewed raw
materials master supply agreement with Dongyue Organosilicon, pursuant
to which the Company has agreed to supply raw materials to Dongyue
Organosilicon for its production and operations up to 31 December 2021.
Details of the transaction are set out in the Company’s announcement dated
6 April 2021.

On 22 July 2020, the Company and Macro-link Finance entered into the
Renewed Financial Services Master Agreement , pursuant to which Marco-
link Finance has agreed to continue to provide Dongyue Polymers with
deposit services on normal commercial terms in its ordinary and usual course
of business for a term of one year from 22 July 2020 to 21 July 2021 with an
annual cap at RMB330,000,000.

As the Renewed Financial Services Master Agreement expired on 21 July
2021, Dongyue Polymers and Macro-link Finance entered into the Renewed
Financial Services Master Agreement on 9 July 2021, pursuant to which
Marco-link Finance has agreed to continue to provide Dongyue Polymers with
deposit services on normal commercial terms in its ordinary and usual course
of business for a term of one year from 22 July 2021 to 21 July 2022 with an
annual cap at RMB320,000,000.

Marco-link Finance is a connected person of the Company, which is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Marco-link Holdings Limited, which indirectly holds
approximately 29.20% (as of 9 July 2021) of the issued share capital of the
Company. In addition, Marco-link Holdings Limited is indirectly controlled by
Mr. Fu Kwan (an executive Director). Details of the transaction are set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 9 July 2021.

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been reviewed
by the INEDs. The INEDs confirmed that the aforesaid continuing

connected transactions were entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual

course of business of the Group; (b) either on normal commercial terms

or on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms available to or

from independent third parties; and (c) in accordance with the relevant

agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and

in the

interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Board engaged the auditors of the Company and the auditor has

confirmed the requirements set out in rule 14A.56 in respect of the

aforesaid continuing connected transactions.
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Related party transactions

The details of the related party transaction during the year ended 31
December 2021 are set out in the note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The related party transactions set out in note 36(d), 36(e) (equity-
settled share-based payments) and 36(f) to the consolidated financial
statements are also the connected transactions (including the
continuing connected transactions) in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules which have been complied with the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Further details
of the connected transactions (including the continuing connected
transactions) are set out in the section “Connected transactions” of this
report.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float of the issued shares of
the Company as required under the Listing Rules.

Auditors

Elite Partners CPA Limited will retire as auditors of the Company and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for
the re-appointment of Elite Partners CPA Limited as auditors of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.
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Tax relief and exemption

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding the Company’s securities.

Permitted indemnity provision

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that the Directors
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they may incur or sustain by reason of
any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duty, or supposed duty, in their offices, provided that such indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Jianhong
Chairman

The People’s Republic of China, 21 March 2022
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The board of Directors (the “Board”) of Dongyue Group Limited (the
“Company”) recognizes their mission of creating values and maximizing
returns to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”), while
at the same time fulfilling their corporate responsibilities. To this end,
we strive to promote and uphold the highest standard of corporate
governance.

The Board has reviewed the corporate governance practices of
the Company with the adoption and improvement of the various
procedures and documentation which are detailed in this report. To
the best knowledge and belief of the Directors, the Company has
adopted and complied with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules (the
“Code") during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date
of this report, except for deviation regarding the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer, the details of which have been disclosed in the
relevant paragraphs below in this report.

The Board

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”), and oversees the Group's
businesses, strategic direction and performance. The Board delegates
the authority and responsibility to the Group’s management for the
management of the Group. In addition, the Board has also delegated
various responsibilities to the Board's Committees. The composition of
the Board is reviewed regularly to ensure that it has a good balance of
expertise, skills and experience which can meet the requirements of the
business of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this
report, except that Mr. Liu Chuangi resigned from his office as the
Company's Executive Director and Mr. Yue Rundong resigned from his
office as the Company'’s Independent non-executive director with effect
from 11 March 2021, and that Mr. Wang Weidong was appointed as the
Company's Executive Director and Mr. Ma Zhizhong was appointed as
the Company’s Independent non-executive director with effect from
the same date, there was no change in the structure of the Board,
which currently comprises nine Directors and its composition is set out
as follows:
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Executive Directors (“EDs"):

Mr. Zhang Jianhong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Fu Kwan

Mr. Liu Chuangi (resigned on 11 March 2021)

Mr. Wang Weidong (President) (appointed on 11 March 2021)
Mr. Zhang Zhefeng (Vice President and Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Zhang Bishu

Mr. Zhang Jian

Independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs"):

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen

Mr. Yang Xiaoyong

Mr. Yue Rundong (resigned on 11 March 2021)
Mr. Ma Zhizhong (appointed on 11 March 2021)

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the “Directors’
and Senior Management's Profile” section on pages 19 to 24 of this
annual report.

The Company has three INEDs representing one-third of the Board.
At least one of the INEDs has appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise pursuant to
Rule 3.10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the HKSE
(the “Listing Rules”). The Board has received from each INED an annual
confirmation of his independence and considers that all the INEDs are
independent under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.
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During the year under review, the Board was met regularly to discuss
the overall strategy as well as the operation and financial performance
of the Group, and to review and approve the Group's annual and
interim results, as well as corporate governance, business operations,
financial, capital and remuneration. During the year under review, six
Board meetings and an annual general meeting ("AGM") were held. The
attendance of each Director at the Board meetings and the AGM is set
out as follows. In addition, certain matters relating to entering of the
continuing connected transaction , placing of the new shares of the
Company and share repurchase were dealt with by written resolutions
of the directors.

During the year, the attendance of each Director at the Board meetings
is set out as follows:

HE BT HERR
EEZgE3R™ BFEXRE
Number of
Board meetings Attendance
attended/held of the AGM
BITES ! EDs:
REBRIE Mr. Zhang Jianhong 6/6 v
BELE Mr. Fu Kwan 2/6* X
BIE 3 A (R2021F3 A1 BEHT) Mr. Liu Chuangi (resigned on 11 March 2021) 0/6 X
TFHRIEE(R20215F3811HEZEZE)  Wang Weidong (appointed on 11 March 2021) 3/6 v/
RIS E Mr. Zhang Zhefeng 6/6 Ve
RNESE Mr. Zhang Bishu 4/6 v/
RELE Mr. Zhang Jian 5/6 v/
BYFHTES: INEDs:
TREBEAE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 6/6 v/
HBEBELE Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 6/6 v/
ERBRE(FR2021F3 811 BEHT) Mr. Yue Rundong (resigned on 11 March 2021) 4/6 X
BERIEAER2021F3F1MBEZIE) M. Ma Zhizhong (appointed on 11 March 2021) 3/6 v

* BELLAZREARREEREHEAELFEES

3
P °

*

Mr. Fu Kwan appointed representative to attend the Board meetings on his
behalf during his absence.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021 the Board has dealt with
matters covering mainly the Group’s overall strategy, annual and interim
results, risk management, dividend policies, corporate governance,
capital, financial, placing of new shares, investment and remuneration.
The Board has delegated the day-to-day operations of the Group to the
senior management under the supervision of the Board. In addition, the
Chairman held the discussion with all the INEDs without the presence
of other EDs to exchange views on matters concerning the business
development and internal control of the Group.

Board meetings are scheduled to be held regularly and as required
by business needs. At least 14 days' notice of regular Board meetings
(or reasonable notice for all other meetings) is normally given
to all Directors who are given an opportunity to include matters
for discussion in the agenda. The Company Secretary assists the
Chairman in preparing the agenda for meetings and ensures that all
applicable rules and regulations are complied with. The agenda and
the accompanying Board papers are normally sent to all Directors at
least 3 days before the intended date of a Board meeting. All minutes
are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

In facilitating the Directors to discharge their responsibilities as
stipulated under the Listing Rules, the Directors have been provided
with monthly updates giving a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance, position and prospects in
sufficient detail and with appropriate insurance cover to protect them
from potential risks arising from legal actions against them while they
discharge their duties.

Directors’ continuous professional development

The Directors are briefed on the amendments to or updates on
the relevant laws, rules and regulations. In addition, the Directors
are provided with written materials to develop and refresh their
professional skills. During the year, the Company organized for the
Directors an in-house training on the Listing Rules.
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According to the records maintained by the Company, the Directors
received the following training on continuous professional development
during the year under review:

EBEZHEEEREN
EE - RAR
ERNERER
Received training on
Corporate Governance/
Updates on laws,

rules and regulations

BiTES ! EDs:

SRIZR L Mr. Zhang Jianhong v/
BEELE Mr. Fu Kwan v/
THRIE Mr. Wang weidong v/
REE T4 Mr. Zhang Zhefeng v/
RMNBLEE Mr. Zhang Bishu v/
REBEAE Mr. Zhang Jian v/
BYEBITES: INEDs:

TRESE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen v/
B A Mr. Yang Xiaoyong v/
BEELE Mr. Ma Zhizhong v

ESELRERTHNER

EERBNERSRELEEANERERILTY
BRENEE - Rt - EXRERZEGRA(HS
BRE)EHARFANCEERBRRELERIALK
NEREESTTRIMAREANNEBRE -

FEHBENAREOEERLZE G | —&HF A
RABCEA o

Directors’ responsibilities in corporate governance

The Directors recognize the importance and their responsibilities for
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance. In this accord,
the corporate governance committee is responsible for, among
others, reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and the Company's compliance with the Code and the
relevant disclosure in this report.

More details are set out under the relevant paragraphs of the section
headed “Corporate Governance Committee” of this report.
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Roles of chairman and chief executive officer

Code C.2.1 of Part 2 of the Code stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Zhang Jianhong is both the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The Board
believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer in the same position provides the Group with stronger and more
consistent leadership and allows for more effective planning. Further,
the Board considers that this structure will not impair the balance
of power, which has been closely monitored by the Board, which
comprises experienced and high caliber individuals. The Board has full
confidence in Mr. Zhang and believes that the current arrangement is
beneficial to the business prospect of the Group.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

The appointment of new Director(s) and other related matters have
been delegated to the Company’s Nomination Committee, which
would make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
including the appointment or reappointment of the Directors of the
Company. The Board considers that the new Director(s) is expected to
have expertise in relevant area to make contribution to the Company
and to have sufficient time to participate in the decision making
process of the Company.
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Except Mr. Wang Weidong, other EDs of the Company did not enter
into service contracts with the Company. Mr. Wang Weidong entered
into the service contract for a term of two years commencing from 11
March 2021. In addition other INEDs (except Mr. Ma Zhizhong) signed
a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of approximately
two years commencing from 1 January 2022. Mr. Ma Zhizhong entered
into the letter of appointment with the Company for a term of two
years commencing from 11 March 2021.

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles”), one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or if the number is not a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation at each AGM in accordance
with the provisions of the Articles. Accordingly, all Directors shall be
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at AGM under the
Articles.

Board committees

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee, an Audit
Committee, a Nomination Committee, a Corporate Governance
Committee and a Risk Management Committee, each of which has its
specific written terms of reference, which have been available on the
Company'’s and the HKSE's websites, and is chaired by INEDs (except
the Nomination Committee and the Corporate Governance Committee).
To further enhance independence, all the committees (except the
Corporate Governance Committee) include a majority of INEDs.

Remuneration committee

The Company has established a remuneration committee to consider
the remuneration for Directors and senior management of the
Company. The remuneration committee comprises Mr. Yang Xiaoyong
(Chairman) and Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen who are independent
non-executive Directors and Mr. Zhang Jianhong who is an executive
Director.



BE2021F12A3BIEFE » HFNEE 2 B8ET
MAEE  SKEMNHEBERESNT

ERERRE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORTS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, two meetings of the
Remuneration Committee was held. The attendance of each member is
set out as follows:

2REE BITER

Number of

meetings

attended/held

ZEE®NXE - Committee member:

B A Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 2/2
TREBEAE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 2/2
REREE Mr. Zhang Jianhong 2/2
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During the meetings the remuneration of the EDs and the Group’s
senior management for the financial year ended 31 December 2021
were approved. In addition, the members discussed and reviewed the
remuneration for the Directors and the Group’s senior management,
the grant of options under employee option scheme and the Group's
remuneration related matters.

The remuneration of the members of the senior management (who
are not the directors of the Company) by band for the year ended 31
December 2021 is set out below:

A
Number of
HENEE (B T) Remuneration bands (HKD) persons

17,500,001 &18,000,000 17,500,001 to 18,000,000 1

BIE_ETARBIM RSB T IERENE B E S5
kAR HIEBNE — P BN BRE
Ber11 %12 »

Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 11 and 12 to the
financial statements.
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Audit committee

The audit committee of the Company was established on 16 November
2007 in accordance with the Listing Rules. The existing audit committee
comprises Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen (Chairman), Mr. Yue Rundong
(resigned on 11 March 2021), Mr. Yang Xiaoyong and Mr. Ma Zhizhong
(appointed on 11 March 2021), all being independent non-executive
Directors.

The audit committee met with the management on 11 March 2022, to
review the accounting standards and practices adopted by the Group
and to discuss matters regarding internal control and financial reporting
including the review of the Group’s annual results for the year ended
31 December 2021 before proposing them to the Board for approval.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year ended 31
December 2021 and the attendance of each member is set out as
follows:

b BT
ZESEINRY
Number of
Committee
meeting
attended/held

ZEEKE - Committee member:

TRIBAEAE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 4/4
BRESE Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 4/4
EER I E(R2021F3 411 BEHTE) Mr. Yue Rundong (resigned on 11 March 2021) 2/4
BEELER2021F3A 1 BEEZE) Mr. Ma Zhizhong (appointed on 11 March 2021) 2/4

ARRINEZBE R AEERHEEABNE
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The external auditors of the Company and the related management of
the Group also attended these meetings.
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During the meetings held in the financial year ended 31 December
2021, the Audit Committee has performed the works which are set out
as follows:

perform pre-audit meetings in respect of the financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2021

discuss and review auditing, internal controls, risk management
and financial reporting matters including the review of the annual/
interim reports, accounts and the related results announcements,
before recommending them to the Board for approval;

approve the remuneration for the audit and non-audit services
provided by the external auditors and its relevant terms of
engagement in respect of the financial year ended 31 December
2020; and

review the external audit findings, the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, the Listing Rules and statutory
compliance in relation to the financial reporting.

On 15 December 2021, the Audit Committee conducted pre-audit
meeting with the external auditors in respect of the audit of the
financial statements of the Group for the financial year ended 31
December 2021. The Audit Committee also had a meeting with
management on 11 March 2022 to review the accounting standards
and practices adopted by the Group and to discuss matters regarding
internal control and financial reporting including the review of the
Group's annual results for the year ended 31 December 2021 before
proposing to the Board for approval.
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Nomination committee

The Company established a nomination committee with written terms
of reference on 18 March 2012 to be responsible for the appointment
of new Director(s) of the Company and other related matters. Mr.
Zhang Jianhong was appointed as the chairman of the nomination
committee and Mr. Yang Xiaoyong and Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
were appointed as the members of the nomination committee.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year ended
31 December 2021 and the attendance of each member is set out as
follows:

SREEBR
Attendance of
the meeting

ZEEGKE - Committee member:

REBRIGE Mr. Zhang Jianhong v
TRERE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen v/
BEBELE Mr. Yang Xiaoyong v/

€L ZBEXEBURTEFSNAKERSE
H  UHRHAESSELERZZAEEZE 5
EEENEZ L  RERAFAELERES
W EE S EfEZ PR ERA A2 BRI
2 R TBIFMITEEHBUIE -

During the meeting, the members discussed matters relating to the
composition of the Board and make recommendation thereon to the
Board for consideration, the diversity of the Board, the re-election of the
directors at AGM, the recommendation of the measurable objectives
that the Board should adopt for implementing the Policy as well as
reviewed the independence of the INEDs.
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In addition, a summary of the Policy for the diversity of the Board is set

out as follows:

A.

Policy Statement

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board. A truly diverse Board will include and make good
use of differences in the skills, regional and industry experience,
background, race, gender and other qualities of Directors. These
differences will be taken into account in determining the optimum
composition of the Board. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity of
the Board.

Measurable Objectives

1. The Nomination Committee will discuss and agree annually
measurable objectives for implementing diversity on the
Board and recommend to the Board for adoption.

2. The Company aims to build and maintain a Board with
a diversity of Directors, in terms of skills, experiences,
knowledge, expertise, culture, independence, age and
gender.

Monitoring and Reporting

1. The Nomination Committee will report annually, in the
Corporate Governance Report, on the Board's composition
under diversified perspectives, and monitor the
implementation of the Policy.

2. A summary of the Policy, together with the measurable
objectives set for implementing the Policy and the progress
made towards achieving those objectives will be disclosed in
the Corporate Governance Report.

Review of the Policy

The Nomination Committee will review the Policy, as appropriate,
and recommend any proposed changes to the Board for approval.
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The Board has adopted the following measurable objectives during the
year ended 31 December 2021:

Inclusion of candidates for Board members with overseas

academic, research or working experience (outside of PRC);

ensuring that there is no limitation on gender on selection of
Directors; and

inclusion of candidates for Board members with working
experience in other industries.

During the year, the Board achieved the above measurable objectives
by which the Board had included both male and female candidates
with overseas academic, research or working experience in other
industries in the selection of Directors.

Corporate Governance Committee

The Company established a corporate governance committee with
written terms of reference on 21 March 2013 to be responsible
for reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance, the Company’s compliance with the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") contained in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules, the relevant disclosure in the report on corporate
governance code and other related matters. Mr. Zhang Jianhong was
appointed as the chairman of the corporate governance committee
and Mr. Liu Chuangi (resigned on 11 March 2021), Mr. Wang Weidong
(appointed on 11 March 2021) and Mr. Zhang Bishu were appointed as
the members of the corporate governance committee.
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GCEERLTESNOBEFERNRIT T —XASH - The Corporate Governance Committee held one meeting during
SREMEFEEREZNT the year under review. The attendance of each member is set out as
follows:

HESE

Attendance of

the meeting

ZEEKE - Committee member:

REREE Mr. Zhang Jianhong v
REFLE(R2021F3/ 11 AEHE) Mr. Liu Chuanai (resigned on 11 March 2021) X
THRIE(R2021F3811BEERT) Mr. Wang Weidong (appointed on 11 March 2021) v/
RNESE Mr. Zhang Bishu v/

REZE2021F12A31BIEFRFERITHEE During the meeting held in the financial year ended 31 December
FoBRRERREREEHER - m&EB T 2021, the members discussed and reviewed matters relating to the
BAARARETEEE AT ZTFENEXRAZR  Company's compliance with code provisions of the CG code and the
AIMBEERBERRER o Company’s policies and practises on corporate governance.
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Risk Management Committee

The Company established a risk management committee with written
terms of reference on 13 August 2015 to review and advise the risk
management and internal control of the Company and other related
matters. Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen was appointed as the chairman of
the risk management committee and Mr. Yang Xiaoyong, Mr. Yue Rundong
(resigned on 11 March 2021) and Mr. Ma Zhizhong (appointed on 11 March
2021) were appointed as the members of the risk management committee.

The Risk Management Committee held two meetings during the year
under review. The attendance of each member is set out as follows:

BT
ZEEEERE
Number of

Committee meeting

attended/held
ZEEXE : Committee member:
TRESE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 2/2
HEEE A Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 2/2
BRI AE(R202143 811 HEHT) Mr. Yue Rundong (resigned on 11 March 2021) 1/2
BEEAE(R2021F3A 1 BEEZT) Mr. Ma Zhizhong (appointed on 11 March 2021) 1/2
REE2021F12A31 B IEHBRERRITHNEZE During the meetings held in the financial year ended 31 December
o BRRERREREES AR  wm&EB T 2021, the members discussed and reviewed matters relating to

BRARRAREEEEMERR LR EEEERN
EHARARERERE (RBIEARRRRE) -

the Company’s internal control measures and polices and its
implementation, and the internal control report (prepared by the
independent consulting firm), before recommending them to the Board
for approval.
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Respective responsibilities of Directors and
external auditors

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements,
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of
the Group's results and cash flows. The external auditors are responsible
to form an independent opinion, based on the audit, on the financial
statements prepared by the Directors and report the opinion solely to the
members of the Company as a body and for no other purpose.

Risk management and internal control

The Board of Directors is responsible for assessing and determining
the nature and extent of the risks that the Group is willing to accept
in reaching its strategic objectives and to ensure that the Group has
established and maintained appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems. The Board of Directors has supervised
the management’s design, implementation and monitoring of risk
management and internal control systems. The Board confirmed that
it is responsible for establishing risk management and internal control
systems for the Group and will continue to monitor the system and
ensure to review the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Company and its principal subsidiaries at least
once a year.

The Company’s Board of Directors, Audit Committee and Risk
Management Committee have also confirmed that they have reviewed
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group and its principal subsidiaries, covering all important
monitoring aspects of the Group, including strategic, financial,
operational and compliance monitoring.

The Company has set up internal audit function. The Company has also
conducted procedures of risk management, which mainly include:

1) identify risk and form risk list;

2) Based on the possibility of various types of potential risks and
the concerns of the management of the Group, combined with
the risk of financial losses, make risk assessment on the impact
of operational efficiency, sustainable development capacity and
reputation, and prioritize them;
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Identify risk management measures for significant risks, conduct
evaluations of the design of risk management measures, and
improve the deficiencies through formulating measures;

Develop risk management manuals for risk management, identify
the responsibilities for the management, Board of Directors, Audit
Committee and Risk Management Committee in risk management,
and continuously monitor risk management;

The management has reported to the Audit Committee and Risk
Management Committee on the review and assessment of risk
management, major risk factors and related response measures.

However, risk management and internal control systems are designed

to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failing to reach a business

goal, and to make reasonable, not absolute, warranties of no significant

misrepresentation or loss.

Set out below is the Company’s procedures and internal controls for

handling and distributing inside information:

The Company acknowledges its obligations under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules. The first principle
is that the information should be immediately published when
the Company is aware of and/or when the related decision is
made, unless such inside information falls under the Safe Harbour
Provisions under the Securities and Futures Ordinance;

In dealing with the matters, adhere to the Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information promulgated by the Securities
and Futures Commission in June 2012 and the “Recent Economic
Developments and the Disclosure Obligations of Listed Issuers”
issued by the SEHK in 2008; and

Unauthorized use of confidential or inside information has been
expressly prohibited in the internal system.



EEgC R NBEFENRREEMAMEIER
BOBME  RRZEEABARNEH - EFR
B ERENEERREEMAREZERRNG
M

SRR B ET AV =

HZE2001F12A3181EFE - INEZHANIRHE
¥ AR 75 &Y BN & 42 %8 /5 2,800,00058 T (4 A A R #E
2,323,0007T) ©

BHZE2021F12A31BIEFE - INEZBENIREET
A 3E 1% AR 75 B0 Bl & 48 58 49 /800,000 70 (K49 4
AR#656,0007T) - Al AR EB B ZE 202156 H30
H 7S B A B AR S B R B R s o

BERZEQERBEBRIEREHMELHMA
RAFTRARRZEEN  WEEREZERE - H#
BERZEAGHRRAERERRBFAS LHER
SAHEE ©

EEREHRG

ARTBRMEETANE AR A S EHEF LT
BHRPNTHTA - GIEHABENE  EF
RRKESNEWEEE AT ERETARBR TR

% o

ERERRE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORTS

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems during the year under review and considered
them to be effective and adequate. The Board will continuously
improve and monitor the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems.

External auditor’'s remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the total remuneration for
the audit services provided by the external auditors amounted to
HK$2,800,000 (approximately RMB2,323,000).

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the total remuneration for
the permissible non-audit services provided by the external auditors
amounted to approximately HK$800,000 (approximately RMB656,000
which is for the review of the interim financial report of the Group for the
six months period ended 30 June 2021.

The re-appointment of Elite Partners CPA Limited as auditor of the Company
has been recommended by the Audit Committee and endorsed by the
Board and is subject to approval by the Shareholders at the forthcoming
AGM.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions. Having been made specific
enquiry, the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code during the Relevant Period.
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Shareholders’ rights

Procedures for the Shareholders to convene extraordinary
general meetings (“EGM")

Pursuant to the Articles, one or more registered Shareholders holding
not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid up capital of the Company (the
"EGM Requisitionists”) carrying right of voting at the general meetings
can deposit a written requisition to convene an EGM to the Board
or the Company Secretary at the registered office, which is presently
situated at Vistra (Cayman) Limited, P.O. Box 31119, Grand Pavilion,
Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand Cayman, KY1-1205, Cayman
Islands, or its office in Hong Kong, which is presently situated at Unit
21, 26/F, Tower 1, Admiralty Centre, 18 Harcourt Road, Admiralty,
Hong Kong. The EGM Requisitionists must state in their requisition the
businesses of the EGM to be transacted and such requisition must be
signed by all the EGM Requisitionists.

Promptly after confirmation that the EGM Requisitionists’ requisition is
in order, the Company Secretary will arrange with the Board to convene
the EGM by serving sufficient notice to all the registered Shareholders
in accordance with all the relevant statutory requirements. According
to the Articles, the EGM shall be held within two months after the
deposit of the requisition. If within twenty-one days of the deposit of
the requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene the EGM, the
EGM Requisitionists may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by them as a result of failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the EGM Requisitionists by the Company.

Procedures for the Shareholders to put forward proposals
at a general meeting

To put forward proposals at AGM or EGM, the Shareholders should
submit a written notice of those proposals with their detailed contact
information to the Board or the Company Secretary at Unit 21, 26/F,
Tower 1, Admiralty Centre, 18 Harcourt Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong.
The request will be verified and upon confirmation that the request is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will request the Board to
include the resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.
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The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for consideration
of the proposal raised by the Shareholders concerned at AGM or SGM
varies according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

At least 14 clear days’ notice in writing if the proposal constitutes
an ordinary resolution of the Company in EGM

At least 21 clear days’ notice in writing if the proposal constitutes
a special resolution of the Company in EGM or an ordinary or
special resolution of the Company in AGM

Procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director

As regards the procedures for proposing a person for election as
a Director, please refer to the procedures made available on the
Company's website www.dongyuechem.com.

Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose contact details
are as follows:

Unit 21, 26/F, Tower 1
Admiralty Centre,

18 Harcourt Road

Admiralty, Hong Kong

Fax: 2180-7524

Email: carrie_dy@hotmail.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at any general
meetings of the Company.
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Investor relations

Communication channels

In order to develop and maintain continuing relationships with the
Shareholders, the Company has established various channels to
facilitate and enhance communication:

the AGM provides a forum for the Shareholders to raise comments
and exchange views with the Board; and

updated key information of the Group is available on the
Company's website to enable the Shareholders and the investor
community to have timely access to information about the Group.

The Chairman and the Directors (including the chairmen and/or the
members of the various Board Committees) are available at AGM to
answer questions raised by the Shareholders.

Change in the constitutional documents of
the Company

During the year under review and up to the date of this report, there
has been no change in the constitutional documents of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Jianhong
Chairman

The People’s Republic of China, 21 March 2022
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About the report

Time frame

The report covers from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021, while
partial contents are beyond the above time frame.

Publication cycle

The environmental, social and governance ("ESG") report of Dongyue
Group Limited is published on an annual basis.

Scope of report

The report covers the headquarters of Dongyue Group Limited
and its subsidiaries including: Dongyue Fluorosilicon Science and
Technology Group Co., Ltd., Shangdong Dongyue Chemical Co.,
Limited, Shandong Dongyue Polymers Co., Ltd.Shandong Dongyue
Fluo-Silicon Materials Co., Ltd,, Shandong Huaxia Shenzhou New
Materials Co., Ltd., Shandong Dongyue Organosilicon Materials Co.,
Ltd, Inner Mongolia Dongyue Peak Fluorine Chemicals Co., Ltd., Inner
Mongolia Dongyue Fluorine Chemicals Co,, Ltd., Chifeng HuaSheng
Mining Co., Ltd., Dongying Dongyue Salt Co., Ltd., Shandong
Dongyue Wenhe Fluorine Chemicals Co., Ltd., Shandong Dongyue
Union Property Co., Ltd., Huangtai Dongyue International Trade Co.,
Ltd,, Hong Kong Trulene International Trade Co., Ltd., Shandong
Boda Real Estate Development Co,, Ltd., Zhangjiajie Xinye Real Estate
Development Co,, Ltd., Zibo Herun Shuiwu company Limited.

. Basis of preparation

The report has been prepared in reference to the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.

Explanations on short names

For ease of presentation, “Dongyue Group Limited” is expressed as

"Dongyue Group”, “the Group”, “the Company” and “we”, “our” or
“us” in the report.
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VI. Explanations on Information

Historical data cited in the report is the final statistical data. In case
of any discrepancy between financial data and annual report, the
latter shall prevail. Unless otherwise stated, Renminbi is used in the
report as functional currency.

VII.Access to report

The report is prepared in Chinese and English, which can be
downloaded electronically from:

The website of HKSE http://sc.hkex.com.hk

The website of Dongyue Group Limited http://www.dongyuechem.
com/

Board Statement

The purpose of this statement is to explain the governance and supervision
responsibilities of the Board of the Dongyue Group with respect to ESG
related work.

Dongyue Group Limited has always believed that corporate governance
and risk management are essential components of sustainable corporate
development. In the process of sustainable development, the Group
continues to enhance its concern and commitment to the three
dimensions of ESG, integrating corporate development with society and
the environment, contributing to good industry development, driving
environmental improvement with its own resources, developing together
with society and creating value together.
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The Group has put in place a management structure for its ESG work with
the Board as the responsible party. The Board focuses on the sustainable
development performance of Dongyue Group Limited, formulates the
overall ESG strategy of the Company, receives reports on ESG management
work, reviews management results and follows up on the formulation and
achievement of ESG work targets. The ESG working group, as a division
of the Group's Investor Relations Department, is responsible for the day-
to-day implementation and execution of ESG work and the management
of risks related to various aspects of ESG. Based on the domestic and
international economic and social macro environment and the Company’s
development strategy, the Company conducts regular assessments of
important ESG issues, discusses the risks and opportunities of the Company
in relation to ESG, and considers the management and enhancement
of key issues as an annual ESG priority. At the same time, the Company
organized internal and external events to enhance communication with
stakeholders. The Group publishes annual ESG reports in compliance with
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s guideline documents on ESG, and the
Board is responsible for the review and validation of ESG reports.

In 2021, the Board has conducted major review and supervision on the core
tasks of the following key issues, including R&D innovation, production
safety, compliance operation green products, and energy saving and
emission reduction.

This report discloses in detail the progress and effectiveness of the ESG

work of Dongyue Group Limited in 2021, and was submitted to the Board
for consideration and approval on 21 March 2022.
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ESG Management

In order to ensure effective sustainable development, Dongyue Group has
established an ESG management system led by the Board and organized by
a working group and executed by relevant functional departments, which
coordinates the working mechanism of each responsible department and
clarifies the working responsibilities at each level, allowing the Group's
sustainable development work to be more professional, systematic and
standardized.

SRR FERE

Decision-making
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e & ER=E ey
The Board of the Company rewevved and decided on major social responsibility matters,
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including formulating relevant strategies and guidelines and performing special reviews
on the annual ESG report.
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Organization
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The Company established a special task group in the investor relations department for
coordinating ESG management related tasks on a daily basis, including the preparation
of the annual ESG report, collection of ESG performance indicators and organization of
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training and promotion.
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HITRE Respective functional departments and subsidiaries of the Company were responsible for

Execution

activities.

the centralized management of ESG issues, and regular reports of relevant management
initiatives, performance indicators and best practices and organizing all types of ESG
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Dongyue Group has always regarded the requests of stakeholders as one
of the significant channels for the sustainable development of the Group.
The Company establishes a diversified communication and participation
mechanism, collects, compiles and analyzes the requests and suggestions
from various stakeholders through multiple channels, responds to them in
a timely manner, handles them appropriately, and continuously improves
the effectiveness of stakeholder participation in practice.
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Ways of communication and response
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Government and regulators

BRR

Shareholders

BEFREERME

Customers and partners

BIR

Environment

ERCEBERRBREERR
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Implementing the national policies, laws and

regulations

Promoting local economic development

Driving local employment
Production safety
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BRER

Returns on investment
Compliance operation
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HEITEER

Fulfilling the contractual obligations in
accordance with the law

Integrity operation

Quality products and services

Promoting industry development
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Emission compliance

Energy conservation and emission reduction

Protecting the ecology
Addressing climate change issues
Water resources management

R
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RERE

Submitting the documents
Offering advice and suggestions
Special subject report
Inspection & supervision
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Company announcement
Special subject report
Field investigation

EsER
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Business communication
Customer feedback
Exchange & discussion
Negotiation & cooperation
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Work report

Filing and submission
Investigation & inspection
Policy monitoring
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The Group takes the understanding of stakeholders’ concern for the
sustainability of the Company as the basis for examining the effectiveness
of the Group's internal issues by identifying key ESG issues through
materiality analysis in accordance with the requirements of the ESG
Reporting Guidelines of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.

In 2021, in light of the changes in the global political situation and the
adjustment of national policy direction, as well as the changing trend
of market and downstream customer demand, the Group updated the
determination of significance, and raised the issue of “energy conservation
and emission reduction” as an important issue.
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1. Responsible Operation

Dongyue Group has always believed that operating in accordance
with the law, standardized operation, safety first and steady
development are the criteria for the business operations and healthy
development of the Company. The Group has established a solid
governance system and procedures to ensure legal compliance in
its operations and to further enhance the quality of its products and

services, so that the Company can operate steadily and efficiently,

thereby achieving long-term sustainable development.

1.1 BIEER
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1.1 Integrity and Compliance

Dongyue Group adheres to its business ethics of “embracing
all with a high virtue, building itself on integrity”, insists on
regulating itself with high standards and strict requirements in
the interaction with various stakeholders, and strives to build
a corporate image of integrity and honesty.

On the basis of strict compliance with relevant domestic laws
and regulations such as the Opinions on Issues Concerning
the Application of Law in the Handling of Criminal Cases of
Commercial Briberies and Interpretation on Several Issues
Concerning the Application of Law in the Handling of Criminal
Cases of Embezzlement and Bribery, the Group has formulated
internal business rules and regulations covering all subsidiaries
Dongyue Group Risk Management Manual and Dongyue Group
Regulations on Anti-fraud Management to strengthen the
construction of the Group’s internal corruption-free culture
and further regulate the operating activities of the Company
and the business conduct of its employees.
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The Group continues to promote the construction of a
corruption-free culture and strengthen the implementation
of discipline inspection and supervision. Through various
communication channels, such as report mailbox, report
letterbox and report hotline, the Company strictly recommends
reporting of fraud, discipline, violation of law, corruption and
other violations. On 7 May 2021, the Discipline Inspection
Committee of Dongyue Group convened the Discipline
Inspection and Supervision kick-off meeting to clarify a number
of specific tasks of discipline inspection and supervision for
the year 2021, set a red line for discipline inspection and
supervision, establish two responsibility targets for integrity and
self-discipline, and further standardize the discipline inspection
and supervision procedures. In 2021, Dongyue Group issued
the Notice of the Party Committee of the Group on Reaffirming
the " Alcohol Prohibition” and “Travel Ban” and the Notice
on Strengthening Party Members and Cadres to Fulfill their
Responsibilities and Discipline themselves with Integrity during
the National Day and Mid-Autumn Festival, which further put
forward requirements on personal integrity and integrity of
key positions. The Group has formed a two-level discipline
inspection and monitoring system for the Group and its
subsidiaries to monitor members and key positions in each
division. The second-level discipline inspection and supervision
team is responsible for monitoring the management cadres and
party members at the shift manager level and above to achieve
efficient and comprehensive supervision and management to
prevent irregularities from occurring. In 2021, we interviewed
1,712 front-line cadres and employees, and posted disciplinary
and supervisory reporting channels at each company’s clock-in
and clock-out points to achieve barrier-free reporting. In 2021,
the Company received a total of 18 letters, and then interviewed
53 issues, and after in-depth investigation, a total of 16 issues
were verified, involving 7 cadres. After the feedback of each
unit, 3 cadres were dealt with, and 5 people received warnings.
The disciplinary work has effectively regulated the style of the
cadres, discouraged corruption, and achieved the expected
goals in disciplinary rectification. Based on the effective
guarantee of disciplinary inspection, the Group also conducted
a series of anti-corruption training. The total number of hours
of anti-corruption training in 2021 amounted to 361,080 hours,
providing more in-depth assistance to employees to enhance
their anti-corruption awareness, and the training was highly
effective.
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As of December 31, 2021, the Dongyue Group did not have
any corruption cases.

Quality Products

Dongyue Group provides quality products as the basis, builds on
thelong term, strictly controls the quality of products, completes
the delivery with high standards, and continuously improves
its core competitiveness. The Company strictly complied with
and strictly executed the Product Quality Law of the People’s
Republic of China, established rules such as the Quality System
Management Manual, Quality Management System, Measures
for the Implementation of Quality Management Assessment
and other systems, and apply strict quality inspection in all
procedures such as raw material purchasing, manufacturing
and quality inspection. The Company also has the same strict
requirements for equipment quality control, formulated the
Quality Management System on Procurement of the Group'’s
Equipment to have institutional requirements for equipment
procurement. The Group established a comprehensive
management system with a Dongyue style by taking in
different advantages of DuPont’'s management solutions of
equipment, environmental management system, occupational
health, quality control, technology control and safety control.
In 2021, the Company continued to improve the QHSE
management system for process professionals and revised
seven management systems, including Process Management
Control Procedures, Alarm Management System, Interlocking
Management System and Safety Operation Procedures
Management System, to further meet the quality compliance
management requirements.

The Group strictly complies with national quality inspection
standards and controls the product inspection process. The
Company disposed of the unaccepted products in accordance
with the Nonconforming Product Control & Management
Procedures to ensure the delivery of quality products to our
customers. In 2021, the top grade of Dongyue Group's products
reached 99.23% in total, representing an increase of 0.18%
year-on-year, and the qualification rate of raw materials reached
97.42%, representing an increase of 0.37% year-on-year. In 2021,
there were no product safety and health issues or product
recalls for Dongyue Group.
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Table: Dongyue Group's share of top product quality grades
in 2021
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Highest grade Year-on-year
Product type percentage increase
ISV Polymers 98.61% 0.21%
BHenE Organic Silicone 99.47% 0.17%
TS Shenzhou 97.83% 0.26%
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The Group has been enjoying a good reputation in the global
market forits high quality products. It adheres to the construction
concept of new energy, new environmental protection and new
material industry, relying on new environmental refrigerant,
fluoropolymer materials, organosilicone materials, chlor-alkali
ion membrane and other high-tech. It also achieved a leading
position in the world by responding to products and has
reached good partnership with famous domestic and foreign
enterprises.
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1.3 Quality Services

Dongyue Group actively listens to the feedback of its
customers and uses it to inspire the growth and progress
of the Company. The Company expands communication
channels with customers, using phone calls, emails, door-to-
door visits, organizing annual customer meetings and other
quick and effective ways to reach efficient communication with
customers. On this basis, the Group conducts investigations
into customer complaints and opinions in accordance with
the Customer Complaint Management Measures, formulates
feedback measures on relevantissues and summarizes opinions.
By relying on the perfect customer feedback mechanism, the
Group has established long-term and stable contact with
customers and gained extensive trust and recognition from
them. To enhance employees’ awareness of confidentiality,
the Company has established a confidentiality training system
for in-service employees and a corresponding assessment
mechanism to provide employees with targeted training
according to different technical programs, areas involved,
and confidentiality methods, so as to strengthen employees’
awareness of confidentiality. This year, we completed six two-
level systems, including the Records Management System, the
Records Retention System, and the Records Loan System.

The Group establishes targeted communication channels
in accordance with the specific business arrangements of
its subsidiaries and establishes individualized requirements
for customers, thereby enhancing the quality of services.
We hope to maintain a long-term win-win relationship with
our customers and strive to improve the overall customer
experience and provide good service to our customers. During
2021, Dongyue Group received 16 complaints from customers,
and the resolution rate was 100%.
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1.4 Assuring Supply

In order to ensure the quality of supplied products, the Group
formulated the Dongyue Group Materials Purchasing Process
to comprehensively strengthen the management of various
aspects such as supplier access and procurement. The Group
manages its suppliers in a comprehensive and systematic
manner in accordance with the Supplier Management System.
The Company pays full attention to the performance of suppliers
and sets requirements for suppliers’ production quality and
performance evaluation, and works together with suppliers to
make progress and build a good relationship between supply
and demand. In 2021, in response to the rapid changes in
the raw material market, the Company further strengthened
the quality control at source of suppliers, strictly executed
the contract and quality tracking and investigation feedback
system, reduced the procurement cost, ensured the quality
of raw and auxiliary material supply, and fully protected the
production. From January to November 2021, the quality pass
rate of major raw material purchases reached 96.07%.

Currently, the Group's suppliers are divided into three categories
according to the scope of supplied products: major raw material
suppliers, suppliers of packaging and auxiliary materials, and
suppliers of production equipment and other equipment. As
of the end of the reporting period, the Group had a total of
790 suppliers, of which 513 passed the quality management
system (ISO9000) certification, 495 passed the environmental
management system (ISO 14000) certification, and 490 passed
the occupational health and safety management system
certification.
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2. Led by Innovation

Dongyue Group has always regarded technological research and
innovation as the driving force for sustainable development of
the enterprise. With the development direction of “technology,
environmental protection and internationalization”, the Group
continuestoimprove the Company’stechnological R&D andinnovation
system, establish a healthy incentive mechanism for innovative
talents, and build up its technological core competitiveness. Based
on its intellectual property rights, the Company actively engages in
technical exchanges and cooperation within the industry to help
the industry develop sustainably.
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2.1 Inspire Technology Innovation

Dongyue Group insists on putting technology innovation at
the core of the Group’s construction, and standardizes the
management of technology innovation by comprehensively
sorting out the processes of performance management, resource
management, quality management, training management
and risk management. The Group has continuously improved
the management system such as Incentive Scheme for
Technological Innovation in Dongyue Group, Application
Process for Invention and Innovation, Patent Innovation and
Award System and Dongyue Group Patent Management
System, clarified the legal changes related to copyright, set up
product implementation awards and technology achievement
awards, and established a standardized intellectual property
management system covering the stages of R&D, patent
application, evaluation, result management and award, so as to
encourage technology innovation and technological progress
in all aspects.

Taking fluorine, silicone, membrane and hydrogen industry
chains as the main line, Dongyue Group extensively cooperates
with universities and research institutes such as Tsinghua
University, Shandong University, Beijing University of Chemical
Technology and Shanghai Institute of Organic Science, Chinese
Academy of Sciences, to strengthen the R&D of key technologies
in new energy, intelligent materials, medicine and health and
other strategic new industry fields related to the scientific issues
in the innovation chain. The Group has established 20 joint
laboratories, including a silicone laboratory with Shandong
University and a perfluorinated resin catalyst laboratory with
Shanghai University of Applied Science and Technology. The
Group’s Central Research Institute, six company research
institutes, six global R&D centres and 20 joint laboratories form
Dongyue’s new “621" scientific research system. As the leading
scientific research unit, Dongyue Group focuses on R&D, fully
mobilizes the enthusiasm of technological innovation and
integrates a joint scientific research mechanism.
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2.2 EARIFRE

In 2021, the company invested a total of RMB838.89 million in
R&D, submitted 93 patent applications and obtained 70 licenses,
with over 460 valid patents and 87 registered trademarks,
achieving a new breakthrough in the number and scope of
registrations. In 2021, Dongyue Group entered into 18 new
cooperation projects, with 43 projects are under research, 21
high-level papers were published, and four projects, including
trans-temperature proton membrane, hydrogen electrolysis
membrane, power station and commercial demonstration,
received national key support as advanced technologies, and
were also included in the 14th Five-Year Plan.

2.2 Application Innovative Achievements
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Application Project Research and Pilot scale-up Product

and market evaluation and development and sample commercialization

development
phase

start-up phase

phase

delivery phase

and production
phase
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Dongyue Group is committed to building a full industrial
chain of “fluorine, silicone, membrane and hydrogen” high-
tech technologies, combining scientific research with the
result transformation, converting application innovations into
actual products, and commercializing products to meet the

requirements of the market and customers.

Dongyue Group clearly divides the stages of product
development and transformation into the following:

In 2021, Dongyue Group has achieved remarkable innovation,
and a number of environmentally friendly products have been
successfully marketed and applied.

Dongyue Group has developed four types of PVDF (fluorine
coating resin, fluorinated powder coating resin and raw
material for lithium battery electrode bonding material) for
coating grade, water treatment film grade, photovoltaic
grade and lithium grade, and developed environment-
friendly PVDF, which is applied to new energy field and
power lithium battery production, breaking foreign
monopoly and realizing PVDF nationalization.

In order to meet the procurement demand of PTFE
(polytetrafluoroethylene dispersion resin) in the high-
end closed-up field, Dongyue Group's R&D team has
actively carried out relevant research and produced
environmentally friendly dispersion resin products that
are free of the persistent pollutant, perfluorooctanoic
acid, and each technical index of the products meets
the technical requirements of the industry, breaking the
monopoly of foreign technology and market.

A synthetic fluoropolymer with high level of resistance to temperature changes,
electrical insulation, and aging and chemical resistant that is used as a coating
material and can also be further processed into high-end fine chemicals which
can be widely applied in the chemicals, construction, electrical and electronics
and automotive industries.
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2.3 Nurturing Leading Talents

Dongyue Group regards the accumulation and retainment
of talents as the first resource for technological research and
development and enterprise development, and according to
the talent policy of “Reflecting values with benefits, and using
wealth to return intelligence”, we focus on cultivating a high-
quality talent team, innovating talent mechanism, and building

core competitiveness in science and technology.

In 2021, the Group established scientific, efficient and open
standards and procedures for the introduction of talents
through the implementation of management systems such
as the Regulations on the Management of Professional and
Technical Talents to create a favorable innovation environment
for researchers. At the same time, the Group continues to
improve the Scientific Research Award Management
Regulations, Selection of Outstanding Scientific Research Talents
in the Research Institute and other systems to clarify the award
settings and reward methods for scientific researchers, and
to stimulate the enthusiasm and creativity of the Company’s
technological innovation talents by means of the Outstanding
Worker Recognition Ceremony.
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Dongyue Group continues to innovate talent mechanism in
practice to promote rapid and efficient development of the
enterprise. Currently, the Group has formed five major talent
mechanisms, including the talent introduction mechanism
of “special policy for special talents”, the talent selection
mechanism of “putting actual working performance above
talent identification”, the talent integration mechanism of
“not seeking to own but seeking to use”, the talent incentive
mechanism of “equity, options, incentives plus commission”
and the globalization mechanism of “where the talents are,
where Dongyue will go”; and implemented the “Five 100" talent
projects. The Group has a national-level enterprise technology
centre, a postdoctoral workstation and a Taishan scholar
position, and has undertaken major technology projects such
as the China Torch Program, the “863" Program and the National
Technology Support Program. The Group has proposed the
"621" Taishan Climbing Plan, established 6 R&D centers in
different countries and regions, and built 16 R&D platforms
with Beijing University of Chemical Technology, Shandong
University and Lanzhou Institute of Chemical Physics of Chinese
Academy of Sciences to attract scientific research talents from
all over the world for the high-quality development of Dongyue
Group. In 2021, the Group has 573 researchers including 30
doctoral researchers and 178 master’s researchers.
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2.4 Leading Industry Development

While paying attention to its own technological innovation,
Dongyue Group actively engages in technical exchanges and
cooperation with its peers, actively joins industry associations
and organizations, participates in relevant technological
research and industry standards development, and promotes

the common progress of the industry and its partners.

As the vice chairman of the Fluorosilicone Association, the
director of the China Petroleum and Chemical Industry
Federation, chairman of the Fluoroplastics Processing
Association, the deputy secretary-general of the Membrane
Industry Association, and the Chariman of Zibo Hydrogen
Energy Strategic Alliance, the Group actively organizes and
presides over the academic exchange meetings of the industry.
In addition, Dongyue Group has actively participated in the
development of 21 standards, including 1 national standard,
3 industry standards, 9 group standards and 8 enterprise
standards.

3. Security

In accordance with the philosophy of “safety and environmental
protection is the first value of Dongyue”, the Group strictly complied
with national laws and regulations such as the Safe Production
Law of The People’s Republic of China, implemented the national
standards in relation to safe production. By fully implementing the
safety production management system, Dongyue Group built a safe
production line of defense, strengthened its safety risk management
o on an ongoing basis, established a good safety culture to protect

the safety of employees and suppliers.
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3.1 Management of Safety System

Dongyue Group follows the Safety Production Law and other
relevant national laws and regulations, and strives to build
a complete safety system. In 2021, in cooperation with the
China Association of Chemical Scientists, the framework of
“Dongyue Fluorosilicon Technology Group QHSE System”
was revised and formed, including 20 primary elements, 66
secondary elements, 170 items of management procedures and
systems. The Group has formulated internal safety management
documents such as Management System of Safety Operation
Procedures, Management System of Team Safety Activities,
and Management System of Safety Leadership”, to start from
standardized management and safety information construction,
the Group roots safety production and occupational health
management in every detail of operation by setting safety
targets.

To strengthen the importance of safety management and
coordinate the advantageous resources to be put in safety
management, the Group has set up the Production Safety
Committee (“PSC") consisting of Chairman as director, President
as vice director, Group Vice President, all department heads
and general managers of all subsidiaries as members, and the
percentage of general employees in the PSC is 6.70%. The
PSC holds regular meetings to acquaint themselves with the
production safety management performance within the Group,
look into the problems in the production safety recently and
lay down countermeasures.
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Enterprise culture

Construction of a Dual System

The Group carried out the construction of a “Dual System” of
risk grading and hidden danger screening, thus keeping a close
eye on the prevention and treatment of risks. The Company
set up a team of leaders for its risk grading management and
control system led by the general manager, with the vice
director of production and chief technical engineer as the
deputy team leaders, and the heads of the production lines as
the members, with clarified responsibilities of each member,
and detailed work plans and processes to ensure safety. The
Company assisted its subsidiary companies in constructing the
“Dual System” with special counseling, aiming to promote a
scientific and effective safety management model.

Standardized Management

On the basis of safety standardization, the Group learnt
from the international leaders in building a unified safety
management system within the Group, and classified and
managed the elements, establishing eight management teams.
Meanwhile, the Company uses the Dynamic Tracking Table
of the Management System of Dongyue Group to guide the
administrator of each element to optimize each management
standard and form, and check on the implementation of
each regulation, with regular assessment and strengthened
supervision, which has effectively improved the execution of
safety management.

TEZR®

Process safety

&R

Electric instrument

AEHNERER

Contractor and
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Safety Information Construction

In 2021, Dongyue Group continues to improve the Dongyue
Safety and Environmental Risk Monitoring, Early Warning and
Emergency Management System based on 3D Geographic
Information System (GIS), which allows one to keep abreast
of the Group's real-time safety operation by controlling
and managing the four modules of map, safety production,
environmental monitoring and contingency plan. The system
is supported by 2D and 3D GIS, focusing on the Group's
safety, environment and contingency businesses, and has the
functions of online monitoring and early warning as well as
emergency dispatching and analysis for business data such
as 93 major production equipment, 73 major hazard sources,
47 hazardous chemical storage areas and 233 storage tanks,
which the cap renewal is expected to be completed in 2022.

The Group has carried out safety information construction
work in various aspects such as security system, material access
and dangerous chemical transportation control, continued to
promote process safety automation and informationization,
strengthened alarm management, upgraded old DCS control
system (distributed control system), optimized APC (advanced
process control) for continuous devices, completed real-time
operation load, real-time monitoring and informationized
monitoring of devices, improved accuracy, strictness and
continuity of data, and strongly guaranteed the safety and
stability of the process.
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There are vehicle capturing and surveillance at key intersections outside the park, and
3 new high points of panoramic surveillance are installed to monitor the park 24 hours
a day in real time. The entrances are equipped with vehicle identification and face
recognition access control facilities. Employees and long-term construction workers
who have passed the safety training are registered for access control information and
have access with face recognition. Currently, face recognition has been implemented
for clocking in and out and automatically generating reports together with other

functions. J
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Inbound vehicle drivers and transporters must undergo safety training and be familiar
with the nature of the goods they transport. Raw materials, finished products and

other materials use a card system for leaving the factory in an orderly manner, and

leaving the factory requires an exit permit. Dangerous goods warehouses involving
explosive and toxic substances are equipped with access control systems and video
surveillance, and cooperate with public security departments to ensure management
and control.
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The Group strictly complied with its regulations on the transportation management of
hazardous chemicals and monitors the hazardous chemicals transport vehicles
entering the park. Moreover, the Group fully implemented electronic waybills for
hazardous chemicals and monitored vehicles entering the park in real time through
the monitoring platform for the hazardous chemicals park. It also diverted trafficin a
timely manner based on the number and time of hazardous chemicals transport
vehicles arriving at the factory to minimize the time for vehicles entering the park to
queue for unloading, so as to prevent hazardous chemical vehicles for staying for a
long time.
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The Group adopted a positioning system for hazardous chemical transport vehicles to
monitor the positioning and route of vehicles within a range of 20 km radius of the
park.
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3.2 Security Risk Prevention and Control

Dongyue Group places great emphasis on safety risk prevention
and control, and prevents the occurrence of safety accidents
by continuously carrying out safety production and operation
management, potential hazard investigation and rectification,
as well as accident emergency response and drills. In addition,
the Group encourages contractors and other partners to carry
out safety management and inspections to enhance supply
chain health and safety. In 2021, Dongyue Group invested a
total of RMB664.348 million in safety production. There was no
safety production accident during the year, and 1,880 hours
were lost due to work-related injuries, while there was no severe
work-related death of employees for three consecutive years.

Safe Production and Operation

Dongyue Group highly values the safety of production and
operation, and focuses on the safety policy of “safety first,
prevention as the mainfocus,and comprehensive management”,
and carries out a number of tasks to strengthen the safety
of production and operation, and puts safety responsibilities
in place, striving to achieve innovative safety supervision,
enhanced safety measures, and effective safety mechanisms.

Signing of HSE target responsibility letter: The Group
implements the responsibility system of safety production
with the first responsible person of each department. HSE
target responsibility letter is signed through layers to
achieve “full coverage, zero tolerance, strict assessment,
and high effectiveness”. It clarifies the responsibilities of
each position, strictly controls various accident indicators,
analyzes, summarizes and solves the problems and
inadequacies in safety work, and enhances the awareness
of safety production responsibilities of the company’s
management staff at all levels.
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Development of HAZOP analysis: HAZOP analysis is a
structured analysis method used to identify design defects,
process hazards and operational problems by analyzing
changes in process state parameters during production
operations and possible deviations in operational control.
HAZOP analysis can effectively improve the analysis of
abnormal work conditions and the ability to predict
hazards by the post personnel, enhance the safety
technology level, and fundamentally improve the safety
and operability of the process of each device.

Production process and technical inspection activities:
The Group conducts professional internal audits,
monthly process inspections, pre-commencement safety
inspections of new projects and other special inspections,
covering process safety information, safety operating
procedures, and process hazard analysis. In 2021, a
special inspection was conducted on safety instrumented
system (SIS) inspection and testing, automated control
and mechanized operation, and the relevant issues were
actively rectified based on feedback.

Fire safety inspection: The Group organizes a fire safety
inspection once a month, including fire pumps, water
reservoirs, fire hydrants, fire extinguishers and other fire
fighting facilities and equipment, and organizes a review
to eliminate fire hazards. In 2021, the Group investigated
a total of 99,657 potential hazards, with a rectification rate
of 98.92%.
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Emergency Responding and Drills

According to relevant regulatory requirements, the Group has
revised regularly the comprehensive emergency plans, special
emergency plans and on-site disposal programs for accidents.
All subsidiaries are required to, on the basis of the emergency
plans, formulate emergency plans at corresponding levels,
strengthen the emergency plan exercise, and improve the
emergency response capability of subsidiaries and positions
as well as employees’ self-defense and self-rescue abilities.

In 2021, the Group engaged experts to assess the firefighting
emergency plan preparation and disposal plan, organized the
revision of the duties of each position, improved the firefighting
training and emergency equipment configuration, formulated
the outline of firefighting training plan and improved the
on-site disposal plan in order to improve the firefighting
management and emergency rescue level. The Group organizes
the Company’s fire-fighting teams to strengthen exchanges
and learning with professional emergency rescue teams, and
continuously enhances its own emergency rescue capability
by conducting joint training and training with professional fire-
fighting teams. Dongyue Group organized 70 practical drills for
its teams and reserve teams and participated in fighting fires
around the park for 26 times during the year.

In order to ensure the safety of the office premises and to raise
the awareness of employees on safety and disaster prevention,
the Group conducts safety emergency drills every year to
enhance the safety prevention and response capability in case
of unexpected disasters. In 2021, the Group organized a total
of 390 safety emergency drills at various levels with a total of
22,230 participants. Among them, 120 fire drills were held, with
a total of 7,560 participants. A total of 245 deficiencies in the
planning system and on-site potential hazards were identified,
and rectification plans and measures were formulated in
conjunction with the relevant departments and responsible
territorial units for rectification, with a rectification rate of 95%.
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Contractor Safety Management

Dongyue Group focuses on supply chain health and stability.
By formulating the Dongyue Group Contractor Management
System. Contractor Environmental Management System and
other contractor safety management systems, the Group
improved and implemented contractor safety management and
raised the HSE management level of contractors. The Group has
required its contractors to meet the entry criteria, sign a safety
responsibility agreement and strictly abide by the provisions
on occupational health, safety and environmental protection.
The Group regularly supervises and assesses the contractors’
performance, including the maintenance of the contractors’
safety education record and daily report on the inspection
of contractors’ on-site construction safety to strengthen the
control of contractor safety. Dongyue Group aroused the
contractors’ initiative concerning safety management by
providing safety education, training and assessments from
the Group's internal personnel training system to contractors.
In 2021, the number of serious accidents or above involving
contractors of the Company was 0, and the number of serious
injuries and fatalities was 0.

Occupational Health Protection

Dongyue Group strictly complies with the occupational health
and safety management requirements of laws and regulations,
strictly follows the Occupational Disease Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China and other laws and regulations,
and improves the employee health and safety management
system and the safety management system such as the
Occupational Health Management Control Procedures. The
Group has established the Occupational Health Management
Department to ensure the health and safety of employees in
practice and to provide comprehensive occupational health

protection for employees.
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The Group conducted occupational physical examination
regularly, established occupational health record and
checked the daily hazards protection. In 2021, the
employees’ medical examination coverage rate was 100%,
with zero incidence of occupational diseases.

By conducting on-site occupational hazard monitoring,
and continuous improvement of the automation and
intelligence level of the devices on such basis, the Group
adopted strict confined isolation measures to reduce the
exposure of personnel to occupational hazards.

The Group provided protective equipment to prevent
accidents that may occur during operation and placed
first aid kits in workshops to provide immediate assistance
in emergency situations to protect the personal safety of
employees, and the total investment cost of the Group's
labor insurance supplies for 2021 was RMB7,841,800.

The Group is equipped with professional safety
management personnel, among which, all of the special
operation staff must be licence-holders. Regulations
for the Management of Special Equipment have been
formulated to ensure the safety production of special
equipment during operating activities.

The Group organized special trainings on occupational
disease prevention and treatment, provided
comprehensive occupational health protection equipment
and emergency equipment, and improved the awareness
and level of labour protection of employees.
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During the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group deployed closely
on the prevention and control of the outbreak and made
daily reports on the prevention and control of the outbreak.
Each gate post is equipped with infrared thermometer guns,
alcohol spray bottles, disinfectant sprayers and other pandemic
prevention materials. They also check the health code, trip
code, vaccination status and measure the body temperature of
all incoming personnel, properly register incoming personnel
and vehicles, and supervise the proper wearing of masks by
relevant personnel. Dongyue Group inspected 180,000 vehicles
and 700,000 external construction workers during the year, and
no liability incidents occurred due to inadequate pandemic

control.

Safety Culture Construction

Dongyue Group strives to build a good safety culture and
enhance safety education to improve employees’ safety
awareness and related skills, thereby effectively reducing safety
production accidents.

Through years of development, the Group has formed various
safety-themed cultural activities such as “Safety Production
Month", “Safety Knowledge Contest” and “Skills Competition”
to break through the traditional safety education and publicity
methods, strengthen and enhance employees’ safety awareness,
and guide them to firmly establish the working concept of risk
prevention, eliminating hidden dangers, ensuring safety and
promoting development from an ideological perspective.

The Group has established a comprehensive safety training
system, formulated a system such as “Notice of Appraisal of
Group Safety Experts and Safety Managers” and recognized
seven internal safety trainers of the Group to enhance the
safety education and training of employees, including the
enhancement of the safety management capability of the
first responsible person and the enhancement of the safety
awareness and safety operation of general employees. In 2021,
the Company’s employee safety training rate reached 100%,
and the average number of hours of employee safety training
was 26.8 hours.
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The Group adopted various incentive mechanisms to motivate
the progress of safety management. It set up the special
incentive fund of “Benchmarking DuPont” to reward the frontline
employees for safety experience sharing, risk management
and hidden danger screening, excellent production of training
courseware, etc. The “Five-one” incentive activity was designed
to motivate senior management and middle management of
each company to practice inductive leadership. The Instant
Safety Award and the Thumb Award encouraged employees
to standardize their operational behaviors and develop good
operational habits.

The Group launched Benchmarking DuPont, a consultation
on safety management in 2016, forming a safety culture
with Dongyue characteristics through the guidance of the
DuPont safety management concept. In 2021, in view of
the shortcomings in safety management and safety culture
establishment found during the activity, the Company
cooperated with DuPont to jointly organize a second safety
management improvement activity in order to continuously
improve the safe management capability of middle and senior
managers and build the core of safety and environmental
capability in Dongyue Group and other companies. The Group's
vision of “being a respected global brand of fluorosilicone
film and hydrogen” is evident in the numerous training and
improvement initiatives around leadership development.
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Green Development

Dongyue Group is committed to environmental protection and
has adopted various measures and monitoring methods to fulfill
its responsibility for environmental protection. The Group strictly
complies with the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China and other laws and regulations, improves
the construction of a standardized environmental protection
management system, promotes low-carbon emission reduction,
energy conservation and consumption reduction, and actively
implements its environmental protection responsibilities. In 2021, the
Group did not have any general or above environmental incidents.

4.1 Climate Change Risk Analysis

The impact of climate change on economic and social
developmentis profound andisacommon global environmental
challenge. In the face of the urgent climate change situation,
Dongyue Group pays attention to the impact of climate change
on its business, integrates the consideration of climate risk into
its existing risk management system, and actively identifies and
evaluates the risks and opportunities faced by climate change.
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. Exposure to climate change risk
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In 2021, China included “carbon peaking” and “carbon neutral” in the government
work report for the first time. The proposal of carbon peak and carbon neutral
targets is not only a constraint on carbon emissions around the world, but also
implies a change in the way of economic and social development. The first is

to pursue the low carbonization of the industrial structure, and the second is to
cultivate a new industrial trend of cleanliness and low carbonization, which will
not change for a long time in the future.

As one of the first power generation enterprises to be included in the carbon
trading pilot project, Dongyue Group continues to promote emission reduction
technology innovation and introduce new environmentally friendly products to
reduce the risk brought about by changes in emission restriction policies, taking
into account the continuous expansion of the scope of emission control in the
future.
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Market risk customers’ demand for green product solutions and low carbon
footprint products is constantly increasing, and overseas standards require higher
production standards for refrigerants. If Dongyue Group fails to strictly control
emissions during product production, choose a low carbon supply chain, and
develop new environmentally friendly products, it may affect market sales due to
consumer choice.
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Global climate change may lead to more intense and frequent extreme weather
such as rainstorms, typhoons, dust storms, and freezing temperatures, as well
as long-term climate changes such as water shortages and droughts. This will
potentially affect the stable production of upstream supply chain and the
transportation and storage of raw materials, threaten the safety of the Company’s
production facilities and lead to a decrease in production capacity and increase
the Company's operating costs.

. Opportunities from climate change
Based on the preliminary identification and assessment
of the above risks, Dongyue Group is considering and
formulating measures to respond to climate change risks,
including but not limited to:
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The Company will increase daily monitoring of
relevant laws and regulations and strengthen
communication with regulatory authorities.
Furthermore, the Company will timely adjust its risk
management measures in accordance with policies
and regulations, disclose relevant information and

prevent risks in a timely manner.

Based on extensive industry benchmarking with
reference to the ESG reporting guide of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong and the principles of the
science-based carbon targets, the Company is
exploring its setting of carbon emission targets.
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- Cooperate with upstream suppliers in the industry
chain to increase procurement channels and thus
reduce the impact on stable supply due to climate
change.

—  Participate in renewable energy power trading
and reduce greenhouse gas emissions from our
products and operations through energy efficiency
improvements and technology development.

- Through participationinindustry communication and
academic exchanges with universities, the Company
will introduce internationally advanced technologies
and equipment to improve energy efficiency and
reduce carbon emissions in production.

- The Company will systematically explore new
markets, carry out forecast and analysis of
technological and market changes and develops
low-carbon green products that meet the needs of
the community.

In the future, Dongyue Group will continue to actively
respond to the pressure brought by climate change, take
multiple measures to reduce carbon emissions in the
course of operation, and contribute to the goal of “carbon
peaking” and “carbon neutrality”.
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4.2 Green Products

Dongyue Group promotes the development of energy-saving
and environmental protection products and the reduction of
consumption to prevent and reduce the negative impact on the
environment caused by production and operation activities. In
2021, fluorosilicone companies will complete 5 sets of sulfuric
acid drying systems through technical renovation and put
them into use, which will reduce the moisture content in the
monochloromethane products to below 40ppm, reduce the
amount of fresh sulfuric acid feed, and save more than RMB5
million in operating costs annually. During the year, Dongyue
Group developed:

Polyvinylidene fluoride (PVDF) powder coating resin,
which solves the problem of conventional coatings
requiring organic solvents for coating and reduces the
emission of VOCs during use;

Perfluorooctanoic acid (PFA) powder coating resin for
electrostatic spray coating is environmentally friendly
and efficient, free of persistent contaminants, and avoids
the need to use organic solvents to coat conventional
coatings.

The Group upholds high standards and stringent requirements,
and has invested heavily in fluorosilicone material projects that
meet customers’ needs. We have researched and developed
products such as fusible PTFE and PTFE dispersion resins for
high-end sealing fields to help reduce the carbon footprint of
customers’ product life cycle and help the industry's low-carbon
transformation.
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Greenhouse gases 2019 2020 2021

FE— Scope 1 1,563,351.57 160889024  1,686,437.12

&i[E— Scope 2 1,490,720.00 1,477,953.34 1,566,950.00
BERBHWRE (W) Emissions of greenhouse gases 3,054,071.57  3,086,843.58
(tons) (B E5)) (B E5)

(restated) (restated)  3,253,387.12

BLEBRERENE Greenhouse gas emission per

(Mg, BLEZEBA) RMB10,000 of operating income 2.35 3.07
(tons/RMB10,000 of operating (g E5)) (K E5))

income) (restated) (restated) 2.05

F() BEHEBREEERREREE2021 Notes:(1) The scope of data collection is the scope of the consolidated

(2)

(3)
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financial statements in the Annual Report 2021 of Dongyue
Group.

The emissions of greenhouse gases (scope 1) were from coal,
natural gas, diesel and the consumption of fuel (gasoline)
for transportation vehicles. The emission factors refer to the
“Guidelines for Accounting and Reporting of Greenhouse Gas
Emissions from Enterprises in Other Industries” published by the
National Development and Reform Commission of the People’s
Republic of China on 6 July 2015.

The emissions of greenhouse gases (scope 2) were from the
consumption of purchased electricity. In accordance with
the “Appendix II: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs”
in "How to Prepare an ESG Report” issued by the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange Limited in March 2020, the emission factors of
purchased electricity were cited from the “2019 Baseline Emission
Factors for Regional Power Grids in China” published by the
Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the People’s Republic
of China on 29 December 2020.

(4) The unit conversion factors of non-renewable energy (e.g.

gasoline, diesel, liquified natural gas) were cited from the
"Appendix II: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” in
"How to Prepare an ESG Report” issued by the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange Limited in March 2020 and the “General Principles for
the Calculation of Comprehensive Energy Consumption” issued
by the National Development and Reform Commission of the
People’s Republic of China on 29 September 2020.
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4.3 Enhancing Energy Efficiency

With regard to energy consumption in production and
manufacturing, Dongyue Group adheres to high standards of
regulated energy-saving management. As the first intelligent
manufacturing pilot enterprise in the fluorochemical industry,
Dongyue Group has been actively exploring and improving
intelligent management and control. In terms of energy
management and control, based on the Baosight Energy
Management System, Dongyue Group implemented the
unified scheduling management and integrated allocation of
the energy of the Group’s subsidiaries, managing the energy
media such as high-voltage power distribution and steam in
the industrial parks in a centralized manner. The Group will
continue to pay attention to energy usage in the operation
process and achieve the goal of energy-consumption reduction
by the maintenance of equipment and upgrade in research.
In 2022, Dongyue Group plans to achieve a comprehensive
energy consumption per unit product not exceeding 0.288
tons of standard coal of Shandong Dongyue Chemicals Co., Ltd.,
a comprehensive energy consumption per unit product not
exceeding 0.867 tons of standard coal of Shandong Dongyue
Polymers Co., Ltd., a comprehensive energy consumption per
unit product not exceeding 0.211 tons of standard coal of
Shandong Dongyue Fluo-Silicon Materials, and a comprehensive
energy consumption per unit product not exceeding 0.818 tons
of standard coal of Shandong Huaxia Shenzhou New Co., Ltd.

In 2021, through various means such as measurement
supervision and operation refinement, the Group had
increased the heat efficiency for the entire factory to
70.06%. representing an increase of 2.17 percent as
compared to 2020;

the chemical industrial company of the Group had
conducted a refinement upgrade for the existing
refrigerants product devices by refining its energy-saving
technology in 2021. The reduction of energy consumption
was significant in each device. Freon - 142b (R142B) was
remade through the photochlorination system. The
conversion rate of difluoroethane (R152A) had increased
from 65% to 75% above and the production volume
increased by 15%.
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At the same time, Dongyue Group actively promoted the
concept of “green office”, encouraging online management
of documents to decrease paper waste. Moreover, the Group
strictly managed vehicle fuel consumption according to
the Vehicle Management System, and offered full reward or
punishment to drivers who save fuel or use excessive fuel. It also
implemented the Dongyue Group Regulations on the Use of
Air-Conditioners in Office Buildings to control the time of using
air-conditioners and promptly shut down the air-conditioners
after work, aiming to raise employees’ awareness on energy
conservation. In 2021, Dongyue Group consumed 27% less
gasoline than last year.

The energy consumption of Dongyue Group in recent three
years is shown as follows:

EREE 20195 H#EE 20205 HMEE 20215 HEE
Consumption in Consumption in Consumption in
Use type 2019 2020 2021
HMNEE (TREK) Purchased electricity
(kWh) 1,540,000,000 1,526,811,300.00 1,618,750,000
BRERAES Electricity consumption
(FEE) for clean energy (kWh) 0 0 145,795,320
S (BME) Total coal consumption
(10,000 tons) 65.29 67.34 70.48
BEE (TEE) Generating capacity
(kwh) 327,266,000 360,986,500 378,536,000
FARE=Z2 (BAE) Steam production
(M) volume (self-used
volume) (tons) 1,468,928 1,660,774 1,580,924
ol (1) Gasoline (liter) 69,945 37,891 27,508
sl (1) Diesel (liter) 0 11,010 9,649
RAR (SLFAK) Natural gas (cubic meter) 21,580,300 20,638,353 22,750,421
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Energy consumption 2019 2020 2021
REREFE (BMEIRLE -+ Total energy
BIERE - F - X consumption (10,000
| A Em) tons standard coal,
including coal,
electricity, natural gas,
gasoline, diesel) 685,600.61 697,312.32 732,704.86
BILEEREEFE (8 Total energy
MEAZEE - BFEMRIE - consumption per
T KRG A RMBI10,000 of output
sh BLEE) value (10,000 tons
standard coal,
including coal,
electricity, natural
gas, gasoline, diesel/
RMB10,000 of output
value) 0.53 0.69 0.46

2 (1) TEUBRERHECODHE - Sl RE
AR MEBMNEBETLRERS
BERSHBRARR2020F3A
FIB (A EERE  HERE
SARE (MR - IMIBRARER
BIZERIES] ) URPEARK
MEBERZEEMNEZ S E12020
FORAVB B (A kAT ER
Ay o

Note: (1) For unit conversion factors of non-renewable fuels (gasoline,
diesel, LNG), please refer to “Appendix Il: Environmental
Key Performance Indicators Report” of “How to Prepare an
Environmental, Social and Governance Report” published by
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in March 2020, and
the “General Principles for Calculation of the Comprehensive
Energy Consumption” published by the National Development
and Reform Commission of the People’s Republic of China on
September 29, 2020.
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4.4 Optimization of Water Utilization Management

Focusing on the improvement of the utilization efficiency of
water resources, Dongyue Group enhanced technological
innovation of water conservation, strengthened comprehensive
wastewater treatment and reuse and implemented
comprehensive water resources management. In 2021, the
Group did not encounter any problems in obtaining suitable
water sources.

In 2021, the commissioning work of the comprehensive
utilization and transformation project of water circulation
in the chemical water workshop of the company’s thermal
power plant will be completed. It was put into operation in
July, and the reused water was 202,800 tons. It solved the
problem of 270 cubic meters of reclaimed water per hour in
thermal power plants, recovered 267 cubic meters of water per
hour, and produced finished products such as sodium chloride
and the mirabilite. The commissioning of the water resources
comprehensive utilization project marks a solid step in the
intensive recycling of resources and energy by the thermal
power plant of the company. At the same time, it provides
emergency guarantee for the crisis of water supply limitation
of the Yellow River caused by the torrential rain in the upper
reaches of Henan. The Group will continue to promote the
feasibility study of desulfurization wastewater treatment to
reduce the impact of wastewater discharge on the environment
and achieve water recycling rate of not less than 40% by 2025.
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REEBI =FBKREKERER The water consumption and wastewater discharge of Dongyue
UM Group in the past three years are shown as follows:

2020 HER 20205 HEp, 20215 HEd

FKRBEKBERIEE AXKE FAKE AKE
Emission/water Emission/water Emission/water
Water consumption and wastewater discharge consumption in consumption in consumption in
indicators 2020 2020 2021
&K ke E (W) 4,395,965 4,566,981 4,761,142
Wastewater Total discharge of wastewater
(tons)
CODHEmE (ME) 57.9 57.8 72.7
COD emissions (tons)
[URHEmE (88) 1.86 1.42 1.71
Ammonia nitrogen emissions
(tons)
FEK wAKE (WF) 13,905,821 13,474,550 13,300,000
Water Total water consumption (tons)
consumption FEKEE (W, BT EK
A) 10.73 1342 8.39

Water consumption intensity
(tons/RMB10,000 of operating
income)
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4.5 Reduction of Pollutant Emissions

Dongyue Group strictly abided by the emission standards
where it operated and strived to minimize pollutant emissions.
The Company strictly abided by the Environmental Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control
of Atmospheric Pollution, the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution by Solid Waste, the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on the Prevention and Control of Noise Pollution
and other relevant laws, established corresponding emission
management regulations through the equipment renewal and
technological innovation. It implemented emission control and
inspection for wastewater, exhaust gas, noise and solid waste to
ensure compliance with laws and regulations for the emissions
of the above three types of wastes, and reduced the burden
of emissions on the environment.

Dongyue Group fully implements the management
requirements of the Emission Permitin strict accordance with the
requirements of the Emission Permit, requiring implementation
at all levels from the Company to the workshop, execution
in place, routine monitoring and daily supervision of the
operation ledger, and submission of the implementation and
execution to the Emission Permit system for public disclosure
in accordance with the management requirements. Dongyue
Group will continue to promote environmental protection and
emission reduction initiatives to achieve all compliant disposal
of waste emissions and 100% compliance rate of three waste
emissions by 2025.
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Type of emissions

Emissions in 2019

Exhaust gas management

Dongyue Group actively implemented the Air Pollution
Prevention and Control Action Plan to carry out exhaust
emission reduction works and practice the concept of green
and sustainable development. In order to ensure that the
exhaust emissions discharged meets the standards for nitrogen
oxides, sulfur dioxide and soot in the requirements of the
Regional and Integrated Emission Standard of Air Pollutants
(DB37/2376-2019), Dongyue Group has installed facilities
of desulfurization, denitration, dust removal and ultra-low
emission to achieve emission standards. Due to the expansion
of the Group's production capacity during the year, compared
with the previous year, the total increase of sulfur dioxide
emission in 2021 is 23.41 tons, nitrogen oxide emission is 15.32
tons, and the reduction of soot emission is 6.08 tons.

In 2021, in order to respond to the emergency emission
reduction of heavy pollution weather, the Group increased
the control of operation indicators when the heavy pollution
weather emergency was not activated, and the sulfur dioxide
increased by 3 mg per cubic meter compared with the average
value in 2020, which was the foundation for the start of the
8% emergency reduction of sulfur dioxide in heavily polluted
weather in autumn and winter. The Group has no problem
of exceeding the daily average value throughout the year. In
June 2021, it was notified and rewarded by the Environmental
Protection Department of Shandong Province of RMB30,000 for
its active emission reduction.

20196 HE 2020F HEph 2

Emissions in 2020

2021 F k2

Emissions in 2021

—&em (mE)
Bty (mg)
e, EE (W)
mREaRYy (W)

Sulfur dioxide (tons)
Nitrogen oxides (tons)
Soot/dust (tons)
Volatile organic
compounds (tons)

118.12 106.59 130.00
416.90 212,69 228.01

73.00 20.72 14.64
145.61 68.02 107.71
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Solid waste management

Dongyue Group strictly followed the General Solid Waste
Management System, General Solid Waste Accountability
System, Hazardous Waste Management System, Hazardous
Waste Accountability System and other relevant solid
waste management systems, formulated the Standardized
Management Index System for Hazardous Wastes and
strictly regulated the disposal process of solid waste and the
supervision and inspection methods to avoid environmental
pollution incidents.

According to the principle of “recycling, reducing and harmless”
of solid waste, the Group collected and disposed solid waste
properly and safelyFor example, the hazardous waste R152a
waste catalyst generated by the project is incinerated by the
incinerator supporting the project, and the waste molecular
sieve, SCR denitration waste catalyst, incinerator fly ash and
waste oil are entrusted to qualified units for treatment. The
general solid waste generated by the company in 2021
was domestic garbage, and the environmental sanitation
department was entrusted to clear and transport it on a
regular basis. The generated hazardous waste was stored in
accordance with the relevant regulations of the "Hazardous
Waste Storage Pollution Control Standard” (GB18597-2001) and
its amendments. A complete record of solid waste transfer was
established and enforced strictly.
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RESBEOD=-"FEBEYWBR The disposals of solid wastes of Dongyue Group in the past
R three years are as follows:
BRmER 20195 EES 2020F REE 2021 FREE

Type of emissions

Disposals in 2019

Disposals in 2020

Disposals in 2021

B aE (W)

REIE

&

(mg)

AR (WR)

s (W)

BAJ% (W)

—MREEVELES
i)

—MEEVEEEE
(Mg, BT
WA

i RERERBRAOE

Desulphurization gypsum
(tons)

Ash and slag of power
plant (tons)

Domestic waste (tons)

Office waste (tons)

Acetylene sludge (tons)

Total general wastes
(tons)

Intensity of general
wastes (tons/
RMB10,000 of
operating income)

CBERE - BRE
WERERINE - HEITAR

AFA -

RESECRERMEBEREEEEENM

BEBRIAT

BERYER

Types of hazardous wastes

61,370
166,358
45

13
378,724

227,786

0.18

29,964
177,478
87.6

10
351,022

207,540

0.21

15,443.02
188,886.62
105.75

12
273,028.84

204,447.39

0.13

Note: The treatment of desulphurization gypsum, ash and slag of power

plant and acetylene sludge of Dongyue Group is externally sold for
comprehensive utilization.

Transfer of hazardous wastes of Dongyue Group to qualified

institutions for disposal is as follows:

20195 REE
Disposals in 2019

2020F RE8
Disposals in 2020

2215 REE
Disposals in 2021

EREZRNEZE (W)

Transfer volume of hazardous wastes

(tons)

HWO06
HWO08
HWO09
HW11
HW50
HW45
HW18
HW29
HW49

1,777.60
122.62
18.66
522.16
247.99
13,041.59
165.63
155.1
123.6

1,319.88
122.6

0

297.7
628.98
20,179.76
411.16
157.59
595.21

1,807.04
135.94

0

368.12
1,098.98
19,597.36
495.03
174.94
1,802.71
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5. All-win Harmony

Dongyue Group always regards talents as the cornerstone for the
success of its development, while adhering to the talent concept
of “reflecting values with benefits and using wealth to reward
intelligence” in order to achieve a win-win situation for the company
and its employees. The Group strongly advocates an equal and non-
discriminatory employment policy, optimizes its human resources
arrangement in recruitment, remuneration and performance,
benefits and labour rights, enhances its internal management. Also,
it constantly provides employees with trainings on vocational skills
and occupational health and continuously nurtures industry leaders,
creating a diverse, equal and uplifting working environment for
employees.

5.1 Protecting employees’ rights and interests

Dongyue Group perseveres in its equal treatment towards all
employees during the process of recruitment and promotion
to protect the legitimate rights and interests of employees.
The Company has, in strict accordance with the Labor Law
of the People’s Republic of China, the Labor Contract Law of
the People’s Republic of China and other national laws and
regulations, pursued fair and legal employment practices,
being impartial to employees different genders, nationalities,
ages, ethnicities, religions and cultural backgrounds. It provides
equal opportunities for all employees and purchases basic
social insurance for employees in accordance with national
regulations. Meanwhile, the Company strictly prohibits and
opposes any use of child labor and forced labor, carries out
supervision to ensure no employment of child labor and forced
labor, and respects and safeguards the legitimate rights and
interests of all employees.
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The Group is committed to its social responsibility in recruiting
and nurturing talents. The recruitment of the Group is
conducted by internal reappointment, internal promotion and
external recruitment and adheres to the principle of equal
opportunity. Through employee-position matching and the old
leading the young, Dongyue Group had achieved personnel
increase and stock optimization in 2021. The number of the
new employees who were adjusted to the old project and
the old employees who were adjusted to the new project
in each company had reached 500, representing 7.7% of the
number of the entire workforce, while further encouraging
motivation among old employees. Throughout the year, the
Group had completed its recruitment of 33 talents in various
professions, 292 talents in total of bachelor, master, doctor and
professional qualification. As of the end of the reporting period,
the total number of employees of Dongyue Group was 6,824,
the number of employees who left the Company was 500, and
the turnover rate was 6.83%..

In the year 2021, Dongyue Group had carried out comparative
learning with enterprises such as SP Chemicals, Qilu
Petrochemical, Daikin, Befar Group Co, Blue Sail Medical, and
conducted a profound communication and exchange with
advanced enterprises in the industry such as XinAn Group,
Xinghuo, mainly for learning enhancement in various aspects
such as device operation, personnel arrangement, talent
team establishment, personnel recruitment, human resources
management and control, and cost control.
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REREINETAAY
Total Number of Employees by Grade

MO~ 1864

N\ 4,841
m AR B EE ERET
Directors and above Managers Ordinary employees
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Percentage of employees by region
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RURBSHETRALER
Employee Turnover Rate by Age
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5.2 Promoting Employees’ Growthand Development

Dongyue Group pays close attention to the development and
training of employees, it establishes promotion channels for
employees and provides various types of training, to meet
the development needs of employees at all stages. With the
Measures for Position Promotion of Cadres and Employees of
the Group, the Administrative Measures for Appraisal of Newly
Promoted Cadres under Probation Period of Dongyue Group
and the Administrative Measures for Training and Appraisal
of Newly Promoted Management Cadres of Dongyue Group,
the Company clarified promotion measures, to ensure fair
competition.

Dongyue Group continues to implement multi-level vocational
training and career development education for employees,
establishes a complete training system, and formulates
improvement measures according to the training effect to
continuously improve the effectiveness of training. In 2021, The
Group's vocational skills training is mainly online, supplemented
by offline training. As of the beginning of December, the Group
held 52 sessions of other professional skills training at the Group
level, covering technical, safety, environmental protection,
electrical instrumentation, equipment and other disciplines.
In order to meet the demand of overall reform, innovation
and specialization, the Group fully utilised the advantages of
the Group's online education academy platform to organise
various learning activities under the adverse circumstances
of the recurring pandemic, and the overall learning rate of all
employees reached 90%. The Company'’s training is divided
into professional and hierarchical courses and provides more
than 148 courses for junior and middle-level managers and
executives in six positions (i.e. technology research and
development, quality inspection and quality control, operation
and production, administration, finance, and human resources,
covering general courses), including professional courses and
comprehensive management. At the same time, 235 courses
has updated and uploaded, covering occupational health,
safety, electrician, fitter and other professions.

In 2021, employee training of Dongyue Group reached 100%

covering all employees, the total training hours was 50 hours
and the length of training per capita was 73.27 hours.
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Number of Trained Employees by Gender

564 —~

N\ 6,260

= 58T
Male employees

ZET
Female employees

gk [Pl O R RS HNES
Average Hours of Training by Gender

73.27 —~

- 81325

= 58T
Male employees

ZET
Female employees

REEBERIE —2-—5FK

Employee training

RESEREINZIEEAR
Total Hours of Training by Employment Type

119\

N\ 4841
BN B EE ERET
Directors and above Managers Ordinary employees

BREHE D NZIFIGPREH
Average Hours of Training by Employment Type

4.68 N

N—7327
m AR AL "I EE EWET
Directors and above Managers Ordinary employees



53 BEEITAE

RESEERK(TEARKNES S
EICTBREGRPDFERER - B
TENFHEE RO F
iR - EIRER  RBIHFEEFETR
MoMEREIER  REEIHL
R - RIS -

FEEF

RESEBIEIHH - BBTE T
ERAFE AETEBRYREAREZE
R - EABERR - KERR -
ITERKE - £B5RE - FELAESSE
BRHEABANRERR  WMEAE
ERRERATEBAAL FEK 2021
FAEELEEEKLERMRITS
FBKE  —SETIWARLEE
28% @ R FREABSHELY EAE
ERR12% - BNEERIE - REEBIBIRA
BIHFMKT REEIZREH -
WREBAATRSIFETH - £=ZEE
BEEAR -

RE - HERERERS
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

5.3 Caring for Employees’ Life

Dongyue Group complies with laws and regulations such as
the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China and Work
Injury Protection Ordinance, and has formulated a well-
designed salary system, providing five social insurances and
one housing fund, annual leave, holiday allowances, free work
meals and other employee benefits, and also values employee
communication, protecting employees’ physical and mental
health and reducing work pressure.

Remuneration and Benefits

Dongyue Group pays close attention to employees’
remuneration, and establishes a basic welfare system,
consisting of basic pension insurance, basic medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, work-related injury insurance,
maternity insurance, housing provident fund, etc, through
continuous improvement of welfare benefits, to meet the talent
demand of the Group due to its rapid development. In 2021,
based on the current situation of the Group's operation and the
salary level of the market, the income of front-line employees
has increased by 28% year-on-year, while the housing provident
fund contribution rate has raised to the upper limit of 12%, and
the paymentamount has doubled. By improving the salary level
of employees, the sense of happiness of employees would be
increased, competitiveness of the group in attracting talents
would be enhanced, and hence the Company would share the
development achievements of the Group.
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Employee Communication

Dongyue Group values employees’ opinions, and employees’
rights to know, to participate, to express and to supervise.
In the year of 2021, the Group organized 33 forums for
organizations on the optimization of human resources
allocation, improvement of internal management, stabilisation
of the mindset of new employees, building of talent pool, and
certification of hazardous chemicals. The Company resolved
issues such as subsidies for highly educated talents, salary
adjustments during the probationary period, the construction
of staff promotion system, and the formulation of the issuance
documents of talent pool management, the acceleration of
the renewal of apartment facilities, cultural centres and sports
facilities, improvement of canteen meals through forums.

Employee Activities

In 2021, the Company held a series of employee-caring
activities such as “Stay cool in the summer, stay healthy with
me”, to enrich employees’ life in their spare time, create a
harmonious working atmosphere, and increase employees’
sense of belonging to the Company at the same time.

Contributing to the Social Development

Dongyue Group focuses on the contributing care to all fields
of society, insisting on “building hometown, repaying the
society, serving the country, repaying the party”, and vigorously
supports the matters regarding the promotion of environmental
protection, health, education, sports development and
employment, etc. And actively contributing to the society
in different manners, including public welfare undertakings,
service community building, and give financial aid to students.
The Group aims to build a harmonious and inclusive community
relationship and share the value of sustainable development
with the public.
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The Group has established four major public welfare funds to
focus on the four major areas of assisting students, supporting
elderly, scholarship and assisting employees in difficulties,
which have become platforms for the Group to carry out
public welfare undertakings and fulfill social responsibilities.
In 2021, Dongyue Group has donated RMB2.8202 million to
social welfare undertakings in the fields of education, support,
health and disaster relief.

He£B PR 3 R P HERARE
Year of
Name Establishment Targeted People and Purpose
REHEESR 20004 AR B R B MK B R LA MEUSEEKENBE

Dongyue Education Fund 2000

REEEES 20074

Dongyue Elder Respecting 2007
Fund

RERBES 20004F
Dongyue Scholarship Fund 2000

REEOLES 20054F
Dongyue Staff-caring Fund 2005

WHEREAGR NEREY [REERE] 2021FREHER
BES RHEEHREEL1068TT °

To reward the local teachers with outstanding teaching
performance and students with outstanding academic
achievements. “Dongyue Studies” were established for the middle
and primary schools in Huantai County, and RMB1.06 million was
donated for Dongyue Education Incentive Fund and Teacher’s
Day in 2021.

RS F RE LSBT A L& ABIE200T A VEM#AE » 20215F H#
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To provide an allowance of RMB200 each year to elders aged over
80 in Tangshan Town, and to allocate a total of RMB449,000
in subsidies and donate RMB300,000 to the construction and
operation of the Tangshan Town Senior Citizen Canteen in 2021.

ARBEAR  IIREBEIAZRBHBENERLNESFET

To reward the students of Tsinghua University and Shandong
University of Technology with outstanding academic
achievements

FRERE S THEITRE) - 2021 FEZIERBE ST 68T ©

To support the Group's staff in financial difficulties, and the amount
of the donation in 2021 was RMB56,000.
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ESGIEE RS 6. ESG INDEX

BEEE =111
Disclosure Indicators Chapters
g RIE Aspect: Environment

A1 B A1: Type of emissions

—R = General Disclosure

EHBERRBRERBHN  AKRTOES BERBEEEZYNELSTH

@ BE: K

b) ETHETABEATENEBEZRBRINES -

i BRENEERELY  REtWREMXBEFKEEIAGIREN SR - AERBEE ALK Pk @tI2%8 &
LAY - 2RAMBREABUCE - BSERVEERAIARTE -

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to exhaust gas and greenhouse
gas emissions discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

Note: Exhaust gas emissions include NOx, SOx, and other pollutants requlated under national laws and regulations. Greenhouse gases
include carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide, hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons and sulphur hexafluoride.

A1l iR KRR HE R BUR 45 WA IERE
The types of emissions and respective emissions data 4.5 Reduction of
Pollutant Emissions
A12 RERBRAFENE CAEHE) R (NER) BE (WABESEN - BRRETE) 42 (R EIRIRE m
Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tons) and where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of 4.2 Green Products
production volume, per facility)
A13 FREXREREYRE CAEE) k (WER) B8 (WABESEN - BIERE 45 WV TRHER
E)
Total hazardous waste produced (in tons) and where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of 4.5 Reduction of
production volume, per facility) Pollutant Emissions
Al4 FREAREREEYAE CAEAE) k (NER) B8 (WABESEN - BIERE 45 WPV TRER
E)
Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tons) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per 4.5 Reduction of
unit of production volume, per facility) Pollutant Emissions
A15 R PTET B HE N E B IR R AERE L B RAT IR 5 45 WV TRIER
Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. 4.5 Reduction of
Pollutant Emissions
Al6 HlRBAERESERYNAE - RERPTET AR R R RAEDE LB RMEK 45 WA VTRER
kg s
Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a description of 4.5 Reduction of
reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. Pollutant Emissions



REER

RIR

CHEREREE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Disclosure Indicators

=320
Chapters

A2 BRER
—REE

A2: Use of Resources
General Disclosure

BRERBR (BEER  KREMRME) MBGK -
Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw materials.
7 BRAAREE  #F BR BT STRES-

Note: Resources may be used in production, storage, transportation, buildings, electronic equipment, etc.

A2.1

A2.2

A23

A24

A25

RENESMERER /IREER (WE - fah) #FE UTRRHE) REE (

MAGESEN - BEDMEE)

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh)
and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility)

BFRKEREE (WMAGESEN  BERETE)

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility)

AL ATRT S EVREIRE A A an B IR M A B iE A B IS AT IR P R

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

FouREGE AR ERI A EAIERE - A RPIET S8Rk B IR R RER S L B IR
PRERE) B

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

RmAAeEMHNEE (CAME) k (NER) 84ESGE
Total packaging materials used for finished products (in tons) and, where appropriate, with
reference to per unit produced

4.3 Enhancing Energy
Efficiency

44 BILRKER
4.4 Optimization of
Water Utilization
Management

43 RERRACE
4.3 Enhancing Energy
Efficiency

44 BALFIKER

4.4 Optimization of
Water Utilization
Management
gk

Not applicable
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BEER ]

Disclosure Indicators Chapters

A3 : BIERXA A3:Environment and Natural Resources
&R
—RHE General Disclosure
REZBTAHRERRAEREKNEAT BNKEK
Policies on minimizing the issuer’ s significant impact on the environment and natural resources
A3.1 HAREERHHRERRAERNEAT ERCRNEREATENTY 42 BIRIREM
431 B REIRAE
4 AR RIKER
45 DISREER
Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural resources 4.2 Green Products
and the actions taken to manage them 4.3 Enhancing Energy
Efficiency
4.4 Optimization of
Water Utilization
Management
4.5 Reduction of

Pollutant Emissions
A4 mIRE{ A4 Climate Change

—MEE General Disclosure

BRI REHE R R HETAELAY ENEARKEEETENBR

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and those which may impact, the
issuer.

A4 AR R LA EHETAELAR ENEARKEREE - NEHTTH - 4IRERRER
Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and those which 4.1 Climate Change Risk
may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them. Analysis

REEBEFRAF —Z=—FFH
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BEER E=1:0]
Disclosure Indicators Chapters
gl g Aspect: Social

{E{EE4 T#A| Employment and Labor Standard

B1: EfE B1: Employment

—R 5= General Disclosure

EREHRAE  BEREA  IERE  REY - TEHE - 2ot REGUREMFEREFN :

@ BE: R

(b) BFHETARERZENEEEZRATINER

Information on:

(@)  the policies, and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and

welfare
B1.1 RIER - BREER - FRARIKRE D HE S EE 51 REE T
Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical region 5.1 Protecting
employees' rights and
interests
B1.2 ZILR - FRAR KR EI DN ERRALE 51 fRIEE THEs

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region -
B2 : BEER2 B2: Health and Safety

—REE General Disclosure
EAREZ2TERERREREBEBELLEEN
@ BE K

b ETHETABEATENEREZRRTINER -

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees from occupational hazards

B2.1 BEZF (BRERFE) SFRITHNABRLE 32 BRI
Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three years including 3.2 Security Risk

the reporting year. Prevention and Control

B2.2 FAIGEXIERR 32 22 ERbE
Lost days due to work injury 3.2 Security Risk

Prevention and Control

B23 PR AR B R R RERT 21 LRBBRTRERTE 33 BERERRE
Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they are 3.3 Occupational Health

implemented and monitored Protection
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BEER ]

Disclosure Indicators Chapters

B3 : EE X B3: Development and Training

—R = General Disclosure

BHRIMEERITLIEREMAARBERENBE - 55 -

i IBIEREET AT REREETNENRIMNIRE o

Policies on improving employee” s knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work. Description of training activities
Note: Training refers to vocational training. It may include internal and external courses paid by the employer

B3.1 U REEER (NMERERE HREEES) 200X IIEEENL S2BHBETERE
The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (e.g. senior 5.2 Promoting staff

management, middle management) development

B3.2 RIERIREEERNE D - BREETKT N TR S2BNBIER
The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee category 5.2 Promoting staff

development
B4 : % T¥#H|  B4:Labor Standard

— M= General Disclosure
BEFIEETISGRHIETH
@ BE: X

b) BETHETABEATENEREZRRGINER -

Information on:

(@)  the policies, and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child and forced

labor
B4.1 s RIS E RS AR R E T RARHAT 5.0 RIEE TR
Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and forced labor 5.1 Protecting
employees' rights and
interests
B4.2 MR EERER B ERABERARRN SR 51 REE TR
Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered 5.1 Protecting

employees' rights and
interests
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BREES =320

Disclosure Indicators Chapters

B g Operation Practices

5 {HFESEEIE B5: Supply Chain Management

—MRE General Disclosure

ERHEENRE R SRBREGE -

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain

B5.1 RSN HHERE 4 RIS (R
Number of suppliers by geographical region 14 /-\ssurmg Supply

B5.2 Wi EBRERRERNED  MENTEBEMNNREREE - URBEEHNRT 14 (RIBHE

REERTE

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and monitored
B5.3 A BB R EESARGHIRE R ERARNED - ARBBRTRERFE
Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along the supply
chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.
HAEREHEERRESBRRERLRENEN - URBBRTRERTE

Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products and services

BS54

when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored.
B6 : EmEIL
—MRE General Disclosure
FAMREERTRBNREREZS BS  B%
@ BE: R
b) ETHETABEATENEBEZNBRIINER -

Information on:

B6: Product Responsibility

BALREEARERITED :

(@)  the policies; and

1.4 Assuring Supply

2R RARYE

3.2 Security Risk

Prevention and Control
2R R E R

3.2 Security Risk

Prevention and Control

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to health and safety,

advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and services provided and methods of redress

B6.1 BEEXCEXEMBRHT R 2 BEFIEMMARRNE D

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health reasons

B6.2 BRENERNRRBORFEE AR EEHTE
Number of products and services related complaints received and how they are dealt with
B6.3 fi it B A T AR PR AR EE R AR 1B 1

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property rights

B6.4 N E S AR REmEYE T
Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures
B6.5 iR B R RE RALRECE - U REBRTRER A
Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are implemented
and monitored
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1.2 Quality Products
1.3 BE R

1.3 Quality Services
2.1 BB R AR
2.1 Inspire Technology
Innovation

12 BEEm

1.2 Quality Products
NE R

Not applicable
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BEER E=1:0]
Disclosure Indicators Chapters
B7 : RES B7: Anti-corruption

—R = General Disclosure

BRI - 9  BEFREREN -

@ BE: K

(b) ETHBRTABBATEMNRREERAGINER

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and

money laundering

B7.1

B7.2

B7.3

&

B8 : HERE

—fRIXE

RERPAHEITAREEERDYEELNETHFARMOEE RFLER LI BEER
Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the issuer or 1.1 Integrity and
its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases Compliance
P E A R RBRRF - ARAEERTRER A LT BEER
Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how they are 1.1 Integrity and
implemented and monitored Compliance
HtMERERE TRHENRETE - LIREERH
Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff. 1.1 Integrity and
Compliance

Community

B8: Community investment
General Disclosure

BN\ B2ERBREENE N ERENRRAEBEIDEER NEMNENOBE -

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities

take into consideration the communities interests

B8.1

B8.2

EIRREE (NHE  REEE HIFR B#F Xt 8BE) 54 BRI EER
Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labor needs, health, 5.4 Contributing to the

culture, sport) Social Development
EEIRBMPAER (NEEHRRE) 54 BRI B ER
Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area 5.4 Contributing to the

Social Development
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Dongyue Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dongyue
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 135 to 277, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”"). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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EAREEIEER Key Audit Matters

PARETSZERSBBETENEEHE - ZAYE  Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
2201 E1N AN B ILEENGSMEHREFNET  were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
XAEEMNEE ZEEEHEEESRARERS statements for the year ended 31 December 2021. These matters were
EUBmEAMEEERRFETERIER - BETE  addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
HZEEHREEBNER - statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do

not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

BREIEE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

B 5 BUCRERER G

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had gross trade
receivables of approximately RMB2,309,447,000 and provision
for impairment of approximately RMB2,260,000.

In general, the credit terms granted by the Group to the
customers ranged between 30 to 90 days for trade receivables.
Management performed periodic assessment on the
recoverability of the trade receivables and the sufficiency of
provision for impairment based on information including credit
profile of different customers, ageing of the trade receivables,
historical settlement records, subsequent settlement status,
expected timing and amount of realisation of outstanding
balances, and on-going trading relationships with the relevant
customers. Management also considered forward-looking
information that may impact the customers’ ability to repay
the outstanding balances in order to estimate the expected
credit losses for the impairment assessment.

We identified trade receivables as a key audit matter due to
the measurement of expected credit losses (“ECL") requires
significant estimates and judgements, including determination
of whether there is significant increase in credit risk, use of
models and assumptions in determination of probability of
default, incorporation of forward-looking information.

128 REKEBRAE ZZ2Z—FFRK

How the key audit matter was addressed in our audit

EENBUMEERRENSR

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment of the trade receivables as at 31
December 2021 included:

- Understanding the management’s estimation on the
allowance for credit losses on trade receivables , and
the key controls that the Group has implemented
to manage and monitor the credit risk of the trade
receivables;

- Checking, on a sample basis, the ageing profile of
the trade receivables as at 31 December 2021 to
the underlying financial records and subsequent
settlements;

- Inquiring of management for the status of each of
the material trade receivables past due as at year end
and corroborating explanations from management
with supporting evidence, such as understanding on-
going business relationship with the customers based
on trade records, checking historical and subsequent
settlement records of and other correspondence with
the customers; and

- Assessing the appropriateness of the expected credit
loss provisioning methodology, examining the key
data inputs on a sample basis to assess their accuracy
and completeness, and challenging the assumptions,
including both historical and forward-looking
information, used to determine the expected credit
losses.



Key audit matter

BEETEE

R2021F 128318 - EEEHEFEFRENFBRAENARE
2,309,447,0007C R (B #EE 4 A R #2,260,0007T ©

—RME  EEERTEPRERZINEEHNT F30E0
R BEBENUTENHE S RKFRN A B EIRE K&
REBREN TR MEETE RN - BRTREFHNERMN
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SRR EEHRNEREENeRMEFETEPNENE
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EERE S REGREN RERETFE WA NER
EEER(EREEER]FEAELEXRHE KA
BREERAREENEEZN BEEZOMEEEEREAR
ARRE - UREEHAREEES -

BYZHBERE
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How the key audit matter was addressed in our audit
EENBTNMEERREENER
ZEHERENR2021F12A31B 38 5 B IB R BT
EARITHREFEE

REEEHE S EWE Eﬁ%%%%%m%ﬁ

EXEEAEERELNESRKFEBEEERR
MERI RS IE SIS BE
- Hﬁﬁﬁﬁmmiuﬁmaﬁ%%%ﬁﬁwm%%
FEWGRIE R A E B A S E MERERIE RN

= mEﬁF@ﬁiiet%XiﬁT%EW%Em#

N WERAYREREEEEENRE  WERE

SR TRETFPINRIAEBHEER ZEFFNE

S REFFECHARERFPHEMRTIER &

— FMETEEEEEERERAMEEE  mEREE

EHEG AT EEERERTENE  WEEARN

ETEREEEENERR - RIEEL RATEEER -

i
&

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2021 129



BYZHERE
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Key audit matter

BEETEE

Fair value of equity investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income

BEAVEFARMEEKE 2 REAREN D FE

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had equity instruments at
fair value through other comprehensive income ( “FVTOCI™) of
approximately RMB390,579,000.

The equity instruments at FVTOCI are within the scope of IFRS
9 and measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. The Group irrevocably elected to present subsequent
changes in fair value of the equity investments at FVTOCI in

other comprehensive income.

We identified equity investments at FVTOCI as a key audit
matter due to the measurement of fair value requires
significant estimates and judgement, including determination
of model adopted, inputs and assumptions adopted, which
could give a material impact to the fair value measured.

R2021F12A31H » EEEEAR L AREE390,579,0007T 2 1%
NFEEFAEMEERE([IEAFEFAELMEEKE])
2RI A o

BAFEFAEMEZEREZBRATABRERM B RS
ERFSEHBER - YR ERSHRIZAFEFE - EKHE
AE R EFREME2m B aR 2R AFEFAR
2 W 2 AR BN X FHEERESD) -

BEBRATES AR 22 RARE S5 M5
FEHEE - U Ty RN AT EERA R EA B R
BRI AR MR RATRA A BR R B - R
BT RO AT EELEALE -
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How the key audit matter was addressed in our audit

EENETNAEERRETSR

Our procedures in relation to management'’s valuation of
the equity instrument at FVTOCI included:

- Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the valuers;

- Evaluating the methodologies used by the valuers in
their valuation of the equity investment at FVTOCI;

- Evaluating the management’s future cash flow
forecasts and the process by which they were drawn
up and compared the inputs data used in the cash
flow forecasts against the historical figures;

- Challenging the key assumptions including revenue
growth rates in the cash flow forecasts by comparing
them to historical results, economic and industry
performance; and

- Checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
reasonableness of the input data used in the cash flow
forecasts provided by management.

EEFREEEHRAFEFAEMEZANREZMATA
MREABNETEE

— AHMEAEMSENREEINL

— FHEBEMESZRAFEFARGEEKE 2 KA
REETHERERNITE

- FHEEEREERRRSAERAREGTEBERE - Wi
BeRnERAMERNBASRBEEBEHFLLE

— BERIZRR BRAFRERRSRERATHK
BIERE - URBERES KERTERE Rk

- MBS AREEEERHERESRERAMANG
ABBRERIE R AR
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Information Other than the Consolidated
Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.
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Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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BYZHBERE
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

—  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats
or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Lock Kwong Hang, Simon with practising
certificate number: PO6735.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

10th Floor, 8 Observatory Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

21 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

A E2021F12H31 A IEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

20214 20204
B aE ARET AREFT
2021 2020
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Uz Revenue 6 15,843,947 10,044,313
HEMRAR Cost of sales (10,626,336) (7,799,717)
E7 Gross profit 5,217,611 2,244,596
EMUA R H A F B Other income and other net gains
and losses 7 182,028 136,207
DI REERT Distribution and selling expenses (336,451) (353,683)
TR N EAR Administrative and other expenses (913,264) (356,845)
BAHE B ARRUES Gain on deemed disposal of a
subsidiary - 40,850
HE—EM B A T EE Loss on disposal of a subsidiary 40 (27,377) -
5 R FEEN A Research and development costs (838,893) (590,471)
AT ES AR SREE Fair value changes on financial assets
N EZE) at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL") 21,870 (3,978)
SME—HEE ARER Share of results of an associate 20,291 4,505
AR AR Finance costs 8 (81,606) (104,560)
BR L A4 Al Profit before taxation 3,244,209 1,016,621
i~ Income tax expense 9 (562,664) (113,765)
F R T Profit for the year 10 2,681,545 902,856
Hitv2mAXZ Other comprehensive expense
W EEF D EE R Item that will not be reclassified to profit
JEH : or loss:
BAFEFAEMEEYEZ Fair value changes on equity
BRATAZ A FEEE instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI") (234,098) (279,531)
AEEZHRELRER Total comprehensive income
for the year 2,447,447 623,325
THE T EIEFARER Profit for the year attributable to:
—ARREHEAAN — Owners of the Company 2,074,843 772,167
— IR R R R - Non-controlling interests 606,702 130,689
2,681,545 902,856
TF& T EEARFZELEYES Total comprehensive income for the
4R year attributable to:
. YNEIE TN — Owners of the Company 1,840,745 492,636
— JEFERR AR R AE — Non-controlling interests 606,702 130,689
2,447,447 623,325
BiREF Earnings per share 13
EAREEARE) Basic and diluted (RMB) 0.98 0.37
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R2021412 5318

As at 31 December 2021

202145 20204F
B =E ARET T AREFTT
2021 2020
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
ERBEE Non-current Assets
/eI Y Property, plant and equipment 15 8,298,069 5,431,745
FRAEEE Right-of-use assets 16 838,270 752,591
EEYE - W REE 2B Deposits paid for purchase of property, 471,203 187,879
Re plant and equipment
R—EBERR 2w Interest in an associate 17 198,321 178,030
EmEE Intangible assets 18 31,357 61,320
BAFEFAEMEEUEE  Equity instruments at FVTOC 20 390,579 402,177
ZBRATH
BAFEFAEBSmIEREE Finandial asset at FVTPL 21 37,669 15,799
RERIRE E Deferred tax assets 22 42,754 56,360
BUWE—EMB A ARIZE  Deposits paid for acquisition of a 23 119,524 =
subsidiary
& Goodwill 24 123,420 123,420
10,551,166 7,209,321
REBEE Current Assets
55 Inventories 25 1,535,814 878,046
EERB2ME Properties for sale 26 1,592,507 2,740,757
B 5 & H M EYGRIA Trade and other receivables 27 2,689,576 1,727,219
BEHIRRITER Pledged bank deposits 28 129,611 290,788
RITEHBRIR Bank balances and cash 28 5,102,552 4,275,728
11,050,060 9,912,538
REAE Current Liabilities
B 5 REMERNFKIE Trade and other payables 29 4,664,371 4,252,985
BE Borrowings 30 268,600 1,406,650
MIEARE Tax liabilities 229,278 47,044
HEAE Lease liabilities 31 4,983 4827
IRIEWA Deferred income 32 80,256 19,569
5,247,488 5,731,075
REBEEFE Net Current Assets 5,802,572 4,181,463
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R2021%12H318

As at 31 December 2021

202145 20204F

B 5E ARET T AREFT

2021 2020

Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

BEERRBERS Total Assets less Current Liabilities 16,353,738 11,390,784

EARR#E Capital and reserves

(&N Share capital 33 212,338 200,397

] Reserves 12,911,243 8,341,909

RAEIHE AEERER Equity attributable to the owners of the 13,123,581 8,542,306

Company

FEIE IR AR R A e Non-controlling interests 34 2,515,042 1,988,206

R Total equity 15,638,623 10,530,512
FREBEE Non-current Liabilities

FEEFIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 22 87,671 78,749

Ep=y Borrowings 30 355,500 497,900

HERRE Lease liabilities 31 35,175 39,894

PRIEWA Deferred income 32 236,769 243,729

715,115 860,272

16,353,738 11,390,784

FIBEXITAZ AV BRREEETSR202F

E=g

SAZIBHERBKETZE - WhH THIALTRERE

RER

Zhang Jianhong

EF

Director

The consolidated financial statements on pages 135 to 277 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21
March 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

R
Zhang Zhefeng

EF

Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

B Z2021 1231 BIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

RATREARE
Attrbutable to owners of the Company
BT
LU fEREnE
el bt BE Jis R
Br BBEE IRRE GHEE  RARE ZAEE R BREER Bt REEH N KREE g
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR \RETn ARETR ARETT ARETR Aﬁﬁﬁ ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
s
Equity held for
instruments Statutory Share  employee Non-
Share Share  atFVIOCI  Merger  Capital Safety  supls  opton  option  Retained controlling
cpital  premium  reseve  reseve  reseve  reseve  reseve  reseve  scheme  eamings  Subfotel  interests Total
AMBOOO  RWBOOD  RMBOOO  RWBOOD  RMBOOO  RVBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBODO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOWO  RMBOO  RWBOWD
() () (b)) (0 ) Ol () (ke (RE)
MNote3d)  Moted)  (Noeb)  floted  (Noted  [Dlotee)  (ote)  (Note3d)  (ote3d)
A IfR At 1 January 2020 0037 120494 (1160995 (BJ20) 195790 397 120869 (168897) 639154 7880019 1075604 8953613
ERg] Poft o the e - - - - - - - mig T e e
BOTEIAZMATNA Farvalue osson equiy
ZBRTEZRTERE  intumentsat VIO - - s - - - (18331 - (3
REELENE(FR)LE Totl compreensie oxpense
income forthe year = SIS | = = = = 6T 4206 130689 623305
g Tingler - - - - - 8 %% (98,694 86 25 1,101
EEERIEIEETEE  Puchaseofhares inder
it employe option scheme - - - - - - (54640) - [s46h) - (460
EFARRRERNET  Accuistion o addional nerest
WELAZENER  nasubsdiay fomnon
(Kiko) contoling ntetests (Note g . . . . . . 66 (663 (06 (3074
BELE-EMBNTE Deemed paral disposal of merest
B ina subsiciay - - - - - - 738143 T3 1247706 1985849
BRYEMHBATY  Deemed diposd ofa ubsiday 5 5 = = = = = - N )51
Biiks Dividends paid - - - - - - (428035 (428039) - (As0%)
FEERENTIRIRA  Ovicends pad by subsiares of
& the Group - - - - - - - - (e 260)
RONENFIBR  Ar31 December 2020 and
EIAIA 1 January 2021 00397 10494 [144052) (2200 195790 483 1319563 (3531 7293080 8542306 1988206 10530512
g Prftfor the year - - - - - - - - Q08B 20MA8B 606700 268155
BOTEIAEOREAE Fai el loss onequiy
ZBRTEZATERE  instumentsat IO - - (%) - - - - - (4% - (4%
FERRENEEE Toul compehensie omefor
the year - - (234099 - - - - - 074843 1840745 606702 244747
& Transler - - - - - 46 264149 (264149) 466 %9 155
BIARELEHRART Recogrton ofequtyetted
share-oased payments - - - - - - - ;3 - - B34 - B3
fiEEhE Bercise o share options - - - - - - - BT 00198 9374 20019 - %
EEEREETEE  Pucheseofhares inde
il employee opton scheme - - - - - - (249159) - (9159) - (9159)
AERHERG Shes reputchased and cancelled (12 (13761) - - - - - - - (1388) - (138)
FETR Placing ofnew shares 12068 2741335 - - - - - - 175339 - 75339
aiike Divicends paid - - - - - - - (246,259)  (246,259) - (46259
N@W%ﬂﬁ AT Diidends pd by subsies o
the Group - - - - - - - - - (80155 (80,155)
E§‘2021 EnRyA At 31 December 2021 138 39498 (1674604 (322100 195,790 589 158712 (270503) 9151291 13123581 251504 15638623
138 REEBERLAR —T=—FF®H
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REFASHERRDEAGKIER) - AAFNBREERA
DELEADRIRMEE  HERREZHENRKBRS 2 A%
ARAEARENEERLERBEB BRI HOEL -

BAFE AL ZERENRATARE

BAFEI AL 2 ERCEHRA T ARBRENSRS
AR ERE 98 SRRV EOR S B 2 R AT BT AK
fo2 a2 BARE 2 AFEREDFED -

BOHRE
A PHEBIRB 2006 TR 2 REEE -
BN

HR2007F11 8160 - ARFRIERARAEEITERE
{B0.135 7T 2 & 3 A%275,000,0008% + M aZ% & 08 o] @ A%
HEZABHZAALCERBEITRA—HEE - AA -
FE18754,000,000,0000 FREBENATT 2 LB - #E
TE AR AN 22 400,000,00078 7T © FA2007811 A15H » [AIRA
& 3R 8% 17275,000,0004% T AR E{B0.1 /& 7T 2 3T & iAAR o B8
Bl & EBAD BTN EE 2 KB A ARG -
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AN Z FRBREEN10% 2 ERBAEE BB

EERBRFEERRRES . — D BHEREDEE
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mERESHR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

EZ20219F12431 AL FE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Notes:
(a) Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands, the share premium
of the Company is distributable to the owners of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

(b) Equity instruments at FVTOCI reserve

The equity instruments at FVTOCI reserve comprises the cumulative net change in
the fair value of equity instruments at FVTOCI under IFRS 9 that are held at the end of
the reporting period.

(c) Merger reserve
Merger reserve arose in group reorganisation completed in 2006.
(d) Capital reserve

On 16 November 2007, the Company repurchased all of the 275,000,000 previously
issued ordinary shares of USS0.1 each and these repurchased ordinary shares were
cancelled with all of the authorised but unissued share capital as of that date. On
the same date, the authorised share capital was increased to HK$400,000,000 by
the creation of 4,000,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each. 275,000,000 new
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each were then issued to the shareholders existing on 15
November 2007. The excess of the repurchased amount over the nominal amount of
new shares issued was credited directly to the capital reserve.

The acquisition of additional interest from non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries
were recognised as transactions with non-controlling interests and the corresponding
discount/premium were credited/debited directly against capital reserve.

(e) Safety reserve

Pursuant to certain regulations issued by the Ministry of Finance and the State
Administration of Work Safety of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"), some of the
Group's PRC subsidiaries are required to set aside an amount of safety reserve at
progressive rates from 0.5% to 4% of the total revenue from the sales of hazardous
chemical. The reserve can be utilised for the spending in improvements and
maintenances of work safety on the Group's daily operations, which are considered
expenses in nature and charged to the profit and loss as incurred.

0 Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of PRC and the relevant Articles of Association,
the PRC subsidiaries of the Company are required to appropriate amount equal
to 10% of their profit after taxation as determined in accordance with the PRC
accounting standards to the statutory surplus reserve.

Statutory surplus reserve is part of shareholders’ equity and when its balance reaches
an amount equal to 50% of the registered capital, further appropriation is not
required. According to the Company Law of the PRC, statutory surplus reserve may
be used to make up past losses, to increase production and business operations or to
increase capital by means of conversion.

(9 During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group further acquired 36% of the
equity interests of Shandong Dongyue Union Property Co., Ltd. (“Union Property”),
from the minority shareholders. Upon completion of acquisition, Union Property
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.
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B E2021F12A31 HIEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

£

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

20214 20204
AR¥T T AREBTIT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
REER OPERATING ACTIVITIES
R Al A Profit before taxation 3,244,209 1,016,621
JHREIEH - Adjustments for:
Eﬂlﬁﬁfﬂi Finance costs 81,606 104,560
TR F B BA Bank deposits interest income (76,102) (63,422)
?E/Al@p‘l')\ﬁ{ﬂiﬁuﬁl $ZBE  Dividend received from equity instruments at
AT EZRREWA FVTOC| (7,200) (7,200)
R A BT Realisation of deferred income (70,938) (21,095)
B H B KGR IR R E Reversal of impairment on other receivables (180) (56)
BRI E 5 WG RE Reversal of impairment on trade receivables (1,852) (120)
ME - WERRETE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 674,810 639,354
E A E A Impairment of intangible assets 4,667 -
B A EH Amortisation of intangible assets 15,738 17,231
FHREEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 28,980 24,686
MWoR(BE)FE Write-down (reversal of) of inventories 69,916 (1,591)
HEDE - S REE Loss (gain) on disposals of property, plant
Ea () and equipment 49,252 (4,089)
WHRAEDE BB AR /K Gain on deemed disposal of a subsidiary = (40,850)
HE—REH B A T K EiE Loss on disposal of a subsidiary 27,377 _
IRATESFABE Y S REE Fair value changes on financial asset at FVTPL
NG (21,870) 3,978
SR N T Y %5 Share of results of an associate (20,291) (4,505)
HEFEREEE Y RS Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets — (3,297)
HEERFEE CEE Loss on disposal of intangible assets = 161
IRFEEE 7 AR R Equity-settled share-based payments 293,774 =
EEESEHII LERSRE Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital 4,291,896 1,660,366
TE%(/HZQ )& N (Decrease) increase in inventories (727,684) 90,731
B 5 K H b fE sk IEE i1 Increase in trade and other receivables (961,810) (123,642)
{/Et}j’%}fﬁﬁZ%%ﬂ ~(3E40) Decrease (increase) in properties for sale 1,148,250 (134,925)
B 5N H b e EIEE Increase in trade and other payables 1,237,498 274,560
REATEEME &S (R )G M (Decrease) increase in deposits from pre-sale of
properties (825,086) 611,525
B AIE 0 Increase in deferred income 124,665 14,957
KESRE Cash generated from operations 4,287,729 2,393,572
DATET SR R F Income taxes and withholding tax paid (373,676) (133,007)
RETHIESRESFR NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 3,914,053 2,260,565




FERTRER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year end December 2021

5 20215 2020F
B aE ARETT ARBTT
2021 2020
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
REED INVESTING ACTIVITIES
EEYE B NRE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (3,957,432) (1,735,378)
HEYE BN REATSIK  Proceeds from disposals of property, plant 83,708 30,039
A . and equipment
XIEREEE Payment for right-of-use assets (123,154) (145,733)
KRB REEEMSHIA Proceeds from disposals of right-of-use 8,495 18417
assets
BERLEE Purchase of intangible assets (2,662) (19,386)
RS Interest received 76,102 63,422
AT EF AEMEEWEZE 2 Dividend received from equity instruments 7,200 7,200
RERATAZRSMA at FVTOC|
PERANFEFAEMEMEY  Proceeds from disposal of equity 116,000 100,000
L R T ARFTSIB instruments at FVTOC|
WigtE N FEA ARMEEY  Payment for acquisition of equity (338,500) (116,000)
a IRART A 2 195k instruments at FVTOC|
BIRIRIR T RIS IE Proceeds from pledged bank deposits 161,177 18,453
WRALE—FMEBARME  Net cash outflow from deemed disposal of 17 = (94,858)
ST a subsidiary
m—EEE A EFE Capital injection to an associate = (100,000)
B — B N B ER AR B, Dividend received from an associate - 14,100
WEE—MHBARMEIES Deposit paid for acquisition of a subsidiary (119,524) =
WARAHE—MMWEBARA  Net cash inflow from disposal of a 40 1,845 =
WemAFHE subsidiary
RETBARSFRE NET CASH USED IN INVESTING
ACTIVITIES (4,086,745) (1,959,724)
Eﬁﬁ‘ﬁi} FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Bl ITHIRFIISRIEE S Net proceeds from issue of new shares
upon placing 2,753,398 =
Z£15EE Borrowings raised 1,072,150 848,000
BEEE Repayments of borrowings (2,352,600) (757,755)
[EEEMRIEHEITE T B Payment on purchase of shares under
S EIE employee option scheme (249,159) (54,640)
ERFLE Interest paid (81,606) (104,560)
SNHEEaE Repayments of lease liabilities (4,563) (4,884)
BERRE Dividends paid (246,259) (428,035)
2 M IR AR IR R X o 2 IR B Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (80,155) (222,166)
[) 3 E 42 PR e 2o At B — Acquisition of additional interests in a
IEYNGIEEEVIN: 3o subsidiary from non-controlling interests = (230,714)
IR R T & Capital contribution from non-controlling
interests - 1,985,849
$EF1EE\E§HX%J§IJH1§,HHTE Proceeds from exercise of options under
FT5 58 employee option scheme 202,193 =
(65 K% 5 38 AR S < Payment on repurchase and cancellation of
shares (13,883) -
BETEERE T NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 999,516 1,031,095
BeRERBESEREMFE  NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 826,824 1,331,936
FOREREFREEA CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 4,275,728 2,943,792
FRAERERRLEA CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF THE YEAR
A Represented by:
RITHEBRRS Bank balances and cash 5,102,552 4275728
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Z2021 1231 BIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

142
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General

Dongyue Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in
the Cayman Islands on 24 July 2006 as an exempted company
with limited liability. The address of its registered office is P.O. Box
31119, Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1205, Cayman Islands. The shares of the Company
have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited since 10 December 2007.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the manufacture, distribution and sale
of polymers, organic silicon, refrigerants and dichloromethane,
polyvinyl chloride (“PVC") and liquid alkali and others. In addition,
the Group is also engaged in property development in the
People’s Republic of China (the "PRC").

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB"), which is also the functional currency of the Company and
its subsidiaries.

Application of amendments to
International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”)

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to IFRSs issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021 for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Covid-19-Related Rent

Concessions

Amendment to IFRS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
- Phase 2

Amendments to IFRS 9,
IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS
16
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Application of new and amendments
to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

In addition, the Group applied the agenda decision of the IFRS
Interpretations Committee of the International Accounting
Standards Board issued in June 2021 which clarified the costs an
entity should include as “estimated costs necessary to make the
sale” when determining the net realisable value of inventories.

The application of the amendments to IFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group's financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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2. Application of new and amendments
to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:
RIS EHHER
sz FEER
Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after
BB B 5 s RSB 75 RERE K RABRRERT 202351 A1H
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related Amendments 1 January 2023
BB B 5 s RSB35 (18T A) BUSER Z fest 20221 A1H
Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022

BRMBHREERNE IR LERETE REFREBENAIAELEIHZEELNEIT R AR FETE < B

A 285k (IBRT )

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and A date to be
its Associate or Joint Venture determined
BRI 5 s RSB 165k (18 RTAN) 202156 A30R R EMASHE 2B ER 202164 A1 H
Amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 1 April 2021
30 June 2021
B ERE 15 (BT A) BESERRBAIERY 202351 A1H
Amendment to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 January 2023
B et ERFE 1R MERM SRS ER SR HRKE 20231 A1H
BB wEE25R (BRI AR)
Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1 January 2023
Statement 2
BIFR & st R F 85k (15T A) BRMAFTNES 20231 A1H
Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023
SRR ERIE 1258 (BRI AR) HE - HEAMNEENBBERBNEENIR 202351 A1H
Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from 1 January 2023
a Single Transaction
BIFR & st 2RI FE 1658 (IEETA) ME - B MRS — BT BRI 2 S FOR 202241 H1H
Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before 1 January 2022

REEBERIE —2-—5FK

Intended Use
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2. Application of new and amendments
to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

RT3 EAEE
Bz FEER
Effective for annual
periods beginning

on or after
BB & E TR E 375 (BT A) BEEH-BIT—HOEH2IKAE 202251 A1H
Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract 1 January 2022
B A s S R (IERT ) BB B 75 ¥ 5 MR R1I20185F 2020 B AR FE it 202251 A1H

Amendments to IFRSs
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o

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018 — 2020

1 January 2022

The directors anticipate that the application of all new and
amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

3. Significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued
by International Accounting Standards Board. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for financial instruments that are
measured at fair value through profit or loss and fair value through
other comprehensive income at the end of each reporting
period. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that
are accounted for in accordance with IFRS 16, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in IAS 2 Inventories or value in use in IAS 36
Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date; Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and Level 3 inputs are
unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

- has power over the investee;

- is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

- has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if

facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control listed above.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2021 147



W]

~ e R AR M R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B E2021F12A31 HIEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

FESFHEEEA)
mEEXE(E)

W%“ﬂﬁ$%@ﬂﬁ%%%ﬂﬂmﬁﬂ%

Rrére AR IF$EI%%H§WEQT
HE BB R LR A AR - AR =N
SERGEHEEREES KEITﬁ$M
MEARER  REFAKRBREENHBA
A AR BaE A2 EE AR
=

BalkAt2EEaSRERBERNAFE
BARSEEBRB R L - B ATNZEK
DREFBEARBEB A RIHEBRARE
& BIE L R S PO R s LR
AHAEER

MEBEARNMBREN VL ERGEITHE
AEESHBOREAREEN ST BR —B -

EAKEX SRR ZAERNAEARER
MOEERAE  BE - WA FXRES
MEHNERE MR B BB -

i B8 2 R SR AR M M 2 D Y SR PR I 1 A 2R ) B
% Eﬁ&ﬁmiﬁ%Aﬁﬁ WA%E

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries
are shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of financial position
respectively.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Changes in the Group's interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not result
in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's
relevant components of equity and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries including re-attribution of relevant reserves between
the Group and the non-controlling interests according to the
Group’s and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amounts by which of the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (i) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to
the owners of the Company. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted
by applicable IFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in
the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under IFRS 9 Financial Instruments or, when applicable, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an associate.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill and then to the other assets of the unit on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit (or group of cash-generating units). Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct
goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of
the relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria
is met:

- the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

- the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Group performs; or

- the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application of IFRS 16 or arising from business combinations,
the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease
based on the definition under IFRS 16 at inception, modification
date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

As a practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics are
accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group reasonably
expects that the effects on the consolidated financial statements
would not differ materially from individual leases within the
portfolio.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

- the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

- any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

- any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

- an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the
lease term are depreciated from commencement date to the end
of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and
the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

- fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable; and

- variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

Variable lease payments that reflect changes in market rental
rates are initially measured using the market rental rates as at the
commencement date. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are not included in the measurement of
lease liabilities and right-of-use assets, and are recognised as
expense in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever:

- the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

- the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review in which cases
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)
The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the related
asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included in the
general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation rate on
general borrowings. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants related to income are recognised in profit or
loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are
intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants of which
the primary condition is that the Group should purchase, construct
or otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred
income in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over
the useful lives of the related assets.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Government grants (Continued)

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively. Where the current tax
or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for
business combination.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than construction in progress
as described below). Property, plant and equipment are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Buildings in the course of construction in progress for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by management and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
other than construction in progress less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect

of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised

in profit or loss.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Interest in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. The financial statements of associates
used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the associate. When the
Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s
interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognizing its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the investment
is acquired.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Interest in an associate (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that
the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
IAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated
to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the former
associate and the retained interest is a financial asset within
the scope of IFRS 9, the Group measures the retained interest
at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair
value on initial recognition. The difference between the carrying
amount of the associate and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing of the relevant interest in the
associate is included in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate on the same basis as would be required
if that associate had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that associate would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as
a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the
relevant associate.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Interest in an associate (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that
had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or
loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate
or joint venture that are not related to the Group.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effective of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at
their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their
cost).
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
(Continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with finite useful lives are reported at costs
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised.

Exploration rights

Exploration rights are recognised at cost on initial recognition.
Subsequent to initial recognition, exploration rights are stated at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Exploration rights include the cost of exploration rights and the
expenditures incurred in the search for natural resources as well
as the determination of the technical feasibility and commercial
viability of extracting those resources.

When the technical feasibility and commercial viability of
extracting natural resources become demonstrable, previously
recognised exploration rights are reclassified as either intangible
or tangible assets. These assets are assessed for impairment before
reclassification.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued)

Impairment of exploration rights

The carrying amount of the exploration rights is reviewed annually.
When one of the following events or changes in circumstances,
which is not exhaustive, indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable has occurred, impairment test is performed in
accordance with IAS 36 “Impairment of assets”.

- the period for which the Group has the right to explore in
the specific area has expire during the period or will expire in
the near future, and is not expected to be renewed.

- substantive expenditure on further exploration for and
evaluation of natural resources in the specific area is neither
budgeted nor planned.

-  exploration for and evaluation of natural resources in the
specific area have not led to discovery of commercially viable
quantities of natural resources and the Group has decided to
discontinue such activities in the specific area.

- sufficient data exist to indicate that, although a development
in the specific area is likely to proceed, the carrying amount
of the exploration and evaluation asset is unlikely to be
recovered in full from successful development or by sale.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets other
than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that these assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets, and intangible assets are estimated individually.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication that
corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication exists,
corporate assets are also allocated to relevant cash-generating
units, when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be established.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.



3. FESFTBER(E)

Y% BERRE  ERAEEER
BEUINEREERE (&)

M EE(SBSELEN) NI KBS
RAEREE  AIBEE(KReEEEN)
MEAEREETKESHE - EXIREE
M—BHBEEES @E%‘Eﬁ%%iﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁ%
BEICEEES »ME AEELE—
ReELES uE’JHEETE BESEEZAR
CEEBUNDPEEESDEEEDBIR
EE ERZABSELEMNAKES
o ROBRERER - AE Lo RER
BUARALHE FREMMTMEE(NER)
RMEREE - RBRLOIREEBEMANSE
ENREOESREHEMWEE - EEMNEREEE
"SR E RN E QR FER SR A (A 5
B) EFREAEMAEBET) REZEFH
Rl  AERSEEEAEMNRESIBSEE
DR EZEMNRZERCEEEMHE
thEE - MEE BN ERRFER -

R EBENERERD - MEE(KRSE
ABNN-ARSELBU)REEMES
,H\%&flx TEET A E S5 - M RREE

FHRAEE(KATELEUX MRS
?E ) CERBEFEYEERRERSRE
M EEETE ) WU RRE (B - LB /&5 1R 18 @ AN B f2
B ER -

meMBHRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EZ20219F12431 AL FE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets other
than goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares the carrying
amount of a group of cash-generating units, including the
carrying amounts of the corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets allocated to that group of cash-generating units, with the
recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating units. In
allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The
amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of
the unit or the group of cash-generating units. An impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of
cash- generating units) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating
units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value
at the end of each reporting date. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Properties for sale

Completed properties for sale and properties under development
for sale are classified as current assets and carried at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises both the prepaid
lease payments for land and development costs for the properties.
Development costs of properties comprise construction costs,
borrowing costs capitalised according to the Group's accounting
policy and directly attributable costs incurred during the
development period. Costs necessary to make the sale include
incremental costs directly attributable to sale and non-incremental
costs which the Group must incur to make the sale. Cost of each
unit in each phase of development is determined using the
weighted average method.

Properties for/under development for sale are transferred to
properties for sale upon completion.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables which are initially measured
in accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the

net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income ("FVTOCI"):

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial recognition of a financial asset the
Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair
value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if
that equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination
to which IFRS 3 “Business Combinations” applies.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial

asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost or

FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly

reduces an accounting mismatch.

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost and calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset
except for financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired (see below) invest income are included in
the “other income” line item.

For financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period.

If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (Continued)

(ii)

Equity instruments at FVTOC!

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the equity instruments at FVTOCI
reserve; and are not subject to impairment assessment. The
cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or
loss on disposal of the equity investments, and will continue
to be held in the equity instruments at FVTOCI reserve.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly
represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the “other income” line item in
profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets (including trade and
other receivables, pledged bank deposits, and bank balances and
cash) which are subject to impairment under IFRS 9. The amount
of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessments
are done based on the Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(i) EEQ/T fie A W52 0 (i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at each
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

- significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

- an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 1 year
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default

criterion is more appropriate.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)~ Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

- the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

- it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined with
the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level may
not yet be available, the financial instruments are grouped
on the following basis:

- Past-due status;

Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortized cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade and other receivables
and other financial assets measured at amortised cost, where
the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when
it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit
or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the
Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is
transferred to retained earnings.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definition of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

All financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and
borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable, is
recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Employee benefit

Retirement benefit cost

The Group contributes to a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “"MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance for all
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employee’s relevant income and are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed in the MPF Scheme.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contribution to the MPF Scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the MPF Scheme vest
immediately.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries which operate in
the PRC are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll costs
to the central pension scheme. The contributions are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the central pension scheme. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
in the central pension scheme. The Group has no forfeiture of
pension scheme contributions (i.e. contributions processed by the
employer on behalf of the employee who has exited the scheme
prior to vesting of such contributions). As at 31 December 2021,
no forfeited contribution under the pension scheme of the Group
is available for deduction of contribution payable in coming years.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Employee benefit (Continued)

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when
employees rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits
are recognised as an expense unless another IFRS requires or
permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such
as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting
any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future
cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in respect of
services provided by employees up to the reporting date. Any
changes in the liabilities” carrying amounts resulting from service
cost, interest and remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that another IFRS requires or permits their
inclusion in the cost of an asset.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Share based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve). At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number of
equity instruments expected to vest based on assessment of all
relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share options reserve. For share
options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair value
of the share options granted is expensed immediately to profit or
loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will continue to be
held in share options reserve.

When shares granted are vested, the amount previously

recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Shares purchased for employee option scheme

When the Company'’s shares are purchased from the open market
for employee option scheme, the consideration paid, including
any directly attributable incremental costs, is presented as shares
held for employee option scheme and deducted from total equity.

The fair value of services received from employees determined by
reference to the fair value of shares granted at the grant date is
expenses on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in share option reserve.

At the time when the shares vested, the difference on the
amounts previously recognised in shares held for employee
option scheme and the amount recognised in share option
reserve is transferred to retained earnings.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concurring the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Provision for ECL on trade receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment on trade receivables based on the expected credit
losses which uses a related loss allowance for all trade receivables.
The loss allowances for financial assets are based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs
to the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past history,
existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates
at the end of each reporting period. Management reassesses the
provision at each balance sheet date.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

As at 31 December 2021, certain of the Group's financial assets,
unquoted equity instruments and unlisted Put Option, amounting
to RMB390,579,000 (2020: RMB402,177,000) and RMB37,669,000
(2020: RMB 15,799,000) respectively are measured at fair value with
fair value being determined based on significant unobservable
inputs using valuation techniques. Judgment and estimation are
required in establishing the relevant valuation techniques and the
relevant inputs thereof. Changes in assumptions relating to these
factors could result in material adjustments to the fair value of
these instruments.
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4. Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(Continued)
Deferred tax assets

As at 31 December 2021, a deferred tax asset of RMB42,754,000
(2020: RMB56,360,000) in relation to certain deductible temporary
differences and unused tax losses has been recognised in
the Group's consolidated statement of financial position. The
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether
sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences will be
available in the future. In cases where the actual future taxable
profits generated are less or more than expected, or change in
facts and circumstances which result in revision of future taxable
profits estimation, a material reversal or further recognition of
deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in
profit or loss for the period in which such a reversal or further
recognition takes place.

Impairment assessment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated,
which is the higher of the value in use or fair value less costs
of disposal. The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit (or a group of cash-generating units) and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, or
change in facts and circumstances which results in downward
revision of future cash flows, a material impairment loss/further
impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of goodwill
amounted to RMB123,420,000 (2020: RMB123,420,000). Details of
the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 24.
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Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowings as
disclosed in note 30, pledged bank deposits, bank balances
and cash and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising share capital, share premium, reserves and retained
earnings.

The directors review the capital structure on a semi-annual
basis. As a part of this review, the directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of
existing debt.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2021 187



mEMBRERME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Z2021 1231 BIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

5. EXERRMERREERR
RBUR ()
(a) EWMITANESE

5. Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

(a) Categories of financial instruments

20214 20204
AR¥T T ARETIT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
EREE Financial assets
REHEK A RO S BEE Financial assets at amortised cost 7,846,187 6,116,192
BAFEFAEMEZEWEZ  Equity investments at FVTOCI
R E 390,579 402,177
BAFEFABENESREE  Financial asset at FVTPL 37,669 15,799
8,274,435 6,534,168
TEAE Financial liabilities
BEER R Amortised cost 4,442,556 3,866,250
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(b) Financial risk management objectives and

Policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, financial asset at FVTPL, equity
instruments at FVTOCI, deposit paid for acquisition of
subsidiary, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash,
trade and other payables and borrowings. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The Group’s management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

Policies (Continued)

Market risks

(i

Currency risk

The functional currencies of the PRC subsidiaries are
RMB with most of the transactions settled in RMB.
However, foreign currency (mainly the United States
dollar "USS$") were received when the Group earned
revenue from overseas customers and when settling
payables for purchases of machinery and equipment
from the overseas suppliers.

The Group does not have any hedging policy to
manage the risk arising from foreign currency
transactions. In order to reduce the risk of holding
foreign currencies, the Group normally converts the
foreign currencies into RMB upon receipt while taking
into account its foreign currencies payment schedule in
the near future.
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
Policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities

T at the reporting date are as follows:
BE =N
Assets Liabilities
20215 2020%F 20215 20204
ARBTRE ARETT ARETR AREBTET
2021 2020 2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
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At 31 December 2021, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 10% against US$ with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have
been RMB31,077,000 higher/lower (2020: RMB34,053,000
lower/higher), mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of US$ denominated bank
balances and cash and trade and other receivables.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk
as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

Policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate borrowings (see note 30 for details
of these borrowings). At 31 December 2021, 14.26%
(2020: 10.45%) of the Group's borrowings bear fixed
interest rates.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to bank deposits, and variable-rate
borrowings.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of the market deposit
rate and the PRC official lending rate arising from the
Group's RMB borrowings. The Group aims at keeping
borrowings at variable rates. The Group manages its
interest rate exposures by assessing the potential
impact arising from any interest rate movements based
on interest rate level and outlook. The management
will review the proportion of borrowings in fixed and
floating rates and ensure they are within reasonable
range.
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

Policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for bank
balances and variable-rate borrowings. The analysis
is prepared on the financial balance at the end of
reporting period. 10 and 25 basis points (2020: 10 and
25 basis points) increase or decrease is used which
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rate.

In relation to the Group's exposure to interest rates risk
on bank deposits, if interest rates had been 10 basis
points (2020: 10 basis points) higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group's post-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2021 would increase/
decrease by RMB401,000 (2020: RMB1,279,000).

Furthermore, in relation to the Group’s exposure to
interest rates risk on variable-rate borrowings, if interest
rates had been 25 basis points (2020: 25 basis points)
higher/lower and all other variables held constant, the
Group's post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2021 would decrease/increase by RMB1,003,000 (2020:
RMB3,198,000), mainly as a result of higher/lower
interest expenses on floating rate borrowings.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.



meMBHRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 2202112431 B IFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

5. EXEREMEREKREEBRME 5. Capital risk and financial risk management
RBER (&)

(b) B EMEEBERBR (&)

objectives and policies (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

EE R KRBT

EFERAREARENZSHTFROEHR
AEEBEXWHERNER - AEER
EERBREIERAE S REMEKR
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BEFRERRFEA -

AEBZEBE I NEERREZEE
FRERE - (EEZE2021F12 831 HEK
SR R ABRERY44.72% (20204F : 49.69%) °
R2021F 128318 - AEENEERR
S HEWRERRAETER21.81% (2020
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Policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties
default on their contractual obligations resulting in financial
losses to the Group. The Group’s credit risk exposures are
primarily attributable to trade and other receivables, pledged
bank deposits and bank balances. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its
credit risks associated with its financial assets.

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
parties. Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant. The credit quality of customers is assessed after
taking into account the customers’ financial position and
past experience with the customers.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in PRC, which accounted for 44.72% (2020:
49.69%) of the total trade receivables as at 31 December
2021. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had concentration
of credit risk, 21.81% (2020: 10.04%) of its total trade
receivables were due from its largest customer and 44.85%
(2020: 32.84%) of its total trade receivables were due from
its top five customers respectively. In order to minimise the
credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit limits and credit
approvals.
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

Policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers
(Continued)

In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment
under ECL model on trade balances based on provision
matrix, except for the trade receivables with significant trade
balances and credit impaired which are assessed individually.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns
(i.e., by geographic region and internal credit rating). The
calculation reflects the probability weighted outcome,
the time value of money and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the end of reporting period
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

Pledged bank deposits and bank balances

Credit risk on pledged bank deposits and bank balances
is limited because the counterparties are reputable banks
with high credit ratings assigned by international credit
agencies. Management does not expect any losses from non-
performance by these counterparties. The Group assessed
12m ECL for pledged bank deposits and bank balances by
reference to information relating to probability of default
and loss given default of the respective credit rating grades
published by external credit rating agencies. Based on the
average loss rates, the 12m ECL on pledged bank deposits
and bank balances is considered to be insignificant.
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5. EXEMREEEEKREEBE 5. Capital risk and financial risk management
RBER (&)

(b) BiHEEEERE R FERBER(E)

objectives and policies (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
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Policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Other receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits excluding prepayment,
the management makes periodic individual assessment on
the recoverability of other receivables based on historical
settlement records, past experience, and also quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information. The management believes
that there are no significant increase in credit risk of these
amounts since initial recognition and the Group provided
impairment based on 12m ECL. For the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020, the Group assessed the ECL for
other receivables and deposits are insignificant and thus no
loss allowance is recognised.
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

Policies (Continued)

the following categories:

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment comprises

Other financial

assets/
Internal credit rating Description Trade receivables  other items
HpemEE
A= ERTAR Hiat EE ) e HH A
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and  Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
does not have any past-due amounts not credit-impaired
(i9EN RGEFROARE - BXBEAEHPFE FEHAEHEEES REAEHREES
B-EBEERE 18
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
usually settle in full not credit-impaired
ERRE BEAZ RN BRES  BREEXHN FEHEHREEES REAESREES
B B-EEERE |
Doubtful There have been significant increases in Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
credit risk since initial recognition through not credit-impaired  not credit-impaired
information developed internally or external
resources
AJ &% FRATSLISNLRRNER - BTHE GENERCEE HFEHEHAGEES
RBIARAS B\ b B 1E 0 B-BEERE B-BEERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-  Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
B8 BRBXRATEESEERE FEBEREES HTEPRBEES
B-®|EERE B—EERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is  Amount is written off Amount is written off
in severe financial difficulty and the Group
has no realistic prospect of recovery
T 38 EEBETNERARRBENREEE - A SREREHE TR C M
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

Policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

Management monitors the utilisation of borrowings. The
Group relies on borrowings as a significant source of
liquidity. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had available
undrawn borrowing facilities of RMB3,521,510,000 (2020:
RMB2,460,250,000). Details of which are set out in note 30.

Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows.

20215
#3f A AR 128318
il RNk S AR 1Z3f8A BE EIFESE RENEAE  WEREE
ARETR  ARETR ARETT ARETz AR%Tn ARETR
Carrying
Weighted Over Over Total  amountat
average Less than 3 months to Tyearto undiscounted 31 December
interest rate Tmonth  1-3 months 1 year 5years  cashflows 2021
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

20215125318 31 December 2021
B RAMERTE Trade and other payables - 1912330 1,095,116 756,218 54792 3818456 3,818,456

B8 Borrowings

—“E8 - fixed rates 1.17% 373 49,617 40,333 - 90,323 89,000
%8 - variable rates 4.34% 43,090 3,668 154,008 356,820 557,586 535,100
1955793 1,148,401 950,559 41612 4466365 4,442,556
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5. EXERRMERREERR

RBUR (&)

(b) Bt PEERE B FERBUR(E)

5. Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

Policies (Continued)

FEESEME(E) Liquidity risk (Continued)
BN E DN FRE e 2K (&) Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)
W0E
B3fEA AER 128318
IETaHE AR 133fEA BE RIEEE ROREER  oEEE
ARRTT  ARETRT ARETR ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Canying
Weighted Over Over Total amount at
average Less than 3 months to lyearto  undiscounted 31 December
interest rate 1 month 1-3 months 1 year 5 years cash flows 2020
RMBI000 RMBI000 RMB000 RMB1000 RMBI000 RMBI000
20205128318 31 December 2020
BARAMENFE Trade and other payables = 1378639 605,758 772658 57850 2814905 2814905
frE Borrowings
-8 - Fixed rates 372% 100,326 300 99,000 = 199626 199,000
-38 - variable rates 487% 259117 9,500 993,123 501,654 1,7633% 1,705,550
1,738,082 615558 1,864,781 559,504 4777925 4719455

() ETMITANQTFEE

H
=8

RUBREE S AREBHLMT
LR ATFAERE -

EREATES - AREERTEMS
TEEBS - RE=BRTAEATT

BB ABEBNTAMNS -

AR EES

AR EERMEMETHE - TR
REERUAETATTREENRF

B -
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(c) Fair value measurements of financial

instruments

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are measured at
fair value for financial reporting purposes.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. For instruments
with significant unobservable inputs under level 3, the
Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform the
valuation. The following table gives information about how
the fair values of these financial assets are determined.
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5. EXERRMBEREEZESR 5.
RBUR ()

() ERMTENAFETEGE)

Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

TABREGABBEHATY

BE2HRBE BE

Sensitivity/

SREE RTSIRANAYE

Fair value as at

AVEESR MHERTREZEALE BEXTABRRARE

relationship of

20215 20206 unobservable
Fair value  Valuation technique and inputs to
Financial assets 2021 2020 hierarchy  key inputs Significant unobservable inputs fair value
ARBT R ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BATMEIALGS FLORAR  EEMBAR $ZE  WApA-URRLREAR WNE EEERRASAECEEKETN  METYEARALR
EfEaRAL B— 82254 B 402,177 RIS EHZE AT = ERAA/ MRETHERRA - N T7.6% = e
& GHREE REARRE 210%(2020%F : 11.65%Z13.56%) © HERBE  DF
SRR IBE BHE  R2TA
R mERREMETHME  FEREER
BUEEMETHRIERERRESE
RERRET * B20.1%
(2020%F : 206%) ©
Equity instruments Unlisted equity ~ Unlisted equity ~ Level 3 Income approach - discounted  Discount rate, taking into account the cost The lower the COE/
at Fv10CI instruments - instruments - cash flow method was of equity (COE)/weighted average cost of WACC or discount for
82,254 402,177 used to capture the present capital (WACC) determined using a Capital lack of marketabili
value of the expected future  Asset Pricing Model, ranging from 7.6% to acdoimarketabilty;
econornic benefits to be 10% (2020: 11.65% to 13.56%). the higher the fair
derived from the ownership value, and vice versa.
of this investee, based on an  Discount for lack of marketability, determined
appropriate discount rate. by a number of research studies including
restricted stock studies by an independent
) valuer, of 20.1% (2020: 20.6%). N
FEMBRAR  FLTRAR £=E TR E—ERRBERNA W ERRREHISE EHRHERES
- 308325 E-% AEpetmranzxs - ATEES R
&8 B MEREIEMETMEE - B2 @ EiEh 2% » Bz
BUREMETHRFMRERAESE wEEmNE
REMRET * B20.1%° AR - APES
B RZIA -
Unlisted equity Unlisted equity ~ Level 3 Market approach - based on  Recent transaction price of the comparable The higher the recent
instruments - instruments - trading multiples derived public companies transaction price,
308,325 nil from publicly traded the higher the
companies that are similar - Discount for lack of marketability, determined fair value and vice
to the subject company. by a number of research studies including versa. The lower the
restricted stock studies by an independent discount for lack of
valuer, of 20.1%. marketability, the
higher the fair value,
and vice versa.
BATESARESN (IESRTA- (TESRIE  H=E PRE-AEHEA—a2fE X BREBSHERACOPEIENGYN  FREE ATEY
TREE IHRE  —kEmRES BETANSRMZEE BEMGETE - /8244%(2020F : 281%): & RZIFA
HERE— 37,669 & Y2ER  RESENN o N o \
15,799 LFREMETE B RETALBAREGEANSRRE ORERA ATES
HgREtRERNSARBERNER B RZIHA -
REZRE - A5072%(2020%F © 448%) °
Financial asset at Derivative Derivative  Level 3 Black-Scholes model - Interest rate, based on the yield curve of China The lower the interest
FVTPL financial financial mathematical model for Sovereign Curve as of valuation dates, of rate, the higher the
instruments instruments the dynamics of a financial 244% (2020: 2.81%); fair value and vice
- unlisted Put - unlisted Put market containing derivative versa;
Option - Option - investment instruments,
37,669 15,799 based on an appropriate Volatility, estimated based on annualised The higher the
interest rate and the standard deviation of daily stock price return volatility, the
volatility. of comparable companies for the period higher the fair
before valuation date and with similar time value and vice
span as time to expiration, of 50.72% (2020: versa.

44.8%).
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

instruments (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

RAFETA
BRAFETA Hih2EUREH
BENEREE =
ARETT ARETT
Financial asset of Equity instruments
FVTPL at FVTOCI
RMB'000 RMB'000
7202051 A1H At 1 January 2020 — 668,708
2200 B Grant of put option 19,777 =
wEE Total losses:
—REMEERE — in other comprehensive income - (279,531)
— KB —in profit or loss (3,978) =
BE Purchases - 116,000
BAELE—FEHNBAR Deemed disposal of a subsidiary - (3,000)
HE Disposals = (100,000)
M2020F12A318 K At 31 December 2020 and
202141 A1A 1 January 2021 15,799 402,177
B (E518) - Total gains (losses):
—REMEERE — in other comprehensive income - (234,098)
—RiE&E —in profit or loss 21,870 =
[ Purchases = 338,500
HE Disposals = (116,000)
2021512 A31H At 31 December 2021 37,669 390,579
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6. WzmRkoHBER 6. Revenue and segment information
WESEREEREEEEHIRE - Revenue represents revenue arising on sales of goods and
properties.
6.1 Wz 6.1 Revenue
BEASHWMEEDI : Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers:
LIER S m
Chemical Property
products development Total
201 2005 2021 2005 20215 2005
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

ARBTRE ARETT ARBTR ARETR AREBTR ARETR
RMB'000 RMBO0O  RMB'000 RMBO0O  RMB'000 RMBI000

ERSREES Types of goods or service
HENIED Sales of chemical products
BATHE Polymers 4,825,266 3,191,941 - - 4825266 3,191,941
2RH Refrigerants 3,337,155 2,066,120 - - 3337155 2,066,120
by 2 Organic silicon 4,184,131 2,453,749 - - 4184131 2,453,749
8RR PVCRER Dichloromethane PVC and

liquid alkali 1,537,795 1,224,183 - - 1,537,795 1,224,183

13,884,347 8,935,993 - - 13,884,347 8935993

Rt 25 Other operations 505,241 383,202 - = 505,241 383,202
R E Property development - = 1,454,359 725,118 1,454,359 725,118
L] Total 14,389,588 9319195 1,454,359 725118 15,843,947 10044313
HELIER Sale of chemical products
HEEY 2 W (K MBRIGER S H A Revenue (net of value added tax or other sales taxes) from
HEBBR) DERFPRABENHEIE the sale of goods is recognised at a particular point in time
BRSNS ERERER  —RAED when customers have control of the promised goods, which
ERMNEFMEF D EME AR - is generally the time when goods are delivered to customers

and customers have accepted the goods.
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6. Wk o EBER (M)

6. Revenue and segment information

(Continued)

6.1 W= (48)

EEEEYE S
HEERRTEEMEZ W I ER
FIREHERR o L YA RE RS HIRS R
BIEFBRENETRYENERLEEY
KHBAED RN s OBFE © UL
SIERE 2 At TP RS kD H
NHRTIFF AR B BERRERF AL
BfEl-

PTHMEFEFENZHRTENEENRS
B

BRERTEEMENHEN  FAHE
BONRRTERHRA—FHEE - R
IEBR MRS R E 155 - WENE
PEEZFAHNBRTRONEEZIRS
{E1& -

R2021F 2020512 31BN ERERT
BHEE(RETHBDBIT)NRZE
1% & FE AR R U G MBS R A0 T

6.1 Revenue (Continued)

Property development

Revenue from sales of completed residential properties is
recognised at a particular point in time. This is the time
when legal assignment is completed which is the time when
the customer has ability to direct the use of the property
and obtain substantial all of the remaining benefits of the
property. Deposits and instalments received from customers
prior to this revenue recognition point are included in
“Contract liabilities” in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with customers

All sales contracts, apart from sale of completed residential
properties, have an original expected duration of one year
or less. As permitted under IFRS 15, the transaction price
allocated to the remaining performance obligation for these
contracts is not disclosed.

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations for sales of properties (unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 and the
expected timing of recognising revenue are as follows:

ERIEEYENHEE
Sales of completed
residential properties

20214 20204

2021 2020

AR®TT ARETT

RMB’000 RMB'000

—FA Within one year 522,331 1,454,359
ZR—FBTLZRMEF More than one year but

not more then two years 1,024,136 522,331

1,546,467 1,976,690

202 BEKEERAT —FT-—FEH
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6. WzmkoEBER (&) 6. Revenue and segment information
(Continued)

6.2 K&EDEP 6.2 Operating Segments
NEEEBIRERRMERTER The Group's operations are organised based on the different
glp o MARNRESS(AMBEEERSE types of products and property development. Information
AN) ([REFEREADBRENEERS reported to the board of directors of the Company, being the
Bt 2 o HRI[ELENER MR ER Y chief operating decision maker (‘“CODM”), for the purposes of
ERBHOBERZN o W HAER 2 EE resource allocation and assessment of segment performance
it o focuses on types of products and property development.

This is the basis upon which the Group is organised.

REBZEERZHRHFMT The Group's operating and reportable segments are as
follows:

— RDFME - Polymers;

- BURA - Refrigerants;

— B = Organic silicon;

— ZERE - PVCRER = Dichloromethane, PVC and liquid alkali;

— WEMRZE-TEPEILERERHAE = Property development — development of residential
BERREEME R properties in Shandong and Hunan Province, the PRC;

and

- EMmEBK-SERBEERIES = Other operations — manufacturing and sales of side-
B moFMRSE - BRES products of refrigerants segment, polymers segment,
R SR - PVCR R D I organic silicon segment and dichloromethane, PVC
BlEM  RESEA - and liquid alkali segment and rental income.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2021 203



e MBHRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Z2021 1231 BIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

6. WmkoaEBE R (&) 6.

6.2 REDER(1E)

REBIZEHR MK LD IR N EE
RIDHTETR ©

BZE2021F12A31HILLEE

Revenue and segment information
(Continued)

6.2 Operating Segments (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and
results by reportable and operating segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2021

ERR
EATiE  HRE BHE PVCR R HENE  RHER He ag
Dichloromethane
Organic PVCand Property Other
Polymers Refriggrants §ilicon quuid/alkali development operations EIimingtions ‘Total
ARRTT ARMTT ARETR AEETT  ARMTT ARETn ARETn AREfR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
HoME Extemnal sales 4825206 3337155 4184131 1,537,795 1,454,359 505,241 — 15,843,947
NuEREE Inter-seqment sales - 2464267 - 15,611 - 1135858 (3,615736) -
Bl -HIRE T revence - seqmentrevence IS5 SN 484 1SSA06 T30 1641099 (B615TE) 1584304
DEIES SEGMENT RESULTS 1449771 637,632 1,267,885 136,612 25,125 129,010 - 3,646,035
FompgET Unallocated corporate expenses 41,230)
RATETABRE  Fairvalue changes on financial asset
SHEE, atATPL
LERD 21870
HE—THBAE  Loss on disposalof a subsicary
g (2137)
BE-TBEAT  Share of estlts of an associte
3 20,91
IREELE 2R TR Fquity-settled share-based payments (293,774)
BERK Finance costs (81,606)
BaaR Profitbefore taxation 3,204209
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6. Revenue and segment information
(Continued)
6.2 Operating Segments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

. e
SRR BRE B#E PICRER REmE  AfRK Ha ]
Dichloromethane
Organic PVCand Property Other
Polymers Refrigerans Slicon liuid alkai -~ development o&eratiorls Eiminations Toal
ARETL  ARETR  ARETR AEBTL  ARETn  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RIB00 RB00 RMBI000 RMB000 RMBI000
He Exemne ses 3O 206610 2453749 124183 (/31T Y - 1004313
ABEmEE Inter-seqment sales - 147585 = 154% = 175 (2169015) -
BE-DE0E ot revenue - segment
fevenue 3191941 3541976 2453749 1239617 518 1000927 (2169015 10044313
PEES SEGMENT RESLLTS Bodel Ik 14 094 102066 57463 SN 173
ARARFR Unallocated corporate expenses (2943)
RANE-FHE  Ganondeemed diposalof a
DAhE  subiday 40850
RATETABE  Falrvalue changes on inandial aset
LEREEZ AL
[FES 597y
HE—RBERT  Shareof esuls of an asocite
5B 4505
BENA Finance costs (104.50]
BiaR Profit before tavation 1016621

7 BPRAE IR B B R 9 BB S B
RITHEA ~ BIEEE Z AR IR
ExFHe  NhHEBMEQRERE
RFEFABRSNEREEZ A TEER
B HE-RNBAREE R\AHE
—HEMB AR MRS RBERARZIER
T B0 BEMES - WIIMAEERE
AZHAEERD I R RIRFEHFTE
HE - HREHEERBBEN D HMER
WIRRLERRAZRAEE RS
RRBFENEE - BUB2IIZFE
o

SRR B 88 TR (T T R B o

Segment results represent the results of each segment
without allocation of unallocated expenses and central
administration costs, equity-settled share-based payments,
directors’ salaries, share of results of an associate, fair value
changes on financial asset at FVTPL, loss on disposal of a
subsidiary, gain on deemed disposal of a subsidiary and
finance costs. This is the measure reported to the CODM
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment. No segment information on assets and
liabilities is presented as such information is not reported
to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2021 205



e MBHRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Z2021 1231 BIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

6. Wk o EBER (M)

EREBEE

FREERIBZED FHHDBRAINR
EFHREER

Revenue and segment information
(Continued)
Entity-wide disclosures

Information about revenue from polymers segment by
products from external customers

20214 20204

2021 2020

ARBT ARETFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

BPUR LI (PTFE) Polytetrafluoroethylene (PTFE) 2,049,729 1,694,148
FNEA I (HFP) Hexafluoropropylene (HFP) 401,913 172,724
NEERT K Perfluorocyclobutane 85,919 79,243
B2HE LMWK (FEP) Fluorinated ethylene propylene (FEP) 544,258 445359
R L) (PVDF) Polyvinylidene fluoride (PVDF) 1,360,947 493,020
SR B (FKM) Fluorine rubber (FKM) 272,308 172,381
EBT AR Perfluorinated ion-exchange membrane 27,244 =
1R 8. 2. )% (VDF) Vinylidene fluoride (VDF) 31,451 5,869
HAh Others 51,497 129,197
4,825,266 3,191,941
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

WKk oEER (&) 6. Revenue and segment information
(Continued)
B (1) Entity-wide disclosures (Continued)
AERERDESHAB S BREIRES Information about revenue from refrigerants segment by
g products from external customers
20214 20204
2021 _ 2020
ARMTF T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
— &R FLL(HCFC-22) Monochlorodifluoromethane (HCFC-22) 857,013 740,020
M LR 34a Tetrafluoroethane (R134a) 123,490 148,715
AR|LER Pentafluoroethane (R125) 279,646 15,530
R410a R410a 314,336 239,425
R142b R142b 809,271 147,942
R152a R152a 168,570 120,805
R32 R32 435,087 414,933
R507A R507A 34,753 17,200
R407C . R407C 8,145 16,825
maqbhx Carbon tetrachloride 132,176 -
R439A R439A 1,891 -
Efh Others 172,777 204,725
3,337,155 2,066,120
EBRRERTEEREDERENIRKREF Information about revenue from organic silicon segment by
Bk EE R products from external customers
20214 20204
2021 2020
ARMT T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
DMC(ZHREESEEIRE) DMC (Dimethylcyclosiloxane) 36,009 18,479
107818 B 107 Silicon Rubber 1,949,076 1,228,615
£ Raw Vulcanizate 662,555 384,957
SRR B Gross Rubber 441,813 246,175
SERxRE Gaseous Silica 99,595 87,121
DMC/K ) DMC Hydrolysate 1,036 17,559
_EF'%%%P Trimethylchlorosilane 191,119 132,209
2a — Stk Methyldichlorosilane 13,685 7,686
ﬁ;? 5 DMC DMC Lineament 84,369 34,644
D4\ EIRMAEAST) D4 (Octamethyl Cyclotetrasiloxane) - 60
D3 . D3 11,343 8,322
=R End containing hydrogen silicone oil 106,370 =
Stk L LR End epoxy silicone oil 89,008 -
SRR containing hydrogen silicone oil 81,631 =
% 2,15 B End vinyl silicone oil 49,985 =
_Eﬁ%ﬁi/ﬁ Dimethyl silicon ol 138,139 93313
Hit Others 228,398 194,609
4,184,131 2,453,749
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6. Wk o EBER (M)

6. Revenue and segment information
(Continued)

EfgRpEiE (&) Entity-wide disclosures (Continued)

EERERDE2-S%8 R PVCRIER D Information about revenue from Dichloromethane, PVC and

MR EIIREE RS E R liquid alkali by products segment from external customers
20214 2020%F
2021 2020
AR¥F ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
PVC PVC 544,017 614,796
&Rk Dichloromethane 371,536 170,088
K Liqui alkali 622,242 439,299
1,537,795 1,224,183

FRRERT B HMEE D BRAIIRE
FHlmER

Information about revenue from other operations segment by
products from external customers

20215 20204

2021 2020

AR%T AREFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

HEz Methanol - 38,949
HFCs(E &kt &™) HFCs (hydro fluorocarbons) = 35,261
AHF (K BLE) AHF (Anhydrous Fluoride) 9,038 3,013
R Ik Ammonium Bifluoride 51,884 49,695
T Hydrofluoric Acid 65,443 46,200
RE Bromine 51,136 48,949
PR Neutral glue 83,698 26,183
BEE Fluorgypsum 13,698 14,824
Eith Others 230,344 120,128
505,241 383,202

REEBERIE —2-—5FK
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6. WKk oHER (&) 6. Revenue and segment information
(Continued)
EfeRpEE (&) Entity-wide disclosures (Continued)
BERETERFEHR Information about major customers
HE20201F K200 12A31B IFEEHE R There was no revenue from a single customer that contributed
BE 2P WS ANEBAEETEN10% over 10% of the total sales of the Group for the years ended 31
BAE December 2021 and 2020.
hEE R Geographical information
REFHRBINKEE Z INFIRR PR EFE The Group's revenue from external customers by geographical
FORNE location of customers is detailed below:
20216 2020%F
2021 2020
ARBTR ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
R (fE{EE) PRC (Country of domicile) 13,326,436 8,498,807
oM (BreE BISI) Asia (except PRC)
—HA& ~ Japan 527,593 267,938
— 5 — South Korea 520,591 363,054
—HIE - India 86,248 60,895
— AN - Singapore 33,179 18,648
—%H - Thailand 23,613 30,439
— PR A A R E — United Arab Emirates 94,340 80,471
—EBEHE ~ Pakistan 19,290 33,143
—BRAEDR - Malaysia 40,326 36,281
—BHERF ~ Kuwait 15,632 14,779
— PR — Saudi Arabia 895 6,821
—HIE e — Indonesia 13,213 13,227
— LA — Israel 325 2,628
—JEREE — Philippines 6,084 4812
— iR — Viet Nam 29,901 25,491
—tHH ~ Turkey 29,510 62,817
=R — Other countries 150,365 15,636
/Nt Subtotal 1,591,105 1,037,080
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6. Wk o EBER (M)

210

6. Revenue and segment information

(Continued)
EfgRpEiE (&) Entity-wide disclosures (Continued)
1 EE R Geographical information (Continued)
20214 20204
2021 2020
AR®ET T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
EM America
—XH — United States of America 239,783 166,469
] — Brazil 45,391 56,440
— 2% — Chile = 1,548
—HABEE — Other countries 164,315 39,752
NET Subtotal 449,489 264,209
20214 20204
2021 2020
AR®ET T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BOM Europe
—BXA — Italy 159,977 103,059
— K - England 10,180 4,003
— & - Russia 14,628 11,301
— R - Germany 40,566 9,036
—AE — France 12,432 9,498
—7FaIEsF - Spain 11,851 2,638
— EE )R — Belgium 11,148 389
— K - Poland 5,015 3,603
—HMEx — Other countries 141,944 37,274
INEF Subtotal 407,741 180,801

REEERRAF —_F=—
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 2202112831 B IFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Revenue and segment information
(Continued)

EEEEE () Entity-wide disclosures (Continued)
EER (&) Geographical information (Continued)
20214 20204F
2021 2020
ARET T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
IEIMN Africa
—F3k - South Africa 26,708 15,930
—-5&k - Egypt 1,483 10,802
A= P EEL - Nigeria 21,509 22,486
—HABEER — Other countries 5,766 4,851
NEE Subtotal 55,466 54,069
HiBER @ Other countries/regions 13,710 9,347
15,843,947 10,044,313

BZE20215F12A318 - REEREB5% (2020
F:100%)RERBEE (SR ITARELER
BEEBRIMNMRPE - Bt - WEZ7|H
AR EE S HFEREEENER o

Over 95% of the Group’s non-current assets other than financial
instruments and deferred tax assets (2020: 100%) are located in
the PRC as at 31 December 2021. Accordingly, no information
about its non-current assets by geographical location is presented.
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Wk oHER (&) 6. Revenue and segment information
(Continued)
Hitp EE R Other segment information
. “Efn
BATHR H 0 ABE PVCR & FROE  RHER 2
Dichloromethane
Organic PVCand Property Other
Polymers Refrigerants Silicon liquidalkali ~ development  operations Total
AEBTT MEBTT  ARETR AEBTR AR®TR  AREfR  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
1§ 01
FANBERNEE: Amountsincluded n the measures of segment proft orlss
0% RERGENE Depreciaion of propery,pant and equipment 164,065 2BOT1 108300 Q111 10741 6152 674810
FRHERESE Depreciaion f right-ofuse asses 4429 1,187 4927 1521 - 6916 28,980
BREEHE Impairment o ntangibl asset - - - - - 4667 4667
ERAEEL Amortisaton o ntangile aset 12,49 1999 % 81 ) 3 15,738
BHEYSE(RE)RE (Reversa of) impirment on trade receivables 03) 183 74 E3)] (3,789) 21 (185
ﬁﬁ&ﬁ Lyt Research and development costs 205,278 85315 25813 56,442 - 45,985 838,893
WARE Wite-down o invntories - 51478 915 5710 - I 69916
HEDS HRRAEER Loss on disposals ofpropery,plant and equipment 4137 13928 9218 1,541 piy) 20,19 925
EHRETIERERAR Amounts equlry provided to the CODM but not ncluded i
IR aaMEE the measure ofsegrent profitorloss
BLYE: W\Tﬁﬁnzﬁm@ﬁﬁ Fairvalue changes on fnancial aset at FVTPL
N - - - - - (21870) (21,870
tﬂﬁ MT ELANES Loss on isposel of a subsicary - - - - - 31 0371
Flh- W%M%ZH Shre ofresulsof an assodate - - - - - ) (0
N . “aRh \
RAFIH el ik PCREd S it
Dichloromethane
Organic PVCand Property Other
Polymers Refrigerants Slicon liouid il deve\o men opeations  Total
NRETT NRETT  ARETT ARETT MRETT  ARETT
RMB000 RMB1000 RMB000 RMBO000 RMBOOO RMBO000 RMB1000
0% 00
AR BERNLE Amounts included inthe measures ofseqment profi or loss
0% BERRRIE Depreciaton of property,plant and equipment 17408 39 112619 %829 335 45146 £393%
PREZENE Depreciaton ofight-ofuse assets 5399 9630 4907 1% = 289 2686
ayaERY Amortisaton of ntangible assts 127% 1666 % 1008 0 1543 1723
BEICE (R /hE (Reversal o impairment on trade receivables 3 0 (1986) % 1,04 7 ()
FRRFAENA Reseatch and development costs 1190 10437 180418 268 - 46084 590471
(BE)/HnEE (Reversal of) wite-down of inventories = 7 803 214) = (169 (1591)
e BERRE Lossflgir) on disposals ofproperty, plant and equipment
B8/ a) 4810 (1763 (435 (1316 m (1119 (4089
LEEVEEER Loss on disposals of ntangible assts = = = . = 161 161
HEFPEEENR (Gain on isposal o ight-of-use asets (3.280) = - - - (1 (3297
EERETIERERRAR Amounts requlay provided to the CODM but not incuded
AN ERNEE the measure o seqment prft or o
BOVET \BR/SHAE Fairvalue changes on fnancial aset at FVTPL
AYEED - - - - - 3978 39
RELE-HHEL TG Gain on deemed dsposal o a subsidary = = = - - (40850) {40850)
FEfb— %M%ii Share of results of an associate . . 5 . = (4505 (4505

REEBERIE —2-—5FK
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

7. Other income and other net gains and

losses
20214 20204
AR¥T T ARETIT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
Hib A Other income
B i B (B EEG)) Government grants (Note (i) 101,882 76,877
SRITEFA BULA Bank deposits interest income 76,102 63,422
REBRAFEFAEMEZAEUWE Dividend income received from equity
AT Az EWA instruments at FVTOCI 7,200 7,200
H b F) B A (B R Gi)) Other interest income (Note (i) 17,996 6,564
i) Others 3,195 18,734
206,375 172,797
HitFas Other net gains and losses
[E N =55 %8 Exchange difference, net (24,347) (36,590)
182,028 136,207
BisE - Notes:

(i)

HEFNLANBLEFE  AEEELKEBEE
R BUT 4 B) A R #30,944,0007T (20204 = A
R#55782,0007T) ° BUNfiRh £ Zi5 A £ B H
TEBIE  HEHERAAEERNEHRELD
FX o REBETTFERRBHEEFSKES
TR - A% F IR BN FERR A E A s o

BEAN » REIE2021F12A31B ILEE - AEE
RERE B = HEREUT # Bh A R 70,938,000
TE(20204F © AR%21,095,0007T) B RELE IR EF
R AEEREEAREELBEMND
¥ BBERIERESEAMHE - ZSHMRER
A BRRARDEBELRA(HIFE32) - Wi
RIEEEENGB A ERFHERGEIBERE

7
A e

BEEMAEBARABEZE20214F12A318 1
FE R EREEF B WA AR E16,085,0007T
(20205 : AR™6,564,0007T) ©

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recognised
government grants of RMB30,944,000 (2020: RMB55,782,000) in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. Government grants mainly
represent the expenditure on research activities which are recognised
as expense in the period in which they are incurred by the Group. The
Group recognised these government grants as other income when there
were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, in addition, the Group
recognised government grant of RMB70,938,000 (2020: RMB21,095,000),
which was released from deferred income, in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. The Group received subsidies from government
in respect of the acquisition of property, plant and equipment for
manufacturing of chemical products. Such subsidies are classified as
deferred income (note 32) in the consolidated statement of financial
position and will be recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss over the estimated useful lives of the related assets.

(i) Included in other interest income was bills receivable of RMB16,085,000
(2020: RMB6,564,000) for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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214

ELE= 2N 8. Finance costs
20216 2020%F
AR®TT ARETT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
ME Interests on:
BRAFRNEEMERE ZIRITER  Bank loans wholly repayable within five years 79,610 102,354
HEAaE Lease liabilities 1,996 2,206
81,606 104,560
=]
i8R 9. Income tax expense
20214 2020%F
AR®T AR¥ETT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
BIEATHIA Current tax
PRI ERER ([ EMER]) PRC enterprise income tax ("EIT")
—EHFEE — Current year 512,458 95,320
—BEFERRERE — Qver provision in prior years (18,977) (75,851)
IS E R ([ I ER ) Land Appreciation Tax ("LAT") 33,432 15,918
526,913 35,887
RIERTR Deferred tax
— BB AE A DI RA T8 — Withholding tax for distributable
mE profits of PRC subsidiaries 68,101 22,991
—HEfh - Others (32,350) 54,887
35,751 77,878
Fri8fiF < Income tax expense 562,664 113,765
MIES BB EIEANA T RPN E Tax charge mainly consists of income tax in the PRC attributable
NEINFERFHETEE PR ER o BT to the assessable profits of the Company'’s subsidiaries established
B ERE(NEMERE RO in the PRC. Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
FTERSEE ST AR BARNTE S (the "EIT Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
25% (2020%F : 25%) @ EE FTHEBHEIHF the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2020: 25%), except for
MBEENEEWEAT A =58 H25%/HE certain PRC subsidiaries being awarded the Advanced-Technology
15%E B R BRI Enterprise Certificate and entitled for a tax reduction from 25% to
15%.
REEBEFRAF —Z=—FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

9. FBFHMAZ (&) 9. Income tax expense (Continued)
RABEEBFME OB ARG EETIE The Company'’s subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong is subject
R IR 16.5%H B R BN FTIS R © to income tax at the rate of 16.5% on the estimated assessable

profits.
RIEMAESHEEMBRINER  KEEES Pursuant to the local rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands,
RASHSBNEAAER the Group is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands.
H e A EREE 2 RBEIRBE AR Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
ITRRAEETE o prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.
AREERERS HEAERREMZ2EEKA The tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit before
MERABRIEARFAEEROT tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:

20214 2020%F
ARBT AREFT
2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
B AT E Profit before taxation 3,244,209 1,016,621
LA(25%) e ¥ TSR KT ERFIIE Tax charge at enterprise income tax rate
2 (FfEa) of (25%) (Note a) 811,052 254,155
REENEAENAEHNEE Effect of income taxed on concessionary
rate (342,879) (79,955)
A ERBEUA R TR TR 52 28 Tax effect of income not taxable for tax
purpose (5,672) (3,203)
AR IR 2 Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
tax purpose 79,070 30,294
IR AT AR FER B IEE B TIR Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses
2 previously not recognised (2,164) (6,298)
BEAFEBEEE Overprovision in respect of prior years (18,977) (75,851)
FREMB AR D IRAFEELERIE  Deferred tax on distribution earnings of
(Ht=Eb) PRC subsidiaries (Note b) 68,101 22,991
T IBER (i aEc) LAT (Note c) 33,342 15918
THIBREFMNHIBZE Tax effect of LAT (8,358) (3,980)
Hity Others (50,851) (40,306)
AFEERBERAY Tax expense for the year 562,664 113,765
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9. FrEBiMx (%)

PiaE

(@)

5% B EEMERREEARRIEMBAR
AIURREAEMBERAR(RERZE]) R
WRREHHBEXERQRA([BHAEE ) HF
BEEEAEHRRE - ILREZGAMMEER
AR(EEMA]) WRRESDFHHRAR
RA[RERHFD) - IWRREEEEM R
MAERARN(TREA#E D RILVERRELTE
BRAR([RECTDEAEHBER15% T
RECRERMRMEEER -

R IR BT BB R B R B 15 48 BB A 25 i B B [2008)
F1RXM - PEIEIEH2008F1 A1 ARAES
SEAF RS - BREGINHIRE B EMI
B ¥R EHEYEIR27IEARINIIRE ¥
FHNEI I FEFTISFEE AR RIS 01 KA IR TE 4
MIFEEE - MBARKRS IRAF IELTR
BEE,/ 8 ARMEs101,0007T(2020%F © A
R#22,991,0007T) BT AFNIEE ©

+ IR AT R R I EE A THER30%E]60%H)
REB R - BV E TS SRR AR
X BT E RN KA YR
X e

AT IR A B AP RE22 ©

9. Income tax expense (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Detai

Applicable enterprise income tax rate of 25% represents the PRC
Enterprise Income Tax rate of Shandong Dongyue Fluo-Silicon Materials
Co., Ltd. ("Dongyue Fluo-Silicon”) and Shandong Dongyue Union
Property Co., Ltd (“Union Property”) which are the major subsidiaries of
the Company. The income tax rate of Shandong Huaxia Shenzhou New
Co., Ltd. ("Huaxia Shenzhou"), Shandong Dongyue Polymers Co., Ltd.
("Dongyue Polymers”), Shandong Dongyue Organosilicon Materials Co.,
Ltd. ("Dongyue Organosilicon”) and Shandong Dongyue Chemicals Co.,
Ltd. ("Dongyue Chemicals”) is 15% as it obtained the qualification as a
high and new technology enterprise.

According to a joint circular of Ministry of Finance and State
Administration of Taxation, Cai Shui [2008] No. 1, dividend distributed out
of the profits generated since 1 January 2008 held by the PRC entity shall
be subject to EIT pursuant to Articles 3 and 27 of the Income Tax Law
Concerning Foreign Investment Enterprises and Foreign Enterprises and
Article 91 of the Detailed Rules for the Implementation of the Income
Tax Law for Enterprises with Foreign Investment and Foreign Enterprises.
Deferred tax asset/liability of RMB68,101,000 (2020: RMB22,991,000) on
the undistributed earnings of subsidiaries has been charged to profit or
loss for the year.

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less
deductible expenditures including cost of land use rights and all property
development expenditures.

Is of deferred taxation are set out in note 22.
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10. KEEZF 10. Profit for the year
FRHEFEHER (5T ) Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):
20216 20206
AR®ET R ARETFT
2021 2020
RMB'000 RMB'000
3 BIKA(BEEENE): a) Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments):
T&Rk%G® Wages and salaries 1,014,410 615,503
BIBTEAL Discretionary bonus 33,639 17,492
BRI Pension scheme contributions 189,881 105,108
RIERE 7 AR AT 2R Equity-settled share-based payments 293,774 =
Hi 8 TR Other staff welfare 90,819 55,099
METHA Total staff costs 1,622,523 793,202
b) EfhIER : b) Other items:
B EESHEGIAHERR) Amortisation of intangible assets (included in cost
of sales) 15,738 17,231
R S Auditor's remuneration 2,323 2,356
M  MERSENE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 674,810 639,354
FREEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 28,980 24,686
B EER®E Impairment of intangible asset 4,667 =
HERKEEER Loss on disposal of intangible assets - 161
HEME  MERREER/ (KR) Loss/(gain) on disposals of property, plant and
equipment 49,252 (4,089)
HEFRAEEERS Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets = (3,297)
BATEAANBG eRBECATES Fair value changes on financial asset at FVTPL
) (21,870) 3,978
RAELE-BHBAR ke Gain on deemed disposal of a subsidiary - (40,850)
B Government grants (101,882) (76,877)
B EmEEFERE Reversal of impairment on other receivables (180) (56)
RO E S REGERE Reversal of impairment on trade receivables (1,852) (120)
WoR,/ (B FE GGEABERK) Write-down/(reversal of) of inventories (included
in cost of sales) 69,916 (1,591)
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MNEBERFTETHRAEFHM

MEZEREETHRABENKENHH®T

11. Directors’ and chief executive’s

emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to the directors and the chief

e executive were as follows:
20215 2021
BigTeA REEE 2
ik e (BiE)  RETEER ktixfs  EtEd ]
ARSI AR¥TR ARBTRT ARETR ARMTR ARETR AR%T:R
Discretionary Pension  Equity-settled
bonus scheme  share-based Other
Fees Salary (Note)  contributions payments benefits Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HiTEE Executive Directors
RELEE Mr. Zhang Jianhong - 12,467 7,331 - 33,641 - 53,439
BELE Mr. Fu Kwan 142 - = - 4,806 = 4,948
BlEZ LA (R021%E  Mr. Liu Chuang (resigned on
3ANBEHE) 11 March 2021) - - - - - - -
RELE Mr. Zhang Jian 142 - - - 1,442 - 1,584
REESE Mr. Zhang Zhefeng - 3,811 5,785 - 28,835 = 38,431
RUELE Mr. Zhang Bishu 142 - - - 1,442 - 1,584
FAREE(R00E  Mr. Wang Weidong (appointed
SANBEA) on 11 March 2021) = 12,465 7,331 - 33,641 - 53,437
BUFYTES Independent Non-executive
Directors
TRERE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 392 - - - 2,403 - 2,795
EERALS (2021 Mr. Yue Run Dong (resigned
3ANBEHE) on 11 March 2021) 68 - - - - - 68
BEBLL Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 204 - - - 1,442 - 1,646
SEREE(R02E M. Ma Zhizhong (appointed
3ANAZME) on 11 March 2021) 87 - - - 240 - 327
1177 28,743 20,447 - 107,892 = 158,259
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11. Directors’ and chief executive’s

emoluments (Continued)

20205 2020
iz TRt 2 A
fika e (FE)  RIEHEIRR Bfieft  Eftiid ek
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT  ARETR ARBTRT ARETE
Discretionary Pension  Equity-settled
bonus scheme share-based Other
Fees Salary (Note)  contributions payments benefits Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HiTEE Executive Directors
REREE Mr. Zhang Jianhong 144 6,000 11321 = = L 17,465
BERE Mr. Fu Kiwan 144 - - - = - 144
fEsrs Mr. Liu Chuangi - - - - - . .
FEfL Mr. Zhang Jian 144 - - - - - 144
REBLE Mr. Zhang Zhefeng 144 1,200 6171 = = = 7515
RUELE Mr. Zhang Bishu 144 = = = = = 144
BUFYTES Independent Non-executive
Directors
TRELE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 404 = - = = = 404
EEREE Mr. Yue Run Dong 204 = = = = = 204
BRELE Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 204 = - . . _ 204
1532 7,200 17492 - - - 26,224

EEQXTRRERRE  BAARFITHE
B EXARENHH BRI ERITRAR
RAEARFHOZEN -

HRATETHME DR BFERERNRR R
AEBEBHAER 2 REMEE - LB T
FRTEFNME IR EIERESMEEHR
ZIRIEMETE °

FR AEBVERAESSAEESFALT
TG AR H B AR E B Sk EA AR
EERNEKEERMEE - METRARKT
A EEREEHZE2021F K2020F12 8318 1E
FEEMEMBME -

MicE : MIBTEADRBEENEARRMERE

Mr. Zhang Jianhong, the Chairman of the board of the directors, is
also the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. His emoluments
disclosed above include those for services rendered by him as the
Chief Executive.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of
the Company and the Group. The independent non-executive
directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services as
directors of the Company.

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to the
directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office. Neither the Chief Executive Officer nor any of the directors
waived any emoluments for the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020.

Note: Discretionary bonus is determined based on the individual performance
of the directors.
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NR.AEEESFHES 12. Five highest paid employees
FR - AEBLZESH EERENEES The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year
(2020%F : MBEE)  HSHBIHN X included four directors (2020: two directors), details of whose
MsE1 o REEHT—H (20206 : =5)3F remuneration are set out in note 11 above. Details of the
ANBEBHTIBEITHAEZESHEED remuneration for the year of the remaining one (2020: three)
HNFIFIOT : highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief

executive of the Company are as follows:

20214 20204

ARET T AREFT

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB'000

ITENHFS Wages and salaries 3,789 1,380

BB TEAT Discretionary bonus 4,847 26,593

RIRET SR Pension scheme contributions - -

AR LS E 2 LARR S 1 3k Equity-settled share-based payments 5,772 =

14,408 27,973

FERANREFNEZSHEEAZEHNNENTF The number of the highest paid employees who are not the

AT#EE : directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

20215 2020%F

EEAH EEAH

2021 2020

No. of employees No. of employees

3,500,001% 7T 24,000,000/ 7T HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 - 1
8,000,001 7T 28,500,000/ 7T HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000 - 1
17,500,001 7% 18,000,000 7T HK$17,500,001 to HK$18,000,000 1 =
19,500,001 7L 220,000,000/ 7 HK$19,500,001 to HK$20,000,000 - 1
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

13. Earnings per share

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share attributable
to the owners of the Company are based on the following data:

20215 20206
ARBT R ARETT
2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
RABHEA ARIEFERRF] - Profit for the year attributable to owners
AR & FRREZN S & T of the Company, used in the basic and
diluted earnings per share calculations 2,074,843 772,167
RHOEE
Number of shares
2021 20204
TR FR%
2021 2020
‘000 ‘000
REREARFIMENLBATINME  Weighted average number of ordinary
T shares for the purpose of basic earnings
per share 2,120,034 2,060,231
EeETTaRkNTE Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
BEEARRBIEBITIHRENAR Adjustment in relation to share options
issued by the Company 773 -
HEREERFME L BIXINE  Weighted average number of ordinary
T shares for the purpose of diluted
earnings per share 2,120,807 2,060,231

HEZ2001F1283BIEEE BRE S
T B B% #E 51 2 B8 218,460,0000% (20204 :
18,341,000/ ) & AL -

AABREE2021F12A31B IEFEREME
I 7 $81,499,0000% A8 A &) 18 A% (20204F :
&) o

HE20214F R20206E12A31 B L FENHST
A% B R 58 2 R i 5 &R A NAE 15 2k
TSR AR R EEFENRMDESE
(Fff5E38) °

During the year ended 31 December 2021, 18,460,000 (2020:
18,341,000) ordinary shares were purchased under employee
option scheme.

The Company repurchased and cancelled 1,499,000 shares of its
own ordinary shares of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: nil).

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose
of basic and diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020 has been arrived at after deducting the
shares held in trust for the Company (note 38).
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14. R E 14. Dividends
20214 20204
ARMT T ARETTT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000

2021 EE RN IR B, - Dividends paid during the year 2021:
2020 FREAFR B, GARO. 14T T 2020 final dividend of HK$0.14
R ' (2020: 2019 final dividend of HK$0.23)
(2020%F : 2019F KR EARL B, ¢
’ er share

HFA%0.23787T) . 246,259 428,035

222

REBKR®E  BEZE2021F12A318 EF
g BHEEEHETIK766,254,0007% 7T(2020
295,636,000/ 7T ) (A% 0.34% 7T (20204 :

FRR014EIT)) 2 RER S - HERARYE
620,666,0007T(20204F : A R #246,259,000
7o) MEEREER R ARE FERRE o

REEBERIE —2-—5FK

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend
HKS$0.34 per share (2020: HK$0.14 per share), amounting to
HKS$766,254,000 (2020: HK$295,636,000) in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2021, equivalent to RMB620,666,000 (2020:
RMB246,259,000) has been proposed by the directors and is
subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming
general meeting.
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15. Property, plant and equipment

BF HERRE AE BAREE ERIR k]
ARETT ARETR AR®TT AREFT ARETR ARETR
Plant and Motor Furniture  Construction
Buildings ~ machinery vehicles  and fittings  in progress Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
KA CosT
02051818 At 1 January 2020 2088208 6563516 60,980 876,068 795450 10,384,222
RE Additions 66,078 181,685 3458 68,542 1,399,763 1,719,526
i Transfer 219,985 734,256 - 81,022 (1,035,263) =
RALE—RHELH Deerned disposal of a subsidiary (1,646) (33,664) (80) (4851) (205,596) (245,837)
e Disposals (5916) (112,137) (4,156) (15,181) = (137,390)
0205128318 K At 31 December 2020 and
021F1A18 1 January 2021 2,366,709 7333656 60,202 1,005,600 954354 11720521
RE Additions 477,050 212,888 8231 54,844 2,921,095 3674108
FER: Transfer 161708 394070 = 43,787 (599,565) =
HE—HHBAR(MF40)  Disposal of a subsidiary (note 40) - - (261) (149 - (279)
e Disposals (46,160) (483,321) (11,580) (20510) = (566,571)
0214128318 At 31 December 2021 2959307 7452293 56,592 1,083,707 3275884 14827783
RIERAE ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
AND IMPAIRMENT
202051818 At 1 January 2020 810,795 4346902 38,569 579,282 = 5,775,548
REERY Charge for the year 101286 419573 6454 112,041 = 639,354
RALE-RNBAR Deemed disposal of a subsidiary (310) (13,204) ) (1,167) = (14,686)
HERE Eliminated on disposals (2,160) (92.392) (3324) (13,564) - (111,440)
F00E 128318 R At 31 December 2020 and
2021517818 1 January 2021 909,611 4660879 41,688 676,598 = 6,288,776
AEERY Charge for the year 124339 436216 6,058 108197 = 674810
HE-FMBAR(HiE40)  Disposal of a subsidiary (note 40) = = (248) 13) = (261)
HEREH Eliminated on disposals (30.266) (379,487) (10826) (13032) = (433611)
0214128318 At 31 December 2021 1,003,684 4717608 36672 771,750 = 6529714
REE CARRYING VALUES
#2021512831R At 31 December 2021 1,955,623 2,734,685 19920 311,957 3275884 898,069
#2020%128318 At 31 December 2020 1,457,098 2672777 18514 329002 954,354 5,431,745
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15. 915 ~ e R (&)

16.

R2021F12A31H AEEBEMNE TEF
MAREEERSZ HEEAEAARE
158,656,0007C (2020%F : A & #174,987,000
JT) °

W - B RRERBERER THIBETA
ERFHRANRERNBRIGEEENE :

BF 205 S FHEA (LAB R & A %)
23 N R 5-104F
RE 5%

RILREE 5%
PR20214FF K 2020F 12 A31H - AN E W E K
HEFREEREE  AAEBRITEEE
IR o

BFURPE L RREFEERA -

15. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had not obtained the building
ownership certificates for certain buildings with carrying values of
RMB158,656,000 (2020: RMB174,987,000).

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate their cost less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings Shorter of 20 years or the terms of lease
Plant and machinery 5-10 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

Furniture and fittings 5 years

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group has no pledged
buildings and plant and machinery to secure bank loans of the
Group.

The buildings are situated on land in the PRC and held under
medium-term lease.

EREEE 16. Right-of-use assets
HE L HEME et
ARETTT ARETTT ARETT

Leasehold Leased
lands properties Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
7202051 A1 At 1 January 2020 639,306 712 690,518
NE Additions 145,733 - 145,733
HE Disposals (15,120) = (15,120)
EALE—HHEA Deemed disposal of a subsidiary (43,854) — (43,854)
WEEH Depreciation charge (23,974) (712) (24,686)
20208128318 K& At 31 December 2020 and

20211 A1H 1 January 2021 752,591 - 752,591
NE Additions 122,123 1,031 123,154
k== Disposals (8,495) = (8,495)
mEBH Depreciation charge (28,679) (301) (28,980)
2021 12A31H At 31 December 2021 837,540 730 838,270
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16. Right-of-use assets

BZ201F HZ=20206

12A31ALEE 12A3BLLEE

Year ended Year ended

31/12/2021 31/12/2020

RMB'000 RMB'000

HERS L2 Total cash outflow for leases 6,559 7,090

R2021F 128318 - AEB R AERES
A R #81,000,0007T (20204 : 81,000,0007T )
METHELTHWESHEERA#EE -

R2021F 128318 AE B HIREEE
%) /5 N R #61,037,0007T B {5 F # & 2= (2020
F\E) AREBERIRITERERE -

HE2021F12A31BLtEE - HEBRSAD
458 5 A R#128,667,0007T (20204 @ AR
152,823,0007T) ©

BMEFEMS  AREREEHRELZRE
WMAZE - HESGHORITWEEHRSME
(2020%F : MF) - HEMRFKIRZE @R BER
a2 NRE R R G - EREHE
H R FHE T AT R R R ER - AEEE
AEHMNERYBETEANNARNITHR -

AEERBBEEELHOEMERA - BK
BaEWEEgs  —FERCELXT - &
EXHRIAERAI EOROBERT - %F
BEVMENEETHHBS T SEEIIR -

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had not obtained the
leasehold lands ownership certificates for certain leasehold lands
with carrying values of RMB81,000,000 (2020: RMB81,000,000).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has pledged right-of-use
assets with carrying values of approximately RMB61,037,000 (2020:
nil) to secure bank loans of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the total cash outflow
for leases was RMB128,667,000 (2020: RMB152,823,000).

For both years, the Group leases various offices for its operations.
Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of 2 years (2020:
2 years). Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain different terms and conditions. In determining the lease
term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the
Group applies the definition of a contract and determines the
period for which the contract is enforceable.

The Group is the registered owner of the underlying leasehold
lands. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire these
property interests. The leasehold land components of these
owned properties are presented separately only if the payments
made can be allocated reliably.
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17. R E N B fE =

17.Interest in an associate

20215 20204
AR®BT T AREF T
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
®1A1R At 1 January 178,030 -
B ARIRRERE A2 Fair value of the associate as at the date of
~EE deemed disposal - 107,402
AEBZEE Capital injection from the Group - 100,000
R ETZ RREREZ AF(E  The fair value of option of not successfully
listed of Future Hydrogen - (19,777)
IR SN T 2 LA Share of results of an associate 20,291 4,505
AEBWE 2 IR B Dividend received by the Group - (14,100)
®12A318 At 31 December 198,321 178,030
20214 2020812 A318 » AEBEE R The details of the Group's associates at 31 December 2021 and
AIMEFBET ¢ 2020 is as follows:
TEEX PR
EREn EBEBRA BYBER bk £l FEERANERER TEER
Principal
Form of business ~ Country of place of Class of Registered capital held
Name of entity structure establishment  operation share held by the Group Principal activity
2021% 2020%F
2021 2020
IRREARELAHBOER SREADA 8 +E BRAE 3% ek SEREEEE
A wH
(TRRE8))
Dongyue Future Hydrogen Energy  Limited liability PRC PRC Registered Production and sales
Material Co,, Ltd. company capital of hydrogen energy
("Future Hydrogen”) materials
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FA2020F4 298 » 7K & B 1 H40% % 7 1
MEBARKRKREEEBIMBRRIGE @ FEF
& AR B ARB100,000000TTIEAZE AR
105,000,0007T ° &&IEAFME K% - KNEEH
BB Z B HE R40%E 58 £38.1% ° B2020%F5
A2BR  AEEXEHARKRITEESSAK
ZHREMIEHE  RUEEARIERE—
FWEB AR MARSERANEER 2 HE

NI

AT RARDER L E R HNEEFE

mEMBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021

17.Interest in an associate (Continued)

On 29 April 2020, Future Hydrogen, a subsidiary of which 40%
equity interest held by the Group, enlarged its registered capital
from RMB100,000,000 to RMB105,000,000 through capital injection
from a new shareholder. Upon enlarged the registered capital, the
equity interest held by the Group was diluted from 40% to 38.1%.
Since 22 May 2020, the Group loss control over the majority of
the composition of the board of directors of Future Hydrogen,
therefore, it considered as deemed disposal of a subsidiary and
Future Hydrogen became an associate of the Group.

The net assets of Future Hydrogen, at the date of disposal were as

follows:
2020%5H22H
ARET T
22 May 2020
RMB’000
ME - Hes RRE Property, plant and equipment 231,151
FREEE Right-of-use assets 43,854
B EE Intangible assets 10,872
AT EF AR EREORAT A Equity instruments at FVTOCI 3,000
A Y Bl FIE Tax recoverable 2,592
FE Inventories 14,286
B S REWGIE N EI = Trade and bill receivables 12,596
FEAS FRIB K H A fE U FR0E Prepayment and other receivables 77,607
IRITHEBEIR S Bank balances and cash 94,858
RITIEE Bank borrowings (116,845)
B S ENRIB R EN RS Trade and bill payables (84,230)
H b 3118 Other payables (106,363)
aHaE Contract liabilities (1,207)
RIEFIBE G Deferred tax liabilities (6,389)
PRIEUA Deferred income (9,399)
HEEEFHE : Net asset disposed of: 166,383
RELE—EMNMBEARRNKE ! Gain on deemed disposal of a subsidiary:
RBBIE 2 A FE Fair value of retained equity interest 107,402
HEEEFE Net assets disposed of (166,383)
FEIERR IR R A A Non-controlling interests 99,831
RAENE K Gain on deemed disposal 40,850
RALEEENESRE T Net cash outflow arising on deemed disposal:
WITHEB LIRS Bank balances and cash (94,858)
(94,858)
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17.

REtE QR vERE (&)

MR2020F5 4228  RIRSAE R R AN &
BB AREEMANEETASEES —MH
BB A R R EE AR - B AE I T ]
@J o

20206248 - REABRERE THK
RORBRE D BERRGRER] L IRIEEE
wE((EERZ]  LEEARSEEETAA
K #300,000,0007T * BEFHEARAREK
21,000,000t K A% 7 {7 & A R #279,000,000
T o BB B E BN A R %100,000,0007T ¢
BIEEMME A A R¥7,000,0007T K A G5
A R #93,000,0007T © &% p1sE & A% -
AEB AR 2 RIEFHEE34.95% ©

BERHERBREGRR  REREEHER
AETHRFRAICHEEBEAEERERRRE
DR IMRE(TEERE]) - RIFILER
HERIR - RIREREE T RIS M A I i
MRFE R RREBARRE L1 2023F 12831
HtZRIEFREMSEAARES - Emk
BEERD - WBRFEBREE  (RERE
AT A2024F 1 B1H £2024F 12 831 B 81T
SR - TR RS B A% AR 78 IR 3R [0 B %
T o

R202088H18H " AR EEB B H T
FREMEE BEAMEABARY
126,000,0007T & A &= A R #128,160,0007T
MALBERE 2 IRIEHEE3437% °

20208108298 + RIRGEEIZERFHH
1A% IR B AR AN 31T 2,25 R% i AR AR 15 L )
MAREFDERE  REFEERHED
& o HIRTEKE  AREREMNFEMERAA
R #128,160,0007T #& X & A R #416,520,000
TC  MAKERFE 2 RIERMERFTE34.37% ©

20208128308 AR E BB — %
FREMNEE BEEMEABRARE
416,520,0007C #& K & A R %419,019,120
T MASEEFE ZRER437%EEE
34.16% ©

17.Interest in an associate (Continued)

On 22 May 2020, the share capital of Future Hydrogen was
transferred from Huaxia Shenzhou, a subsidiary within the Group,
to Dongyue Fluorosilicon Technology, another subsidiary within
the Group, without any change in the equity interest.

On 24 June 2020, Dongyue Organosilicon and several new
shareholders (“Guaranteed Shareholders”) entered into capital
injection agreement (“Injection Agreement”) with Future Hydrogen
to inject RMB300,000,000, comprising RMB21,000,000 registered
capital and RMB279,000,000 capital reserve into Future Hydrogen.
Dongyue Organosilicon contributed RMB100,000,000, comprising
RMB7,000,000 as registered capital and RMB93,000,000 as capital
reserve. Upon the increase in registered capital, the equity interest
held by the Group was diluted to 34.95%.

In the Injection Agreement, there is a protective clause in which
Dongyue Organosilicon and several new shareholders can request
Future Hydrogen to repurchase all the equity interest when
certain conditions occur ("Put Option”). Pursuant to the terms of
the Injection Agreement, Future Hydrogen has irrevocable and
unconditionally guaranteed the Guaranteed Shareholders that
Future Hydrogen initial public offer, listed and trading of its shares
in the PRC market on or before 31 December 2023. In the event
that the certain conditions are occur, the Guaranteed Shareholders
can exercise the Put Option in the period between 1 January 2024
and 31 December 2024 and Future Hydrogen will repurchase the
equity interest from the Guaranteed Shareholders.

On 18 August 2020, Future Hydrogen enlarged its registered
capital from RMB126,000,000 to RMB128,160,000 through capital
injection from several new shareholders and the equity interest
held by the Group was diluted to 34.37%.

On 29 October 2020, Future Hydrogen granted right issue to its
existing shareholders on the basis of 2.25 right shares per every 1
existing share capital held at that date and the consideration was
contributed out of its capital reserve. Upon the completion of the
right issue, the registered capital of Future Hydrogen was enlarged
from RMB128,160,000 to RMB416,520,000 and the equity interest
held by the Group remain unchanged at 34.37%.

On 30 December 2020, Future Hydrogen enlarged its registered
capital from RMB416,520,000 to RMB419,019,120 through capital
injection from a new shareholder and the equity interest held by
the Group was diluted from 34.37% to 34.16%.
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2021F9H308 © BB — & ¥ R Ay 12
& BEFMERHAARE419,019,1207T
KZE AREA434,289,12070 ° MAEEBZEZ

F& R 34.16%#5E £32.96% ©
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17.Interest in an associate (Continued)

On 30 September 2021, Future Hydrogen enlarged its registered
capital from RMB419,019,120 to RMB434,289,120 through capital
injection from a new shareholder and the equity interest held by

the Group was diluted from 34.16% to 32.96%.

The associate is accounted for using the equity method in
these consolidated financial statements. Summarised financial

information is set out below and is prepared in accordance with

IFRSs.
20214 20204
ARET T ARETT
—RBE AR 2B ERE Summarised financial information of an
associate 2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
MENEE Current assets 398,117 258,725
FEREEE Non-current assets 650,259 477,190
mEaE Current liabilities (141,330) (111,713)
FErRHasE Non-current liabilities (73,537) (48,967)
RERKRGENEEFE Net assets of Dongyue Future Hydrogen
Energy 833,509 575,235
Was Revenue 259,262 87,119
HA % ) Profit for the period 59,933 13,187
EHREREE Total comprehensive income 59,933 13,187
IREEHER - Reconciliation to carrying amount:
RERKGENEEFE Net assets of Dongyue Future Hydrogen
Energy 833,509 575,235
HMRRRMMEIERERFE Capital injection from other shareholders
after deemed disposal (615,342) (415,000)
218,167 160,235
REBRMEF DT E R Group's ownership interest in weighted
average 35.41% 35.54%
AEEELEETAE Group's share of net assets 77,248 56,957
BRIEHEN AT ERE Fair value gain on deemed disposal 40,850 40,850
AEBEFE Capital injection from the Group 100,000 100,000
AT EFABRZSMEE Financial asset at FVTPL (19,777) (19,777)
BRmEE Carrying amount 198,321 178,030
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18. B &= 18. Intangible assets
EEHEM B iR wz
AR®TTT AREFTT ARBTRT AR%®TRT
Proprietary Exploration
technologies Software rights Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R CoST
7202091 A18 At 1 January 2020 132,662 23,505 80,000 236,167
RE Additions 16,220 3,166 = 19,386
WRARE RN EBAR Deemed disposal of a
subsidiary (14,096) - - (14,096)
HeE Eliminated on disposals = (184) Z (184)
2020128318 & At 31 December 2020 and
20211 818 1 January 2021 134,786 26,487 80,000 241,273
RE Additions 97 2,565 — 2,662
HE — T E A F Disposal of a subsidiary
(Bff5E40) (note 40) = (18) (80,000) (80,018)
M2021%12A318 At 31 December 2021 134,883 29,034 = 163,917
e RRE AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
720201 A1H At 1 January 2020 94,880 7,970 63,115 165,965
REERY Charge for the year 12,575 4,656 — 17,231
WEAHE KB 2AR Deemed disposal of a
subsidiary (3,224) - - (3,224)
HE R S Eliminated on disposals - (19) - (19)
20205128318 & At 31 December 2020 and
202191 A1H 1 January 2021 104,231 12,607 63,115 179,953
REERY Charge for the year 10,985 4,753 — 15,738
NERIEL Impairment = = 4,667 4,667
HeE B ATEES  Eliminated on disposal of a
(Ffi5E40) subsidiary (note 40) — (16) (67,782) (67,798)
20219128318 At 31 December 2021 115,216 17,344 — 132,560
BREE CARRYING VALUES
2021 12A31H At 31 December 2021 19,667 11,690 — 31,357
20208128318 At 31 December 2020 30,555 13,880 16,885 61,320
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18. Intangible assets (Continued)

All of the Group’s intangible assets were acquired from third
parties.

Proprietary technologies and computer software licences have
finite useful lives and are amortised on a straight-line basis over 5
to 10 years and 3 to 5 years respectively.

During 2012, the Group acquired exploration rights of two mines
from third parties in Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region in the
PRC for a total consideration of RMB80 million. The directors of the
Company expected that the mines are abundant with fluorspar
resources, which is a major raw material for the refrigerant
business of the Group. The acquisition of the mines will enable
the Group to secure a reliable supply of high-quality fluorspar
resources at a reasonable cost.

According to the regulations on exploration and mining rights
in the PRC, the Group can extend the exploration rights as long
as the survey is in process and the application fee is submitted.
In October 2017, the Group extended the exploration rights for a
period of two years till October 2019 and further extended for a
period of two years till October 2021. The exploration rights were
disposed through disposal of a subsidiary during the year ended
31 December 2021.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2021 231



BUBRRME

=]

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Z2021 1231 BIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

19.

BEERH
RS - AREEUTAEES

BANKIFE28FT IR TR - AL E2021F12A318 1
FE  AEBESEAARE46600TREAR
#£124,145,0007C B P RITERE MEE R -
DRERENEBERREEENE RS -

HZE20200F12A3ALFE  AEESEA
AR %70,000,0007T + AR#211,800,0007T K&
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DRAMERENEE  REBEMEZEER
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19. Pledge of assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following
pledge of assets:

As described in notes 28, the Group’s pledged bank deposits
amounting to RMB466,000 and RMB124,145,000 have been
pledged to secure the bills payable, deposits from presale of
properties, respectively for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Group's pledged bank deposits amounting to RMB70,000,000,
RMB211,800,000 and RMB8,988,000 have been pledged to secure
the bills payable, deposits from presale of properties and letter of
credit, respectively for the year ended 31 December 2020.



20. BAFEFAHMEERZEZ
BRATE

meMBHRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 2202112431 B IFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

20. Equity instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income

20214 2020%F
iz ARET T AREFT
Notes 2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
FETRAES - RAFMETIER  Unlisted equity securities, at fair
value
FRRERERGERAA China MinSheng Investment Co., Ltd
(MRR#&ED ("CMIC") (a) 11,723 198,763
ZEEEEBEARAR Taihe Asset Management Co. Ltd.
(I&&1) (‘Taihe”) (b) 70,531 87,414
IWRERBIREBR AR Shandong Ziying Investment Co.,
(TRE®RE]) Ltd. (“Ziying") @) - 116,000
BEEEEESBNE Hainan Guji Investment Partnership
(BRAE)(EmEEXE]) (limited partnership) ("Hainan
Guji") (d) 254,599 -
SEBEEREMMERERER  Zibo Runxin Dongyue New
2EBEEERER)(EEH Material Equity Investment Fund
=1 Partnership (limited partnership)
("Zibo Runxin”) (e) 53,726 -
390,579 402,177

Bi3F EERATARAEERE TRHE
RFAEFHERINTLABROBIE - AQF
EEEEMRSREREREAFEMAR
EHKRENRATER  DTARZERER
RRBRAZEMTE

The above unlisted equity instruments represent the Group's
equity interest in several private entities established in the PRC
and the Cayman Islands. The directors of the Company have
elected to designate these investments in equity instruments at
FVTOCI as they are held for long-term strategic purposes.
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20. Equity instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income (Continued)

In determining the fair value of unlisted equity instruments, the
Group engages an independent professional valuer to perform
such valuation. The amount is determined based on the cash flow
projection for the estimated future cash flow discounted to its
present value and requires the use of key assumptions, including
the discount rate, terminal growth rate, budgeted revenue
and gross margin taking into account the relevant industry
growth forecasts and financial budgets approved management’s
expectation for the market development.

Notes:

(@) CMIC, a private enterprise initiated by the All-China Federation of
Industry and Commerce and approved by the State Council of the PRC,
is principally engaged in equity investment and assets management.
The Group held 1,400,000,000 shares in CMIC at a consideration of
RMB1,580,000,000, and the equity interest in CMIC held by the Group
was 2.8% as at 31 December 2021 and 2020. Based on CMIC's financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021, and having considered
the macroeconomic downturn, and the continuous deleveraging as
well as the dual pressure on high level of corporate debts, the funding
situation and cash flow of CMIC in 2021 were very tight, and the financial
position has deteriorated sharply. As a result, the directors of the
Company considered, and as agreed by the independent professional
valuer engaged by the Group, the fair value of the Group's investment
in CMIC was approximately RMB11,723,000 as at 31 December 2021
(2020: RMB198,763,000). Accordingly, a fair value loss of approximately
RMB187,040,000 (2020: RMB256,534,000) was recognised for the
year ended 31 December 2021 which had been included in other
comprehensive expense of the Group.

(b)  Taihe is a private entity and was established in the PRC. Taihe was
principally engaged in inter alia, asset management and bulk transfer
of non-performing assets of financial enterprises in Shandong Province,
the PRC. The Group and other partners established Taihe and the
registered capital amount of Taihe was RMB10,000 million, of which
the register capital amount contributable by the Group was RMB600
million, representing 6% of the total registered capital of Taihe. Up
to 31 December 2021, the Group has paid RMB120 million. As at 31
December 2021 the directors of the Company considered the fair value
of the investment of Taihe was approximately RMB70,531,000 (2020:
RMB87,414,000) and a fair value loss of approximately RMB16,883,000 (2020:
RMB22,997,000) which had been recognised in other comprehensive
expense of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021. The
Company received dividend of RMB7,200,000 (2020: RMB7,200,000) from
Taihe during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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20. Equity instruments at fair value through

other comprehensive income (Continued)

(0)

Ziying is a private entity and was established in the PRC on 13 October
2009. Ziying and its subsidiaries were principally engaged in property
development, investment activities, corporation management and
financial advisory services. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group subscribed 18.92% equity interest of Ziying at a consideration of
RMB116,000,000. As at 31 December 2020, the directors of the Company
considered the fair value of the investment in Ziying was approximately
RMB116,000,000. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Company disposed of the investment in Ziying at a consideration of
RMB116,000,000, which was also the fair vaule as at the date of disposal.

Hainan Guiji is a limited partnership established in the PRC. It has through
its subsidiary committed to contribute an aggregate of approximately
RMB182,000,000 to the registered capital of two industrial silicon
companies.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group made capital
contribution of RMB278,500,000 to Hainan Guiji, representing 89.73% of equity
interest of Hainan Guji. As the Hainan Guji was managed and controlled by a
general partner which was not a company controlled by the Company, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the Company was not in a position
to exercise control over this company. The directors of the Company have
elected to designate this investment in equity instruments at FVTOCI as they
are held for long-term strategic purposes.

As at 31 December 2021, the directors of the Company considered,
and as agreed by the independent professional valuer engaged by the
Group, the fair value of the investment in Hainan Guji was approximately
RMB254,599,000.

Zibo Runxin is a limited partnership fund established in the PRC, which
is expected to primarily invest in fluoro-chemical, organic silicon,
membrane materials and hydrogen-related industries.

On 12 January 2021, Dongyue Fluorosilicon Science and Technology
Group Co,, Ltd. ("Dongyue Fluorosilicon Technology”) and Shangdong
Dongyue Organosilicon Co., Ltd. ("Dongyue Organosilicon”), both
subsidiaries of the Company, entered into a partnership agreement with
Huantai Province Jinhai Kongyou Capital Operation Co., Ltd. (“Huantai
Jinhai"), China Capital Management Co., Ltd. ("China Capital”) and Zibo
Jugiang Trading Co., Ltd. (“Zibo Jugiang”) in relation to the establishment
of the fund.

Pursuant to the partnership agreement, the initial capital contribution
to the fund is in total RMB500,000,000, comprising RMB125,000,000,
RMB75,000,000, RMB125,000,000 and RMB75,000,000 to be contributed to
the fund by Dongyue Fluorosilicon Technology, Dongyue Organosilicon,
Huantai Jinhai and Zibo Jugiang, respectively, as limited partners, and
RMB100,000,000 by China Capital as the general partner. The capital
contribution to the fund will be made in stages in accordance with the
partnership agreement.
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20. Equity instruments at fair value through

other comprehensive income (Continued)

(e) (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group made capital
contribution of RMB60,000,000 to Zibo Runxin, representing 33.66% of
equity interest of Zibo Runxin. As the Zibo Runxin was managed and
controlled by a general partner which was not a company controlled
by the Company, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
Company was not in a position to exercise control over this company.
The directors of the Company have elected to designate this investment
in equity instruments at FVTOCI as they are held for long-term strategic
purposes.

As at 31 December 2021, the directors of the Company considered,
and as agreed by the independent professional valuer engaged by the
Group, the fair value of the investment in Zibo Runxin was approximately
RMB53,726,000.

BRAVEFTAEBREZEMEE  21.Financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss
20214 2020%F
AR¥T ARETIT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
PTEERmITE Derivative financial instrument

—IE LT RRE AR — Unlisted Put Option 37,669 15,799
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BEMSERAREE LMREEERD -
WAEREBREE  RERFEATR2024F]
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As stated in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements, in
the Injection Agreement, there is a protective clause in which
Dongyue Organosilicon and several new shareholders can request
Future Hydrogen to repurchase all the equity interest when
certain conditions occur (“Put Option”). Pursuant to the terms of
the Injection Agreement, Future Hydrogen has irrevocable and
unconditionally guaranteed the Guaranteed Shareholders that
Future Hydrogen initial public offer, listed and trading of its shares
in the PRC market on or before 31 December 2023. In the event
that the certain conditions are occur, the Guaranteed Shareholders
can exercise the Put Option in the period between 1 January 2024
and 31 December 2024 and Future Hydrogen will repurchase the
equity interest from the Guaranteed Shareholders.



21. BAPEFABSRECERHEE

(&)
HEREAS—18 A RK19,777,0007T 8957 £
SREE  WHRZITEASNI M HEEAF
BEYFHERTABR  EENREREN
SAEEEAFE -

HZE2021FNANALEFE ERRALEE
EPTE S E EWE A AR21,870,0007T
(20205 : ERLERITEeREERBE
AR #3,978,0007T) °

HERMGEREAREY EERNBLE
XRERMBEMEAFEBRRBRARE
7o ZERFEZEMHER — KT REE
=

meMBHRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EZ20219F12431 AL FE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

21.Financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss (Continued)

The Put Option resulted in a derivative financial asset of
RMB19,777,000, and was initially recognised at fair value through
profit or loss on the date when such derivative contract entered
into and subsequently re-measured to its fair value at the end of
the reporting period.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, gain on a derivative
financial asset from Put Option of RMB21,870,000 was recognised
(2020: a loss on a derivative financial asset from Put Option of
RMB3,978,000 was recognised).

The valuation of the Put Option was carried out by Hong Kong
Appraisal Advisory Limited, an independent professional qualified
valuer not connected with the Group. The fair values were
determined using a Black-Scholes model.
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22. Deferred taxation

The following is an analysis

financial reporting purpose:

of the deferred tax balances for

20214 20204

AR¥T ARETTT

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB'000

EIEFIEEE Deferred tax assets 42,754 56,360
FERIEEE Deferred tax liabilities (87,671) (78,749)
(44,917) (22,389)

FRAERRNEIERLEHIBLE, (BF)K

The following are the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

HEHHWT - recognised and movements thereon for the year:
hEcERg
hEHEAT EEEA BNRSME R BERR B3 BTN
THAKEN  FERR  EnER fie% BNREER  ERMEE REER  TERR 4 2
Tax credit on
acquisition
Government  of qualified Fair value
Distributable Accrual for grants on property adjustment
profits of PRC ~ Depreciation employee  prepaidlease  plant,and  Capitalised on business
subsidiaries ~ allowance benefits ~ payments  equipment interest  Taxlosses  combination Others Total
ARETT ARETR ARBTR AR¥TR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
RIB000 RMB000 RMBO00 RIBO00 RIB000 RMB000 RIBO00 RIBO00 RMB000 RMB000
o0 AR At 1 January 200 (39,008) (132004 65,653 972 17500 (403) (24130) 8175 (4945)
BfffeBR Dividend withholding tax peid 50200 - - - - = - = 50200
BELE-FIELE Deemed disposal of
3 subsidlary 6,389 - 6,389
REAR R EA (Charge) credlt recognised in
proft o oss (2992 (51929 (17939) (592 106 %17 (1470) (74033)
RonEnB3IaR At 31 December 2020 and
AEIRIE 1 January 2021 (31,800) (177544 4775 379 17500 (297) %6117 (24130) 86255 (223%9)
BRSEAR Dividend withholding tax peid 200 - - - - = - - - 20
HE-BRELA(M0)  Disposelof
a Subsiciary (note 40) - - - (15,779) (15779)
REARIREA (Charge) creclt recognised in
profitor loss (68101) 10386 14051 (4160 - - (26117) 3819 (35,751)
R AR A3 December 201 Mgy ey e BB ) o R ()
REEMERAT —B-—FFH
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23. Deposits paid for acquisition of a

subsidiary

On 8 February 2021, Dongyue Organosilicone entered into a
restructuring agreement to providing funding to Zibo Tangtai Park
Comprehensive Development Co. Ltd. (§1BERE R L AFNEAR
FRAR]) (“Zibo Tangtai Park”) for restructuring. Upon completion
of the restructuring, Zibo Tangtai Park will become a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group and the financial statements of
Zibo Tangtai Park will be consolidated into the consolidated
statements of the Group. As at 31 December 2021, deposits paid
of RMB119,524,000 has been paid to Zibo Tangtai Park.
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BE 24. Goodwill
20214 20204
ARBT T ARET T
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
2% COST
R1ATBEKRI12A31H At 1 January and 31 December 123,420 123,420

AETRERR - AR®37,526,0007T(2020
F: AR¥37,526,0007T) © AR #84,540,000
TL(2020%F = A R #84,540,0007T ) M A R #&
1,354,0007C(20204F A IR #1,354,0007T ) 2
BEESRSRTFT=EAREEELEVGRE
EEEBM) NETBRMNEB AR : WEH
BN RRASEEHEREBR AT
([RRADRLEBAEHERZEFRA R
([EX]) - B2 FMEDEBAEE 85 k&
REDHHREREFEEAGRAR([REE
2] REE2021F 128318 IEEE - A&
B & 12 E i T 0 oK IR A e i 2R E (2020
F:F)e

YIRFER D

RRARBAMAIKRESFEIREEREEB
HEEE ENREEEBOHANAST
AU BBEENEF RS RE R E11.8%
(2020%F 1 118%) 15 - AFHUNEHRE
E 3% (20205 : 3%) B FIE R R
o IR RETENABITEERTER - B
THRAAEITENFHRMEGRE - FRAE
BEfENEMEIEREVE(BIEBREHE
BREMNXRTEAN)B S REMATHEE - %
BEFTHERRRRAKIGANBARRALE
BEHMHEENED - EEEERE %5
BRI AEERNTMAE T TS EHIE
BB ARMEARER A N ESHE -

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill of RMB37,526,000
(2020: RMB37,526,000), RMB84,540,000 (2020: RMB84,540,000) and
RMB1,354,000 (2020: RMB1,354,000) have been allocated to three
cash generating units (CGUs) representing four PRC subsidiaries,
namely Zhangjiajie Xinye Real Estate Development Co, Ltd.
("Zhangjiajie”) and Shandong Boda Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd. ("Boda”") in the property development segment, Huaxia
Shenzhou in the polymers segment and Dongying Dongyue
Salt Co,, Ltd ("“Dongyue Salt") in the refrigerants segment. During
the year ended 31 December 2021, management of the Group
determines that there was no impairment of goodwill (2020: nil).

Property development segment

The recoverable amounts of Zhangjiajie and Boda have been
determined based on a value in use calculation. That calculation
uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period and a discount rate
of 11.8% (2020: 11.8%). Cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using a steady 3% (2020: 3%) growth rate. This
growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts
and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the
relevant industry. Other key assumptions for the value in use
calculations relate to the estimation of cash flows which include
budgeted sales and gross margins. Such estimation is based on
past performance of Zhangjiajie and Boda and management'’s
expectations for the market development. Management believes
that any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions
would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of related
subsidiaries to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount.
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24. Goodwill (Continued)

Polymers segment

The recoverable amount of Huaxia Shenzhou has been determined
based on value in use calculation. This calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period and a discount rate of 15% (2020:
15.9%). Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using a steady 3% (2020: 3%) growth rate. This growth rate is
based on the relevant industry growth forecasts and does not
exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant
industry. Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations
relate to the estimation of cash flows which include budgeted
sales and gross margins. Such estimation is based on past
performance of Huaxia Shenzhou and management’s expectations
for the market development. Management believes that any
reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would
not cause the aggregate carrying amount of Huaxia Shenzhou to
exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of Huaxia Shenzhou.

Refrigerants segment

The recoverable amounts of Dongyue Salt have been determined
based on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period and a discount rate
of 15% (2020: 15.6%). Cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using a steady 3% (2020: 3%) growth rate. This
growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts
and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for
the relevant industry. Other key assumptions for the value in
use calculations relate to the estimation of cash flows which
include budgeted sales and gross margins. Such estimation is
based on past performance of Dongyue Salt and management's
expectations for the market development. Management believes
that any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions
would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of Dongyue Salt
to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount.
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25.

26.

242

FE 25. Inventories
20215 2020%F
ARET T AREFT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
R R KB R Raw materials and consumables 925,918 423,213
ER Work in progress 5,028 75,519
UK Finished goods 604,868 379,314
1,535,814 878,046
EHERR 2 26. Properties for sale
20215 2020%F
AR®T AREFT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
EREYEDE Properties under development comprise:
—BERIFEYE — Completed properties for sale 792,850 434,875
—EEERE/HERFEYE - Properties held for/under development
for sale 260,112 1,339,354
—BAREUHEEZHE LM - Leasehold land held for development for
sale 539,545 966,528
1,592,507 2,740,757

REEBERIE —2-—5FK
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26. FEHEREZ2WME(E)

26. Properties for sale (Continued)

FEMERE Summary of properties for sale:
SERER
1ER it THER e EE A BER(TER) BAl
Expected % interest in
Project Address Stage of completion  completion  Usage Gross Area (m?) property
wWE 00F
2021 2020
RETRHEPL-5— 2 WREEEDERENRIHR 100% 00% BER BENERBAGH TEEME (54860 7oK ) B 100%
ZRmH Maf(15668FAK)
Dongyue Engineering R&D Center  Liuguan North Road, Huantai County, 100% 100% Completed  Hotel properties and office  Hotel properties (54,860m?) and 100%
-Phase |, 11 I1 &1V Ziho City, Shandong Province premises office premises (15,668m?)
REIRMSRO-228  WREEENEAGHT LR 50% 0 WNFIR - BERFES EE (11787 AR)  B% 100%
(103 T K REES
(28979F k)
Dongyue Engineering R&D Center  Liuguan North Road, Huantai County, 50% 50% July2022  Residential, Commercial and  Residential (21,178m?), 100%
-Phase V Zibo City, Shandong Province car parks Commercial (7,023m?) and
car park (28,979m?)
B WREENESTRIRSEE 100% 0% BRR 1% BEREES EE(48 99T k) - BF 100%
PR (5S3¥AR) REER
(9870FH7K)
Sheng Ya Yuan South of Tangcheng Square North 100% 100% Completed  Residential, Commercial and ~ Residential (148 949m?), 100%
of Hanhuai Street, Yucheng City, car parks Commercial (5,513m?) and
Dezhou, Shandong Province car park (9,870m?)
BRRE-5-4 R EERERS RART £ 100% 0% BRR % BEREES FEC00 AR REES 100%
KRR (6097FAK)
Sheng Jing Lan Ting - Phase | West of the intersection of Bejing 100% 100% Completed  Residential, Commercial and  Residential (36,001m?) and car 100%
Road and Wangshe Road, car parks park (6,097m?)
Zhangdian District, Zibo,
Shandong Province
BERE-225 WREEARER RERE AR 100% 0% Bxl - HXREES FE(475Fh%) B 100%
RN (834 ¥ RBES
(361 EAR)
Sheng Jing Lan Ting - Phase Il West of the intersection of Bejing 100% 100% Completed  Residential, Commercial and  Residential (54,725m?), 100%
Road and Wangshe Road, car parks Commercial (834m?) and car
Zhangdian District, Zibo, park (11,561m?)
Shandong Province
BRUE-PRAR WRENBHTEREL R BE 90% 0% w0F12R it BEREES BER040THK) - % 100%
] (10463 F AR REBES
(38614F7K)
Shengjing Yuyuan-Zhongyang ~ North of Hanhuai Street and West 90% 80% December  Residential, Commercial and  Residential (230480m?), 100%
(Gongguan of Tongqu Road, Yucheng City, 202 car parks Commercial (10463m?) and
Dezhou, Shandong car park (38,614m?)
B L WREEMESTRIENE - ¥ 80% 0% wnF1R it BEREES BE(7464THR) - B% 100%
BREREL (10854 F AR REES
(40632F oK)
Hanlinyuan North of Pengnan Road Extension, 80% 80% December  Residential, Commercial and  Residential (174,654m?), 100%
East of Yuji Road, Yucheng City, 2022 car parks Commercial (10854m?) and
Dezhou, Shandong Province car park (40,632m?)
Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2021 243



e MBHRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B E2021F12A31 HIEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

26. FEHERAEZWE(E)

26. Properties for sale (Continued)

HERE
2R it TRER Ritzm Az AER(TAR) Bl
Expected % interest in
Project Address Stage of completion ~ completion  Usage Gross Area (m?) property
wWE 00F
2021 2020
BRERE -2 -ER HEERRATAERYFEHE 100% 0% Bl EE BXREES FE(1026007 7 %K) - Fi% 100%
(8795F72%)
Xiaoxiang
Huafu Phase | Part 1 Pengjia Lane Neighborhood 100% 100% Completed  Residential, Commercial and ~ Residential (102660m?, 100%
Committee, Yongding District, car parks Commercial (8,795m?)
Zhangjiajie City, Hunan Province
BRERE -2 ER HEERAAM A ERYFEHE 100% 0% xR i BEREES BE(10802FAR)  B% 100%
(10194FH K REES
(315475 R)
Xiaoxiang Huafu Pengjia Lane Neighborhood 100% 100% Completed  Residential, Commercial and ~ Residential (108,092m?, 100%
Phase | Part 2 Committee, Yongding District, car parks Commercial (10,194m?) and
Zhangjiajie City, Hunan Province car park (31524m?)
IRERE-H HEERAAT A ERYFEHE 30% - MENA BT BEREES ﬁ?@ﬂgﬁﬁ%)\%ﬁ 100%
43R K
Jiangyuan project Phase | Pengjia Lane Neighborhood 30% - December  Residential, Commercial and  Residential (75,140m?), 100%

2021128318 - ERERB 2 EEME
HIBREE 4 A R#155,791,0007T (20204 = A
R #947,258,0007T ) T8 BB #5 1A 3R 45 HE R AR 5T
+—@ARET -

244 RESBEARLH

Committee, Yongding District,
Zhangjiajie City, Hunan Province

—E-—FER

2022 car parks

Commercial (413m?)

At 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of properties under
development for sale of approximately RMB155,791,000 (2020:
RMB947,258,000) are expected to be completed within twelve
months from the end of reporting period.
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27. EZ R EMEIWFRIE 27.Trade and other receivables

20214 20204
AR¥T T AREFT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
B S EWGE (M) Trade receivables (note) 2,309,447 1,236,340
B EEEERE Less: allowance for credit losses (2,260) (4112)
2,307,187 1,232,228
[EM R 2E Prepayments for raw materials 115,069 132,912
FE IS I (R Value added tax receivables 80,007 127,575
YE + H I (E T Prepaid land value increment tax = 21,785
BRYEBERES Deposit paid for property development 38,000 58,217
e N E A e Y TR Deposits and other receivables 149,313 154,502
2,689,576 1,727,219
MisE © 202112831 E 5 ek 218 6 5E fE I Note: Included in the trade receivables are bills receivables amounting to

Z i AR #2015,258,0007T (20205 : A R#E RMB2,015,258,000 at 31 December 2021 (2020: RMB989,825,000).

989,825,0007T) ©

NREERTRPEFENRSGBEZESNRE Customers are generally granted with credit period ranged

NF330290H @ FEIREE —#H0H 2(180 between 30-90 days for trade receivables. Bills receivables are

HE|H - B EWNZEREREZEE(HRE generally due in 90 days or 180 days. The following is an aging

EEERE)IRBREQHERSITEYW analysis of trade and bills receivables, net of allowance for credit
T o losses presented based on the invoice date.

20214 2020%F

ARBT T AREFT

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB'000

90H K Within 90 days 1,736,823 714,383

91HZ=180H 91 - 180 days 569,118 515,283

181 HZE365H 181 — 365 days 1,246 2,562

2,307,187 1,232,228
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27. B 5 R H A BEWRRIR ()

27.Trade and other receivables (Continued)

EABEEAHERA  AEESRAEHEP
WEBKIEBEREFNEEERNEER
PHEAREE - TPHERBERENEATR
FEEIZMIR ° 99% (20204 : 99%) 7 %1 HA
MAREBEZESEWFEREREEREEE
ZRENREEATR - AEERTREFE
HeE  FRARBERHZEENS -

ZORRFBERERERRIER@DAEA
R #4,263,00070(2020%F = A R #42,590,000
TL)  REHNSRE R ARBHMASEY
EREREEBELRE -  AEBEYW R
ZLEBESTABERIIEAER -

Before accepting any new customer, the Group conducts research
on the creditworthiness of the new customer and assesses the
potential customer's credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Limits and scoring attributed to customers are reviewed
twice a year. 99% (2020: 99%) of the trade and bills receivables
that are neither past due nor impaired have the high-ranking
record attributable under the research on the creditworthiness.
The Group offers various settlement terms which vary depending
on the size of contract, credibility and reputation of the customers.

Included in the trade and bills receivable with the aggregate
carrying amount of RMB4,263,000 (2020: RMB42,590,000) which
are past due as at the reporting date for which the Group has
not provided for impairment loss. The Group does not hold any
collateral or credit enhancements over these balances.

20214 20206

ARBTR ARBFIT

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB'000

91HZE180H 91 - 180 days 3,017 40,391
181HMU Over 181 days 1,246 2,199
4,263 42,590

AR EEEETEREE(LEAEEREZ Allowance of the above amount has not been made by the Group

SHEDTRE - AEERY RS EIE
Bl ARTEBRARSHERETER
4 -

as there has not been a significant change in the credit quality
and the amounts are still considered recoverable. The directors of
the Company consider they are in good credit quality.
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27. EZ R EMEWFIE(E) 27.Trade and other receivables (Continued)

EEEEREST Movements in the allowance for credit losses
B 5 W GRIE Trade receivables 20215 20204F
AR¥T T ARETT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
FHEER Balance at beginning of the year 4,112 4,232
FREE Reversed during the year (1,852) (120)
FaR ek Balance at end of the year 2,260 4112
NI AEBEENINEE ¥ U EES The Group’s trade receivables that are denominated in currencies
ENAERE FRINFIAHIINT other the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are

set out below:

T ARBTIT

US$000 RMB'000

2021 12A31H At 31 December 2021 24,535 156,429

7202012 A31H At 31 December 2020 20,520 133,891

B 5 N H b e S B R R E T AR E A M Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables
5E5 o are set out in note 5.

H At FEU IR Other receivables 20214 20205

ARET T ARET T

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB'000

FAEEER Balance at beginning of the year 4,536 4,592

FREE Reversed during the year (180) (56)

FRaER Balance at end of the year 4,356 4,536
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28.

248

BIEMEBITER RITEHR
Be
RATREES DIEMBITER

R2021F 128318 AEBESEAARK
466,0007T }2 A R #124,145,00070 B 3K R SR 1T
FREEER - DhERENZEBRKEKRBETE
EMEZIRE  WHOBERRBEE -

R2020F128318  AEESEAARE
70,000,0007T + AR #211,800,0007T & AR
8,988,000E IR IRITF R EMEE A - D RIE
RENEE REEEMEZRS RIEAFE
HER - MO BEARRBEE -

EEPRITERRRITERRFZ BN EG

B o
IS

NREASEE RN EEE AN EED)
ENREBERITEREINWT

28. Pledged bank deposits/bank balances and

cash
Bank balances/pledged bank deposits

Pledged bank deposits amounting to RMB466,000 and
RMB124,145,000 have been pledged to secure the bills payables,
deposits from presale of properties, respectively, and are therefore
classified as current assets as at 31 December 2021.

Pledged bank deposits amounting to RMB70,000,000,
RMB211,800,000 and RMB8,988,000 have been pledged to secure
the bills payable, deposits from presale of properties and letter of
credit, respectively, and were therefore classified as current assets
as at 31 December 2020.

Pledged bank deposits and bank balances carry variable interest
rates.

The Group's bank balances that are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities
are set out below:

FT=T AREETT
US$000 RMB'000
MR20214F 12318 At 31 December 2021 27,375 174,536
720205124318 At 31 December 2020 32916 214,777
TAT ARBFT
HK$000 RMB'000
R2021412A31H At 31 December 2021 1,008,326 824,408
R20205F12A31H At 31 December 2020 13,408 11,285

EEFRITERRIRITERABENEFS
M EES -

REEBERIE —2-—5FK

Details of impairment assessment of pledged bank deposits and
bank balances are set out in note 5.
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29.Trade and other payables

20215 20204
ARET T AREFT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
2 SR Trade payables 2,588,251 1,961,700
BHEE-HENIER Contract liabilities - sale of chemical
products 232,921 114,962
EHBEE-HEME Contract liabilities — sale of properties 612,994 1,438,080
FEAT B TN (PEREG) ) Payroll payable (Note (i) 439,263 315,045
Y - S N ERIEM RN RUE Payable for property, plant and equipment
(PREEG) ) (Note (ii)) 279,480 167,886
H e TR Other tax payables 61,419 40,270
TEHERBR 2 EEMEMNEN Construction cost payables for properties
i 79N under development for sale 128,924 78,403
E e R BT EIR Other payables and accruals 321,119 136,639
4,664,371 4,252,985

GEX

(i)

R2021F12A31E  BENBIHFME2E B
ATENBAREEHRESCBEARE
25,613,0007C(20204F : A ER #19,065,0007T ) °
RESHEAEETRNEQTIES N2
RESEML  DRERABLREREE - I
BREFFUTREERFE - HREBIEEE
A—FEFHIE  THRINEMHRBEF
FEME) IR ©

W2 - RS MR BB SRR MRS I
R E TR = A AR - AR EFERE
AFIBHRTRE ©

Notes:

(i)

As at 31 December 2021, included in the payroll payable is a provision for
social insurance fund for employees of the PRC subsidiaries amounting
to RMB25,613,000 (2020: RMB19,065,000). The amount of the provision
represents the Group's entire obligation for social insurance fund for
employees of PRC subsidiaries and is determined based on the relevant
national regulations on social insurance and calculated based on the
basic counting unit multiplied by the social insurance rate. The basic
counting unit for social insurance shall be the average wages of an
employee in the preceding year and shall not be less than the minimum
limit promulgated by the local social insurance bureau each year.

The payable for acquisition of property, plant and equipment will be
settled three months after the completion of installation of the plant and
machinery which is recorded in the addition of construction in progress
during the year.
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29.

250

EZREMEMARIE(E) 29.Trade and other payables (Continued)
EHEB-HELLIER Contract liabilities - Sale of chemical products
ZeBAEELLIERELENTARERLK The amount represents the receipt in advance from customers
1§ o arising from the pre - sale of chemical products.
TREFEFHECTERRBENEELANE The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised
BERBNERKARERTHEEETNE relates to carried-forward contract liabilities in relation to sale
HEBRERBEIZ - of chemical products and how much relates to performance
obligations that were satisfied in prior periods.
20214 20204F
AR¥T T ARETFT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
R1A1H As at 1 January 114,962 110,645
ERBE G A RBEFAU Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of
AUBE DB ERD recognising revenue during the year that
was included in the contract liabilities at
the beginning of the reporting period (3,785,344) (2,249,018)
FRWEEEE RS &5 BRI AL Increase in contract liabilities as a result of
SHEEIEM receiving sales deposits and instalments
during the year 3,903,303 2,253,335
®12A31H8 As at 31 December 232,921 114,962
REEEERAT —E=—FFH
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2. B RHEMENRE(E) 29. Trade and other payables (Continued)
EHNEEBE-HEYE Contract liabilities - Sale of properties
ZeHATPREEYEESANTBRERLXK The amount represents the receipt in advance from customers

p p
T8 o FA2021%F 12318 » Z& %A e EFER arising from the pre-sale of properties in the PRC. The amount
TERHOAER124,1450007C (20205 : AR was secured by pledged bank deposits of approximately
#211,800,0007T ) fEHE I © RMB124,145,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020: RMB211,800,000).
TR BALEMEFRNEELSHEES The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised
BRERBMANEBEHRECETHNRELE relates to carried-forward contract liabilities in relation to sale of
BRREIE - properties and how much relates to performance obligations that

were satisfied in prior periods.

20215 20204
ARBT AREFT
2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
»1A18 As at 1 January 1,438,080 826,555
ERBEHVAB LB EFANI Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of
AUBE LB ER D recognising revenue during the year that
was included in the contract liabilities at
the beginning of the reporting period (1,318,379) (825,445)
FRUREIEE 1R E D B FUAB Increase in contract liabilities as a result of
AHBEEZM receiving sales deposits and instalments
during the year 493,293 1,436,970
M®12A318 As at 31 December 612,994 1,438,080
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29. B 5 [ H i FE 4 5RH (8)

2 5 FE T 5RI8 B 1 E A R 1172,257,0007T
(2020%F : A FR #298,248,0007T ) 2 F& { 2
& - BENERBASENEEBRITFERIE
R -

REEMNFHEEHRROB - AEET
AR MBS RBRERBUR - URERAAEA
REREEMRAEME -

REZREH  BFREMNFENKESITZ
FIEnT

29.Trade and other payables (Continued)

Included in the trade payables are bills payable amounting to
RMB172,257,000 (2020: RMB298,248,000). Bills payable are secured
by the Group’s pledged bank deposits.

The average credit period on purchase of goods is 90 days. The

Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure
that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe.

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables, presented
based on invoice date:

20214 20204

AR¥T R ARETT

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB'000

30BR Within 30 days 1,644,568 1,023,324
31HZ90H 31 - 90 days 660,141 373,493
91HZ180H 91 - 180 days 195,027 363,472
181H Z365H 181 - 365 days 33,724 143,561
1226 1 -2 years 34,987 45,726
BiE2F More than 2 years 19,804 12,124
2,588,251 1,961,700

AEBNRBEASEER 2 HEEE AN
EHHENE 5 M E MR TR NT

The Group's trade and other payables that are denominated in
currencies other the functional currencies of the relevant group
entities are set out below:

F=T ARETT

US$000 RMB'000
202146128318 At 31 December 2021 2,680 17,090
20208128318 At 31 December 2020 570 3,723

25 HBEKEERAT —ET-—FEH
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30. 8 E& 30. Borrowings
20215 20204
ARET T AREFT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
EEIPIRITER Unsecured bank loans 584,100 1,904,550
EIRIRITER Secured bank loans 40,000 -
624,100 1,904,550
B IR BAETMER Less: amounts due within one year shown
B HAZRIE under current liabilities (268,600) (1,406,650)
TIRIERB BE T HIFRIE Amounts show under non-current
liabilities 355,500 497,900
ARUTHRAEZENREE : Carrying amounts are repayable as
follows:
1R Within one year 268,600 1,406,650
ENESERNEpES More than one year, but not exceeding
two years 355,500 497,900
624,100 1,904,550
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30. B E (&) 30. Borrowings (Continued)
REBTFEEERREEATHA (KEH The exposures of the Group's fixed-rate borrowings and the
EEB)WT : contractual maturity dates (or repricing dates) are as follows:

20214 20204
AR¥T ARETIT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000

EEMEE: Fixed-rate borrowings:
1F R Within one year 89,000 199,000
89,000 199,000

gEAN - REBEREREEWNT

In addition, the Group has following variable-rate borrowings:

R®2021%12A31H Loan amount as at

HWERSHE Flz= 31 December 2021 Interest rate

ARE EEEFFIE 0% ZE RMB535,100,000 Standard lending rate plus 0% to 15%
535,100,0007C 15%(RNFE#EAR (current year applied rate: 3.85% to

AR : 3.85%%F4.75%)

72020912 A318H)
SR Fij=

ARH1,705,5500007C FRABHFIE 0% S
15% (A B
FIK : 435%%E4.75%)

REEBERIE —2-—5FK

4.75%

Loan amount as at
31 December 2020

Interest rate

RMB1,705,550,000

Standard lending rate plus 0% to 15%
(year applied rate: 4.35% to 4.75%)
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PR EREEERAH L LD « BERK
Rk e B A RARATARM « e B A RARTT
WIEEFRRE - AR SR %5
BEEEFIREEFRTE -

FEFIENRMEAEFHTEE -

BEERME(THREFRQENR)BENT
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30. Borrowings (Continued)

The variable interest rates change in accordance with the standard
lending rate. The standard lending rate is promulgated by the
People’s Bank of China. The interest of borrowing at standard
lending rate will be reset when there is a change in the borrowing
rate promulgated by the People’s Bank of China.

Interest is repriced every 3 to 12 months.

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to
contracted interest rates) are as follows:

20214 20204
AR¥ET T ARETT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
ERFZE Effective interest rate:
TEEE Fixed-rate borrowings 1.17% 2.2%ZE4.35%
1.17% 2.2% to 4.35%
ZEEE Variable-rate borrowings 3.85%%4.75% 435%%4.75%

3.85%-4.75% 4.35% to 4.75%

REZ2021F12A3BLEEE AE@EE
1530 3K R HI R 1T B 5k A R #689,000,000
TL(20204 : AR #599,000,00070) M &5 &
B A A R #745,150,00070 (20205 : A R ¥
249,000,0007T ) B IR R ARIRITE K ©

RBERAR REEBFUATRREREER
E

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group raise
new unsecured short-term bank loans of 89,000,000 (2020:
RMB599,000,000) and unsecured long-term bank loans in the
amount of RMB745,150,000 (2020: RMB249,000,000).

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following
undrawn borrowing facilities:

20214 2020%F

AR¥T ARETIT

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

REAE R Expiring within one year 1,092,300 1,655,250
BiE1FEm Expiring beyond one year 2,429,210 805,000
3,521,510 2,460,250
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31. HEAE 31. Lease liabilities
20215 20204
ARET T AREFT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
ENHERE: Lease liabilities payables:
1F R Within one year 4,983 4,827
REAZ I E B BRI Within a period of more than one year,
but not exceeding two years 4,670 4,466
BHEZ 2T BTN HRIBSF Within a period of more than two years,
but not more than five years 26,750 25,582
HERE RS T Within a period of more than five years 3,755 9,846
40,158 44,721
B AR BAETEIERSE  Less: amounts due within one year shown
Big I under current liabilities (4,983) (4,827)
FIRIEREN B E THIFIA Amounts show under non-current
liabilities 35,175 39,894
FERNEERENINEFEEIEEEERN RN The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to
F4.51%%5.13%(20204F : 451%%5.13%) © lease liabilities range from 4.51% to 5.13% (2020: 4.51 to 5.13%).
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32 IRFEWA 32. Deferred income
RIEWAEE WM ERRNEELLEE Deferred income mainly represents government grants received
BV E - B N ERER AL o in respect of acquisition of property, plant and equipment for

manufacturing of chemical products.

FRFELERARNEEHINT Movements of deferred income during the year are as follows:
20214 2020%F
AR¥T R ARETT
2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
M1 A1H At 1 January 263,298 288,835
NE Additions 124,665 4957
HRAELE —HEB A Deemed disposal of a subsidiary = (9,399)
BR=ER Release to profit or loss (70,938) (21,095)
R12H318 At 31 December 317,025 263,298

AWEFER DT ¢ Analysed for reporting purposes as:

20214 2020%F
ARYET T AREFT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
BNERER 7> Current portion 80,256 19,569
FERNHAEL 7> Non-current portion 236,769 243,729
317,025 263,298
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33. lRA< 33. Share capital

KRB E &S
THx AREFT
Number of Share
shares capital
‘000 RMB'000
FREE.1ETHZER Ordinary share of HK$0.1 each
ZEE - Authorised:
202091 18 ~ 20208F12 8318 At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020,
20214E1 A1 H &%20214E12A31H 1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 4,000,000 382,200
E#TRHEE - Issued and fully paid:
7202081 A18 ~ 2020F12 8318 At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 and
20211818 1 January 2021 2,111,689 200,397
B & ¥ AR (B EG)) Placing of new shares (note (i) 145,000 12,063
20 8 K2 A S AR 1) (BT 3G ) Shares repurchased and cancelled (note (i) (1,499) (122)
2021 12A31H At 31 December 2021 2,255,190 212,338

BriE B BT EIPTRESE N -

R2021F K&

2020FfF - EARRMBARBEE HE
BRI AR FEI ETHES °

@0

20218 A318 » AR A HEERIBFIVEE
- Bt AARERERERBREENRE
NEHEERMD2BETRATLRANBEE AR
145,000,000 BEe & R A ([ERE R ) - BBE
B R20215F9A8H FEAK © IRIFALE ik K 1E K
R A1 - & $£145,000,0000% FR & I 15 2 1R & 1%
LSR5 23 008 TR E FRLORAEBREA °

Bl FT 15 SR IE AR 58 I FT 18 SR B F 58 (IR A8
X REBARK)D B A3335EETRLIES
TC e RAREEBRBFESRUENRS
REBBRRLEGRERM B EERD i)
RENEENBOALE RHEFEM R A ELE
7 RiNVHEAREEN—REEES -

Other than as disclosed in the employee option scheme, none of

the Company's subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of

the Company's listed securities during the years 2021 and 2020.

U]

On 31 August 2021, the Company and the placing agents entered into
the placing agreement, pursuant to which the Company has conditionally
agreed to place through the placing agents 145,000,000 placing shares
("Placing Shares”) to not less than six placees at the HK$23 per Placing
Share. The placing was completed on 8 September 2021. An aggregate of
145,000,000 Placing Shares have been placed to not less than six placees
at HK$23.00 per Placing Share pursuant to the terms and conditions of
the placing agreement.

The gross proceeds and the net proceeds (after deduction of the relevant
expenses and fees) from the placing amounted to HK$3.335 billion and
approximately HK$3.31 billion, respectively. The Company intends to
allocate the net proceeds i) enhancing the Group’s production capacity
of PVDF and its raw material; ii) enhancing the Group’s production
capacity of PTFE and its raw material; and iii) replenishing the general
working capital of the Group.
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(i)

RIEARRNRR2021F6 108 BHNFERR
ARERTHEBEE  NQRHHIR2021412
A158 F12021512 8208 FE 8 2 A Bl B A A &)
499,0008% F011,000,0008% A& 13 ([ A& 15 [ B8 1) »
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33. Share capital (Continued)

(i)~ Pursuant to the repurchase mandate granted at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 10 June 2021, the Company
repurchased, on Stock Exchange, 499,000 shares and 1,000,000 shares
of the Company (the “Share Repurchase”) on 15 December 2021 and
20 December 2021 respectively. The aggregate consideration for the
share repurchase was approximately HK$16,889,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB13,883,000) which was funded by internal resources
of the Company. Details of the Company repurchased its own shares
through The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited are as follows:

FR0.1EBTH
=58 B 3 LERYE &S RIE ERANE
No. of ordinary
shares of Aggregate
Date of repurchase HK$0.1 each Highest Lowest consideration paid
BT BT FET
HKS HKS HK$'000
20214128158 499,000 11.60 11.24 5,688
15 December 2021
2021412 H20H 1,000,000 11.50 11.00 11,201

20 December 2021

it E A B IR R8N

The above ordinary shares were cancelled upon repurchase.
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34, FEER IR RS 34. Non-Controlling Interests
pax
=Nl
BEEFE
Share of net assets of
subsidiaries
AREFT
RMBS$000
7202041 A18 At 1 January 2020 1,075,604
DMEFEER Share of results for the year 130,689
R Transfer 265
B IR IR SR AE S WS — I B 2 Acquisition of additional interests in a subsidiary from non-

RIMRESMEZE controlling interest (144,061)
BELE—HWBRREMELZR  Deemed partial disposal of interest in a subsidiary 1,247,706
"AELE KB AR Deemed disposal of a subsidiary (99,831)
REEMB A RE IR Dividends paid by subsidiaries of the Group

RS2, (222,166)
2020F12A31H X At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021

202151 18 1,988,206
DMEFEELE Share of results for the year 606,702
B Transfer 289
AEE W BA RS IR Dividends paid by subsidiaries of the Group

RS, (80,155)
F2021512H31H At 31 December 2021 2,515,042
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35. EARAEIE 35. Capital commitments
FR20215F12 8310 » AEBE R AREE B AE At 31 December 2021, the Group had outstanding commitments
wm as follows:
20214 2020%F
AR¥T T AREFT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
EREE Capital Commitment
BRAKEDE  HERRBENER  Capital expenditure in respect of
S BETHERELSR S B TSR acquisition of property, plant and
FNEE equipment contracted for but not
provided in the consolidated financial
statements 331,347 257,983
BN FEFAEMEEMEZ  Capital expenditure in respect of equity
BATEMEART L - BETHE instruments at FVTOCI contracted for
AIELB YRR ABEE but not provided in the consolidated
financial statements 790,140 480,000
1,121,487 737,983
HtAiE Other commitment
ERELERBRZEEYENMET  Construction commitment contracted
EIE - BEREREARE TR in respect of properties under
RNEHE development for sale contracted for
but not provided in the consolidated
financial statements 78,915 21,299
1,200,402 759,282
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36.

262

L

FA - BREAMBHRERAEIIEID -
LETTIRBTRS -

(a) BEEMH

ZA 3

36. Related party transactions

Other than set out in the consolidated financial statements, the

Group entered into the following related party transactions during

the year:

(a) Purchase of raw materials

20214 20204
ARET T ARETT
2021 2020
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARREEE (PFEE) Future Hydrogen (note) 65,711 20,285

(b) SHELEEmM (b) Sales of chemical products
20214 2020%F
AR¥TF T ARET T
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR pe (KEE) Future Hydrogen (note) 81,074 22,354

(c) HEWA (c) Rental income

20214 20204
AR¥ETF T ARETT
2021 2020
RMB'000 RMB'000
RREEE (PFEE) Future Hydrogen (note) 4,003 =

PR © RERKERE

SEZBER

REEERRAF —_F=—

202055 A22 AR AR

FEH

Note: Dongyue Future Hydrogen Energy became an associate of the
Group on 22 May 2020.
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36. Related party transactions (Continued)

(d) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

2021 20204

ARET T AREBTT

2021 2020

RMB’'000 RMB'000

I&EEE® Wages and salaries 33,709 10,112
I TEAL Discretionary bonus 25,294 44,085
RRFHEIMH K Pension scheme contributions = =
MRS E 2 AR TR Equity-settled share-based payments 113,664 -
172,667 54,197

FRREERRVRTEREME
RSN

(e) Bank deposit placed to major shareholder and
related interest income

20215 20204

AR¥T T ARETIT

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB'000

R12A31BRYRITIFK Bank deposit at 31 December 309,888 321,418
FRFBIA Interest income during the year 1,911 6,828

202065280 REABE(EAR
A—RHIMEIEEZEWBRR) KRS
BT EE(FHIREE ) BARKTE
(REBBE AR EER= %
2 1) BRMEEE A RE300,000,0007T °
Hh A R#21,0000007C A M E A
A R #279,000,0007T & B% A& & & - 1R
B REE#ERERAKRS
BEX & A R #100,000,0007T © HE A A
R #7,000000c At E A AR
93,000,0007T & M 7N {5 o A 1 &% B
B BERARRERERA R
FER] HEFBEREARDIA—ZH
ITEENBHZ A)FERKEFE23.71%
BEAE o Eit - RIE ETARBIZE14A28(2)
1% RIFEBRARRNEERS -

(f) on 28 May 2020, Dongyue Organosilicon, an indirect non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and several new
investors (“New Investors”) entered into capital injection
agreements (“Agreements”) with Future Hydrogen, an
associate of the Group, with an aggregate amount of
RMB300,000,000, which consisted of RMB21,000,000 as
registered capital and RMB279,000,000 as capital reserve.
Pursuant to the Agreements, Dongyue Organosilicon agreed
to inject RMB100,000,000, which consisted of RMB7,000,000
as registered capital and RMB93,000,000 as capital reserve,
into Future Hydrogen. As at the date of the Agreements,
Paramita Times Technology Holdings Limited ("Paramita"), a
company of which a close family member of an executive
director of the Company is the major shareholder, held
23.71% of Future Hydrogen. Therefore, the capital injection
constituted a connected transaction of the Company under
Rule 14A.28(2) of the Listing Rules.
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37.

38.

RKEF TS

AEBEFENEES P ESEDTBTE
BEBIZRREMETEIMKE - AEEER
AHEIRFIEE R DL R AE) - F
REBERNNES - ARENE—EETEY

ZERTEIERIEEHK -

EBERBRETE

R2018F 128278 + NARIEMNE 8 BB E
FTEI([EEERERE ) HEBEERAEK
HARF -

RiEEBERETE - AARZEHBAR
REAEREEEERARMEAZ AR
FEADBEMNARNEEFEFANRS(BRER
FiT 75 78 2 B 8 39 113 #8 48800,000,0007% 7T )
AMELEEREGRG  YHEESKEN
AEEHEAREESER([EEREE )T

MAREREBRE -

EXgn TREERBRER TEAEERE
BRNABERBBRND(TEERE]D - E17
EERER  BREEAEEESEHEE
Ko/ o i) B BRI 193 8 5 (B 4R B A S
TEERZEANZR(NB)NERHHKE -

HZE2020F 124318 IEFE - IFEANRER
BH A R¥ES4640000T R IHE LEE K
A A]18,341,0008% A% 17 ° #l 2020512 A31
BIEFE - SEBRERERESBRETS
Bl o

37.

38.

Retirement benefits plans

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of state-
managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the respective
local governments in the PRC. The Group is required to contribute
a specified percentage of payroll costs to the schemes to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to these
schemes is to make the specified contributions.

Employee option scheme

On 27 December 2018, the Company adopted an employee
option scheme (the “Employee Option Scheme”) which shall be
valid and effective for a term of five years.

Pursuant to the Employee Option Scheme, Dongyue Fluorosilicon
Science and Technology Group Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as the trustee (the “Trustee”) will
purchase existing Shares from the market out of cash contributed
by the Group of not more than HK$800,000,000 in total at all
material times and hold such Shares on trust for the relevant
employees or consultants of the Group selected by the Board (the
“Selected Employees”).

The Board may, from time to time, at its absolute discretion
grant to any Selected Employee the right to purchase the
relevant shares (the "Option”). The Selected Employee may, when
exercising the Option, elect the number of shares which he wishes
to (i) be transferred and/or (ii) sell and receive the difference, if
any, between the sale price of the Shares and the exercise price of
the Option.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Trustee purchased
an aggregate of 18,341,000 shares of the Company from the
market at a total consideration of approximately RMB54,640,000.
No share options have been granted under the Employee Option
Scheme for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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20217898 - AR B LASRREE I 4E4.27
EILIWITEERAERIINEERES &
RATESRBIFPITES  BEEH
62,570,00017 B A 4 - (H AR A A B EITIRAR
B13% - WRIEE S EKRET S - ZERMHEH
REAFRAARAMART CHESERA
Fmis LEE - BIRER R202167A98H
R E20265F7 A8 [Em (B EZ M E B H1) &)
SEHRAITE - FEREHOBRENTS
ENARARIBHAA2021F7 AR A o
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38. Employee option scheme (Continued)

On 9 July 2021, the Company granted an aggregate of 62,570,000

share options at the exercise price of HK$4.27 per option share,

representing 3% of the issued share capital of the Company,

to a total of 1,372 Selected Employees, including executive

directors and independent non-executive directors, which have

been acquired by the Trustee from the open market by utilizing

the contributed amount made available to the Trustee by the

Company pursuant to the Employee Option Scheme. The share

options are exercisable for a term of 5 years commencing from

9 July 2021 and expiring on 8 July 2026, both dates inclusive.

Details of the share options granted are set out in the Company’s

announcement dated 9 July 2021.

BHAEREN SIS EHY T Details of the movements of the share options granted are as
follows:
R2021%F R20215
1A1H 12A31H
RARA REAH HRATHE FRFWL FRTE HRATHE TfEfE TRAE
Outstanding Granted Exercised  Outstanding at
at 1 January during the during the 31 December Exercise
Grantee Date of grant 2021 year year 2021 price Exercise period
BT(ER)
HKS per share
YTES
Executive directors
RERELE 2021%7A9 A - 7,000,000 (7,000,000) - 427 20217 R9AZ2026%7 A8H
Mr. Zhang Jianhong 9 July 2021 9 July 2021 - 8 July 2026
BEEE 2021F7A9 R - 1,000,000 (1,000,000) = 427 202157 R9RZE2026%7 A8H
Mr. Fu Kawn 9 July 2021 9 July 2021 - 8 July 2026
FHRTE 2021%7R9 A - 7,000,000 (7,000,000) - 427 20217 R9RZ2026%F7 A8H
Mr. Wang Weidong 9 July 2021 9 July 2021 - 8 July 2026
RABEE 2021%7A89 A - 6,000,000 (6,000,000) - 427 202157 R9BE2026%7 A8H
Mr. Zhang Zhefeng 9 July 2021 9 July 2021 - 8 July 2026
RUERE 2021%7A9 A - 300,000 (300,000) - 427 20014579 E2026%7 AsH
Mr. Zhang Bishu 9 July 2021 9 July 2021 - 8 July 2026
RELAE 2021%7A9 A - 300,000 (300,000) - 427 202157 R9BE2026%7 A8A
Mr. Zhang Jian 9 July 2021 9 July 2021 - 8 July 2026
FHTES
Independent non-executive directors
TRERE 2021F7A9 R - 500,000 (500,000) - 427 20217 R9RZ2026%F7 A8H
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 9 July 2021 9 July 2021 - 8 July 2026
BREEE 2021%7A9 A - 300,000 (300,000) - 427 202157 R9BE2026%7 A8A
Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 9 July 2021 9 July 2021 - 8 July 2026
BEAEE 2021F7A9 R - 50,000 (50,000) = 427 202157 A9RZ2026%7 A8H
Mr. Ma Zhizhong 9 July 2021 9 July 2021 - 8 July 2026
HitfES
Other empolyees
HitES 20214789 A - 40120000  (40,120,000) - 427 20217 A9BE2026%7 A8A
Other empolyees 9 July 2021 9 July 2021 - 8 July 2026
= 62,570,000 (62,570,000) -
PR FER AT 4BR T
Weighted average exercise price N/A HK$4.27 HKS4.27 N/A
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38.

EEBRETS(A)

BRENGER - REAEETERENE
Y EXEEMEBHERRERARET -
RPEDFB_BAABREEEREAME
E o PREGIZBEARKE L BHANEX
BAE -

B EIRR(E 9.997% 7T
TEE SRERAER 42757
TEER I8 68.32%
FE R R A HR 54F
TE AR B e & 5.68%
41 [ P ) 0.54%
HEEREATEERANEERBEIER

B R MREMDF - BRKEDREAR
AIRERSIH(HEERBRENEOFH)
M SRR IERT E o EERM KR T2 E A
HBERESOFH - BNEEBNESFNE
h B H R Y et H AR » SR IR\ B ARE
EERAGENBREEEXRNE TERN
PRI (R AR ZEAIRARERA KKK
Bz BER2TBMEE R THEEME)
RZEAARGHETEARS

38. Employee option scheme (Continued)

The valuation of share option was carried out by Hong Kong
Appraisal Advisory Limited, an independent professional valuer
which are not connected by the Group. The fair value was
determined using a binomial option pricing model. The following
table lists the significant inputs to the model used at the date of

grant.

Grant date share price HK$9.99
Exercise price HKS$4.27 per Option Share
Expected volatility 68.32%
Share option life 5 years
Expected dividend yield 5.68%
Risk-free interest rate 0.54%

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair values
of the share options are based on the directors’ best estimates.
Expected volatility is based on the historical share price volatility
of the Company over the most recent period commensurate with
the contractual life of the share options. Expected dividend yield
is based on the historical dividend payment of the Company. The
risk-free interest rate is assumed with reference to Hong Kong
government bond yield with maturity matching the contractual
life of the share options as at the date of grant. The value of
the share options calculated using the binomial option pricing
model are subject to certain fundamental limitations, due to the
subjective nature of and uncertainty relating to the assumptions
regarding future performance on which the model is based, and
certain inherent limitations of the model itself.
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HE2021F12A831HILFE » NEBEERE
fi% ¥ 5 X £362,684,00078 TL(HHE N AR
293,774,0007T) (2020512 8318 : ) o

HZE2021F 128318 ILFE - FTER20214F
7RORRHMERIEIIBITE - RRERIT
FERERER  ITACTHEIEEREEERE
TR TG -

M2021F9R158 + RARMEZEAEBILE=
FEBBRUBRESBRAR(HEAEN])
AEBBRESNIMITA  MEERE
BMEEEARAR(FIAANLUREERRD
¥TRAZARBERA R EFEI AR
7']4% o

HE2021F12A3BILEFE - XTANEL
& 49307,084,000% TL(HHE R AR
249,159,0007T) (B IEE#Z E(GIBE M A ) I
M54 H B B AR F)18460,0000 15 - &
DLAMEFERESR 7188 THEE -
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38. Employee option scheme (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recognised
a share option expense of HK$362,684,000 (equivalent to
RMB293,774,000) (31 December 2020: nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, all of the share options
granted on 9 July 2021 were exercised. Following such grant and
exercise of share options, the Trustee has no longer held any
shares under the Employee Option Scheme.

On 15 September 2021, the Company newly appointed Hong
Kong Ju Yue International Trading Company Limited (&% Z 1%
BB E 5ABRAF) ("Hong Kong Ju Yue”), an independent third
party as the new trustee of the Employee Option Scheme while
the Dongyue Fluorosilicone Science and Technology Group Co.,
Ltd. (formerly known as” Shandong Dongyue Future Enterprise
Management Consulting Services Co., Ltd."), was resigned from
the trustee.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the trustees purchased
an aggregate of 18,460,000 shares of the Company from the
market at a total consideration of approximately HK$307,084,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB249,159,000) (including directly
attributable incremental costs), and shares were purchased at the
weighted average market price of HK$17.18 per share.

At the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements,

the Company had no share options outstanding under the
Employee Option Scheme.
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30. R AR EEM B A RFE 39. Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
Company
(a) MBATW—REL (a) General information of subsidiaries
RIBEHIR AN T B R RS 2 W Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by
BATSEEMOT the Company at the end of the reporting period are set out
below.
iRiL9EE/ 28/ .
il ek ?E?ﬁ , FERHRH ARARRE ROAEFERRRL KARGRZRNA  TEER
ountry 0
incorporation Paid up issued/
or registration/ registered Proportion ownership interest held Proportion of voting power
Name of subsidiary operation Class of share held share capital 5 by the Company . held by the Company ~ Principal activities
E]
Directly Indirectly
wmE aE wmE 0E ME I0E
T % b % % % %
0 2000 M 2000 021 2020
00 % % % % % %
RERAT 48 iftan AR 3607 - S 000 mm 10000 q00  BERHERREZE
Dongyue Polymers PRC Registered capital RMB41 360 Manufacture and sale of
. ~ olytetrafiuoroethylene

RELT 0 ifiax ARBM000T - - 10000 0000 10000 10000 %L&gﬁﬁz”‘

Dongyue Chemicals PRC Registered capital RMB340,000 Manufacture and sale of

refigerant

REEX o iftan AREBI00T - S T IR T R T N ﬁ&ﬁgﬁ

Don g e Salt PRC Registered capita 330,000 Production and sales of sl

! &% ARBomor 6979 0 B8 B8 82 B0 PERBETRELY

Dongyue Fluo-Silicon PRC Registered capital RMBA00,000 Manufacture and sals of

. ) methane chloride

Honglong Tal htemational Trading &7 iHaR BHSm 10000 10000 - S 0000 0000 HENIER
(o,Ltd.

HoyKongTa‘\U Intemational Trading~ HK Regitered capita  HKD5000 Sale of chemical products

i 4 Al ARBE0007T - - uB o gn S U5 LEREEEEENH

Dongyue Organasficon PRC Registered capial RMBES0,000 Manufacture and sale of
N . , B organosilicon materia

RELRESEAITERAR 48 iftén ARBIS0007T - Sl 500 5100 500 BEREEEKENE
([AZERELE)

Inner Mongolia Dongyue Peak Fluarine  PRC Regstered capial RAB150,000 Manufacture and sale of
Chemicals Co, Ltd. (Inner Mongolia anhydrous luoride
Dongyue Peak’ . o ‘

ﬂﬁiﬁ;&ﬁ%ﬁﬁ 48 iftén AR 0007 - SR WD 800 G0 HEREELD

s

(hifeng HuaSheng Mining Co, Ltd,  PRC Regstered capial RMB9,000 Manufacture and sale of
[Ch\feng HuaSheng’) . . ~ fluorite

m%ﬁﬂy/])ﬁ$ﬁ4ﬁﬂﬁ 48 iftén ARB15 7007 - SR sl S0 S0 HEREEEKE

iz

Shandong Dongyue Wenhe Fluorine  PRC Registered captal RMBI 15,700 Manufacture and sale of
Chemicals Co, Lt. (Wenfe Fuorng L o slicon rubber

BiEz P iftan AEBR007T - - 1000 000 10000 Tooo  FEHE

Union Property PRC Registered capital RIVB3000 Property development

EEAEHETEARAT L AR ARBS0007T - - 10000 0005 10000 10000¢ mz@m%
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39. Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the

Com

pany (Continued)

(a) General information of subsidiaries

(Continued)
aRiTaRE/ 285/ \ ‘
WRATER ?i% , Fis RO EH ERERRA KOAfEHERRENLS KAEREREEND  TEEE
ountry 0
incorporation Paid up issued/
or registration/ registered Proportion ownership interest held Proportion of voting power
Name of subsidiary operation (Class of share held share capital by the Company ; held by the Company ~ Principal actvities
[}
Directly Indirectly
wng o a0E v I0E anE
1 b % % b % b
2021 00 2001 200 2001 2000
000 % % % % % %
Shandong Boda Real Fstate PRC Regstered capital RMB30000 Property development
Development Co, Lid . o ,
FARGARUERDARLY  1E e AEESN07T - S 1000 0000 10000 oo EEHE
Zhangjigie Xinye Real Estate PRC Registered capital RMBB0,000 Property development
 Development o, Ltd . o o
BRREAREARRAT E ifax ARES00T - - 10000 0000 10000 1000 BERIER
Huangtal Dongyue Interational Trade  PRC Registered capital RIBS,000 Sale of chemical products
(o, Ltd.
ZERR ik &R AREI000T - - 10000 000 10000 1000 PEREEASSATIH
Huaxia Shenzhou PRC Registered capial RMB10,000 Manufacture and sale of
. B Muoropolymer
REARHR i &% ARBII0S0T 10000 10000 - S0 0n  REREEEENNNGE
Dongyue Fluorosiicon Technology ~ PRC Regstered capital RMB1 220520 nvestment and management
of fluorosiicon new
- . o . matera ndustry
R EKAERALLA E &R AEBB007 - - 10000 0000 10000 1000 FKEHREREN
Zibo Herun Shuiwu Company Limited.  PRC Registered capital RMB25,000 Sewage disposal and
environmental
L , ~ monitoring
IFRERRERAA a ifax ARE00007 - - 10000 0000 10000 10000 (LB
Shandong Mingyue Technology Co, Ltd. PRC Regstered capital RMB300,000 (hemical technology research
and development
* HE2020F 128318 IEEE - NEERELE * During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group deemed
REFEE - WG HE AEEAa) o disposal of Future Hydrogen and remained it as an associate.
# HZE2020FE128318IEE - NEEB BB # During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group further

BN IRE R AR S B R T 36% 0 - B

MBRARTRATEENZENBAR -

acquired the remaining 36% equity interest from the non-
controlling interest, thus Union Property and its subsidiaries
became wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group.
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39. AR B EEMB LR BFFE (&)

(a) MEBATN—RER(E)

EERA - LREIINARFIMEAF
IEREANEEXELEE -EFR
7 WEIEMHBARNER - KHE
EEBEFERITE °

REL - WBARSERTEAERE
% o TATEHB AR R/EARE -

(b) EEERFERRREZNES
BB R RNFE

TRINVREREANIHEIR BRSO
SEFZEMBARNFS

39. Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the

Company (Continued)

(a)

(b)

General information of subsidiaries
(Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the year. All the PRC subsidiaries are domestic
enterprises.

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling

interests:
AR 2K FERRRERTEN PEFFER Rt FER
HEARERE TR FrE RS RSB RRER
Place of Profit
incorporation Proportion of ownership allocated to Accumulated
and principal interest held by non-controlling non-controlling
Name of subsidiary place of business non-controlling interests interests interests
20214 20204 2021 20204 20214 2020%F
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
ARBTR ARBFT AR¥TR ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
REBRE H 42.25% 42.25% 487,437 108578 2,129,216 1,705,155
(Dongyue Organosilicon) PRC
REAR H 16.78% 16.78% 49,398 6,238 139,241 106,602
(Dongyue Fluo-Silicon) PRC
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(b) EEERFERRREZNES
ENEARNFE (&)

TXEHIEREAIHEBR BRSO
SEEXMBRRNPHEERREE - 7
MBERBBERETRERNHIEMNE
B

FAEAFRRRRBRNELR
o 22 5 0 48

meMBHRRME
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B 2202112831 B IFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

39. Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
Company (Continued)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries
that have material non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of each of
the Group’s subsidiaries that has material non-controlling
interests is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts before intragroup
eliminations.

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests

REBHE RERE
W12A318 At 31 December Dongyue Organosilicon Dongyue Fluo-Silicon
20215 2020 20214 2020
2021 2020 2021 2020
ARET T ARETTT ARET T ARETTT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
REEE Current assets 3,124,733 3,130,175 380,783 310,650
FRBEE Non-current assets 3,132,734 1,350,812 1,794,665 1,350,998
nPaRE Current liabilities (1,106,053) (391,280) (1,050,960) (854,125)
FrRBaRE Non-current liabilities (76,849) (53,838) (284,496) (161,920)
5,074,565 4,035,869 839,992 645,603
KNAHE AEEER Equity attributable to owners of the
Company 2,945,349 2,330,714 700,751 539,001
FERIRRER GRS Fquity attributable to non-controlling
interests 2,129,216 1,705,155 139,241 106,602
5,074,565 4,035,869 839,992 645,603
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39. AR B EEMB LR BFFE (&)

BREXEERRREDZNIFZE

Company (Continued)

39. Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have

-G A )) material non-controlling interests (Continued)
REAME REAE
BZ12B31HLFE For the year ended 31 December Dongyue Organosilicon Dongyue Fluo-Silicon
20215 2020%F 20216 2020%F
2021 2020 2021 2020
ARETR AR®TT ARETR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
Wegs Revenue 4,338,553 2572480 2,729,582 1,771,119
F Expenses (3,184,329)  (2290375) (2,435,193)  (1,733943)
FRa A Profit for the year 1,154,224 282,105 294,389 37,176
AREEE AELEF Profit attributable to owners of the Company 666,787 173,527 244,991 30938
MR R G R 7 Profit attributable to non-controlling interests 487,437 108,578 49,398 6,238
1,154,224 282,105 294,389 37,176
RRERL ST Fatioles) Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 63,375 126,750 16,780 36,916
RETHBRERA/ GRL)FE Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
operating activities 917,218 2,038,476 483,025 153477
BEEHRSRA/(RL)FE Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing
activities (1,727,244) (90,667) (622,379) (200,845)
BETHRETA/ () FE Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
financing activities 36,124 (300,000 120,126 (26,780)
ReRA/ (Rt #8 Net cash inflow/(outflow) (773,902) 1,647,809 (19,228) (74,148)
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REZE2021F12831HILFE - AEBERL
AR#2,950000t MR EREBHAEERE
EMEERARNEHEBITRALHETE
VE=AFINEE R - HE D R202148
A6R TR > R2021F8A6BMEEREE
HEOT

meMBHRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EZ20219F12431 AL FE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

40. Disposal of a subsidiary

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group entered
into a sale and purchase agreement relating to the disposal
of the entire issued share capital of Inner Mongolia Dongyue
Fluorine Chemicals Co. Ltd, (REHEERMEERAF) to an
independent third party, at a cash consideration of RMB2,950,000.
The disposal was completed on 6 August 2021. Details of the
assets and liabilities as of 6 August 2021 are set out as follows:

ARBT
RMB’000
RITHEER Bank balances 1,105
mVAE Intangible assets 12,220
M - IR RERE Property, plant and equipment 14
BEIEE E Deferred tax assets 15,779
HoAth jE W RRIE Other receivables 2,238
FEET R E A FE T FRIR Accruals and other payables (1,029)
EHEFEE Net assets disposed of 30,327
HEMBARMNERS : Loss on disposal of a subsidiary:

BEWEERE Cash consideration received 2,950
EHEFEE Net assets disposed of (30,327)
(27,377)

HEMEENRESRATE Net cash inflow arising from disposal:
EWEERE Cash consideration received 2,950
W BHEReRERRE Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of (1,105)
1,845
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4. 1A HE— BB LQE

41. Deemed partial disposal of a subsidiary

R20208F3A12H - AEBEKILRRER
HEMEROBERAR(TREE#IE D
BREERINEBHFZ DB ERDIF LT
(F"%FFJ) CERARIRADRMNEEIEEE
MEBAR  EEREMBNEEFHEE -
ﬂﬁ;ﬁ&m& TESRARK690T 1T
3%%%%%“%@@AE%%W%M%
BT ES 4 AR #1,985,849,0007T K F IR &
H&anw

ZESIRTRE  AEBEREA EERR
MERE BN 77% B Z=57.75% © At D IFIAR
%ﬁﬁ’\uﬂ% c MR AT HERER T

On 12 March 2020, the Group has completed the spin-off
of Shangdong Dongyue Organosilicon Co., Ltd (“Dongyue
Organosilicon”), an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company engaged in manufacture and sale of organosilicon
material, through a separate listing of its shares on the ChiNext
of Shenzhen Stock Exchange (“Spin-Off"). The Spin-Off involved
offering of 300,000,000 new A-share of RMB1 each at an issue
price of RMB6.90 per share, which raised a total net cash proceeds
of approximately RMB1,985,849,000.

Immediately following the completion of the Spin-Off, the Group's
equity interest in Dongyue Organosilicon was diluted from 77%
to 57.75% and thus the Spin-Off is considered as a deemed

SEBRELGIE - FALZZSHIERER
SGAR . MAOFAGFHEEERFREE#
142, 25%FREE B Z R R S AR BB
e between the net proceeds from the Spin-Off and the then 42.25%

partial disposal. Since the deemed partial disposal of Dongyue
Organosilicon did not result in any loss of control, the transaction
was accounted for as an equity transaction and the difference

carrying value of Dongyue Organosilicon is recognised in the
equity of the Group.

DIFEMBEEREWT

A summary of the financial impacts of the Spin-Off are as follows:

ARET T
RMB’000
DG E RS Gross proceeds from the Spin-Off 2,070,000
DA ) Eﬂiﬁn@%ﬁ Less: total listing expenses (84,151)
EEFEREITREARENARNF5E Net proceed directly attributable to the issue of new
A-shares of Dongyue Organosilicon 1,985,849
B R BRI R R R EAMEER  Less: net assets value of Dongyue Organosilicon
BEFE recognised as non-controlling interest (1,247,706)
REBILEREERENER Difference on deemed partial disposal of Dongyue
Organosilicon 738,143
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MNBRRBLEE— BB QA 41.Deemed partial disposal of a subsidiary

(%&) (Continued)
ERARALERTAERETIEINIEER An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the deemed partial
SEQMAT : disposal of an interest in Dongyue Organosilicon is as follows:
ARET T
RMB’000
DIFFTISE 2B Gross proceeds from the Spin-off 2,070,000
W FRE AT LR Less: listing expenses for the new shares paid during
the year (84,151)
AR ALE—TIHB AT #ERRIRE  Netinflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect
NERBEEB RAFE of the deemed partial disposal of interest in a
subsidiary 1,985,849
NRIFTEIFRERXE 42. Major non - cash transactions
FR - NEBGBRASOERZSE] — D During the year, the Group entered into a new lease agreement
M EWE - BH2F - REERKBE - K for the use of office premise for 2 years. On the lease
EEERANRE,031,000HFAEEEN commencement, the Group recognised RMB1,031,000 of right-of-
HEHERE - use assets and the related lease liabilities
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43. KA TR AR AR FEE  43. Summarised statement of financial
position of the Company and reserves

20214 20204
ARET T ARETT
2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
R B R FHIEE Investments in subsidiaries 3,677,948 1,521,381
RITEHREIRE Bank balances and cash 831,972 29,758
Hi B EE Other current assets 136 206
HEmmeiBE Other current liabilities (1,082) (598)
4,508,974 1,550,747
[N Share capital 212,338 200,397
s (B EE) Reserves (Note) 4,296,636 1,350,351
4,508,974 1,550,748
KRR RN KR E R202F3H21HEE The statement of financial position of the Company was approved
ESREREETIE  WHNUTABRESR and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 21 March
F: 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:
RER R IE
Zhang Jianhong Zhang Zhefeng
= EE
Director Director
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43. Summarised statement of financial
position of the Company and reserve

(Continued)
ik - Note:
EEE - Movement in the reserves:
EEBRE
HEETZ
RGEE BROBERE RAGRE BRERE REEF #eE
AREBFT ARETT ARETRT ARBTT ARBTT AR%TR
Share held
for employee
Share option Capital Share option Retained
premium scheme reserve reserve earnings Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
202051818 At 1 January 2020 1,224,924 (168,897) 200,344 - 100,567 1,356,938
AEE MR ERGEE Profit and total
comprehensive income
for the year - - - - 476,088 476,088
EERREEETRERN Purchase of shares under
employee option scheme - (54,640) - - - (54,640)
EIRE Dividends paid - - - - (428,035) (428,035)
2020812 A31A & At 31 December 2020 and
2021%F1A18 1 January 2021 1,224,924 (223,537) 200,344 - 148,620 1,350,351
AEE RN REARELE Profit and total
comprehensive income
for the year - - - - 218,162 218,162
EERRESEETRERY Purchase of shares under
employee option scheme - (249,159) - - - (249,159)
18 Rt R AR D Shares repurchased and
cancelled (13,761) - - - - (13,761)
R RIEEE R 3R Recognition of equity -
settled share-based
payments = = ~ 293,774 = 293,774
TR E Exercise of share options = 202,193 = (293,774) 293,774 202,193
REHR Placing of new shares 2,741,335 = = = = 2,741,335
EfRE Dividends paid - - - - (246,259) (246,259)
2021 12A318 At 31 December 2021 3,952,498 (270,503) 200,344 - 414,297 4,296,636
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BZ12A3BLEE
Year ended 31 December
20175 2018% 2019 2020 20215
ARETTT AREFT ARETTL ARETTT AR¥TT
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB000 RMB'000
E Revenue 10,137,137 14,218.937 12,958,692 10,044,313 15,843,947
SHERA Cost of sales (7,072,865) (9,687,291) (9,512,770) (7.799717)  (10,626,336)
E il Gross profit 3,064,272 4531646 3445922 2,244.59% 5,217,611
Hepl A Other income and other net gains
and losses 225,467 119,209 138523 136,207 182,028
DIEREERS Distribution and selling expenses (313,959) (358,726) (366,263) (353,683) (336,451)
THREMES Administrative and other expenses (656,333) (782,735) (668,112) (356,845) (913,264)
RAENE—HEHBARMUKEE Gain on deemed disposal of a
subsidiary - - - 40,850 -
HE—fEHBRRMER Loss on disposal of a subsidiary - - - - (27,377)
BVAERE Impairment of intangible assets (17,485) = - = -
A% R AERAR Research and development costs (94,609) (177,360) (329,242) (590471) (838,893)
[EBENRIEE Share of results of associates 47310 = = 4,505 20,291
BATEFTABRZEMEE Fair value change on financial
AVEE asset at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL") = = = (3,978) 21,870
BENA Finance costs (112,890) (97,135) (100,528) (104,560) (81,606)
BRBEADER Profit before taxation 2141773 3,234,899 2,120,300 1016621 3,244,209
FIsHiAY Income tax expense (459.974) (800,200) (378,019) (113,765) (562,664)
FEERA Profit for the year 1,681,799 2,434,699 1742,281 902,856 2,681,545
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BZ12A3BLEE
Year ended 31 December
20175 2018%F 2019 2020 20214
ARETTT ARETT ARETTL AREFTT AR¥TT
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000
Hitt2E WG Other comprehensive income
TEEFAERERMIER © ltem that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss:
BAFEFARMEAEWEZ Fair value changes on equity
BEETEMNNTEES instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive
income = (52,902) (1,119,292) (279,531) (234,098)
FRE2EKRAR Total comprehensive income for
the year 1,681,799 2,381,797 622,989 623,325 2,447,447
THEAERELEZEHKE  Total comprehensive income for
B the year attributable to:
B YN 7=PN - Owners of the Company 1,601,397 2,076,196 343,682 492,636 1,840,745
— AR - Non-controlling interests 80,402 305,601 279,307 130,689 606,702
1,681,799 2,381,797 622,989 623,325 2,447,447
BERRE Total Assets 12,277,964 16,523,851 14,931,339 17121859 21,601,226
BE®BE Total Liabilities (4,965,553) (7,131,652) (5,975,716) (6,591,347)  (5,962,603)
RABEB AEIEH#EZ  Equity attributable to owners
of the Company 6,709,732 8,336,606 7,880,019 8,542,306 13,123,581
ER T Non-controlling interests 602,679 1,055,593 1,075,604 1,988,206 2,515,042
12A31B&& Balance at 31 December 7312411 9,392,199 8,955,623 10,530,512 15,638,623
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Registered office

Vistra (Cayman) Limited
P.O.Box 31119

Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way
802 West Bay Road

Grand Cayman, KY1-1205
Cayman Islands

Head office and principal place of business in the PRC

Dongyue International Fluoro
Silicone Material Industry Park
Zibo City

Shandong Province the PRC

Principal place of business in Hong Kong

Room 2621, 26/F, Tower 1
Admiralty Centre

18 Harcourt Road
Admiralty

Hong Kong

Website address

www.dongyuechem.com

Directors

Executive directors

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. FU Kwan

Mr. LIU Chuangi (resigned on 11 March 2021)

Mr. Wang Weidong (President) (appointed on 11 March 2021)
Mr. ZHANG Zhefeng (Vice President and Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. ZHANG Bishu

Mr. ZHANG Jian
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Independent non-executive directors

Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen

Mr. Yang Xiaoyong

Mr. YUE Rundong (resigned on 11 March 2021)
Mr. MA Zhizhong (appointed on 11 March 2021)

Company secretary

Ms. Chung Tak Lai

Authorized representatives

Mr. FU Kwan
Ms. CHUNG Tak Lai

Audit committee

Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen (Chairman)

Mr. YANG Xiaoyong

Mr. YUE Rundong (resigned on 11 March 2021)
Mr. MA Zhizhong (appointed on 11 March 2021)

Remuneration committee

Mr. YANG Xiaoyong (Chairman)
Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. ZHANG Jianhong

Nomination committee

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong (Chairman)
Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. YANG Xiaoyong
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Suntera (Cayman) Limited
Suite 3204, Unit 2A

Block 3, Building D

P.O. Box 1586

Gardenia Court

Camana Bay

Grand Cayman KY1-1100
Cayman Islands

BERDEBFERTRE

HERABRLAERAT
a5

ERKNBER1835

& A LG4

280 EBEKEERAT —F-—FEH

Corporate Governance Committee

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong (Chairman)

Mr. LIU Chuanqi (resigned on 11 March 2021)

Mr. Wang Weidong (appointed on 11 March 2021)
Mr. ZHANG Bishu

Risk Management Committee

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen (Chairman)

Mr. Yang Xiaoyung

Mr. Yue Rundong (resigned on 11 March 2021)
Mr. Ma Zhizhong (appointed on 11 March 2021)

Principal share registrar and transfer office

Suntera (Cayman) Limited
Suite 3204, Unit 2A

Block 3, Building D

P.O. Box 1586

Gardenia Court

Camana Bay

Grand Cayman KY1-1100
Cayman Islands

Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer
office

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong
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FEEREIT Principal bankers
HPEIRBRITRDBR AR China Construction Bank Corporation
EEZIT Huantai Branch

R LA 134 Jianshe Road

WiETE A% Zibo City, Huanta

FEERBE 13457 Shandong Province, PRC

PR IERITROARA A Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
(ER=S-X Huantai Branch

PR RS 7 Zhangbei Road

EETER & Zibo City, Huantai

R BE 798 Shandong Province, PRC

PR ZERITIRDBRAA Agricultural Bank of China Limited
(EN=S-X Huantai Branch

PEILIERSE 101 Zhongxin Road

MEMES % Suo Zhen

£ Zibo City, Huanta

L RAT1015% Shandong Province, PRC
FEIRITARD BRR AR Bank of China Limited

EEZT Huantai Branch

FELERE 48 Heng Huan Road

HIEME A & Zibo City, Huanta

BB R 485% Shandong Province, PRC

R KBTI AR ARIEE 1T China Everbright Bank Company Limited Huantai Branch
PR EE 2299 Suo Zhen Zhongxin Road
WiETEA % Zibo City, Huantai

R0 RE22995% Shandong Province, PRC

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2021 283



DEEH
CORPORATE INFORMATION

REEBZRER
EEBRBEEMER AT
BB

IR

ERKNEHHR
418128

ZEEm

R EEEtMERMARAR
HEEGRTHED

SNER AR R

RIBEREMHREES
= MR =

BRAD SR

189

284 REEEBRAT ZFT=-—

FEH

Investor relations consultant

Investor Connect Advisory
Room 128, 4/F

9 Queen Central Road
Central

Hong Kong

Auditors

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

External legal advisor

Norton Rose Fulbright Hong Kong
Freshfields Bruckhaus Deringer

Stock code
189
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Dongyue International Fluoro Silicone Material Industry Park

E 5 Tel: (0086) 533 8510072
{EE Fax: (0086) 533 8513000
#HE Website: http://www.dongyuechem.com
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